
Mission statement of McKinleyville Community Services District: 
“Provide McKinleyville with safe and reliable water, wastewater, lighting, open 

space, parks and recreation, and library services in an environmentally and 
fiscally responsible manner.” 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WILL BE HELD 
WEDNESDAY, October 7, 2020 AT 7:00pm 

TELECONFERENCE Via ZOOM & TELEPHONE: 
Use ZOOM MEETING ID: 675 633 6928 (https://zoom.us/j/6756336928) or DIAL IN TOLL 

FREE: 1-888-788-0099 (No Password Required!) 

To participate, please teleconference using the toll free number listed above, or join through the 
internet at the Zoom App with weblink and ID number listed above, or the public may submit written 

comments to the Board Secretary at: comments@mckinleyvillecsd.com up until 4:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, October 6, 2020.  

All Public Comment received before the above deadline will be provided to the Board at 9 a.m. on 
Wednesday, October 7, 2020 in a supplemental packet information that will also be posted on the 

website for public viewing.  
___________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA 

7:00 p.m. 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

A.1 Roll Call 

A.2 Pledge of Allegiance 

A.3 Additions to the Agenda 
Items may be added to the Agenda in accordance with Section 54954.2(b)(2) of the Government Code 

(Brown Act), upon a determination by two-thirds vote of the members of the legislative body present at the 

time of the meeting, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those 

members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 

attention of the McKinleyville Community Services District after the Agenda was posted.  

A.4 Approval of the Agenda 

A.5 Closed Session Discussion 
At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider existing or 

anticipated litigation, liability claims, real property negotiations, license and permit determinations, threats 

to security, public employee appointments, personnel matters, evaluations and discipline, labor negotiations, 

or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege.  

1

https://zoom.us/j/6756336928
mailto:comments@mckinleyvillecsd.com


NO CLOSED SESSION SCHEDULED 

B.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
These are items of a Quasi-Judicial or Legislative nature.  Public comments relevant to these proceedings 

are invited.   

NO PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULED 

C.  PUBLIC COMMENT AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
Any person may address the Board at this time upon any subject not identified on this Agenda but within the 

jurisdiction of the McKinleyville Community Services District; however, any matter that requires action will 

be referred to staff for a report of action at a subsequent Committee or Board meeting.  As to matters on the 

Agenda, an opportunity will be given to address the Board when the matter is considered.  Comments are 

limited to 3 minutes.  Letters should be used for complex issues. 

D.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, to be acted upon by the Board of 

Directors at one time without discussion.  If any Board member, staff member, or interested person requests 

that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, it shall be removed so that it may be acted upon 

separately. 

D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular Pg. 5
Meeting on September 2, 2020 

Attachment 1 – Draft Minutes from September 2, 2020 Pg. 6

D.2 Consider Approval of August 2020 Treasurer’s Report  Pg. 11

E. CONTINUED AND NEW BUSINESS 

E.1 Review and Discuss the McKinleyville Skatepark Quarterly Project   Pg. 32

Pg. 33
Status Update Presented by the Humboldt Skatepark Collective (HSC) 

Attachment 1 – HSC Quarterly Status Report 

E.2 Consider Approval of Hay Lease for the Fischer and Pialorsi Properties Pg. 34
with Andy Titus 

Attachment 1 – Request for Proposals  Pg. 36
Attachment 2 – Proposal from Andy Titus Pg. 38
Attachment 3 – Proposal from David Collenberg Pg. 39
Attachment 4 – Proposal Rating Score Sheet  Pg. 41
Attachment 5 – Draft Lease Agreement  Pg. 42

E.3 Consider Approval of 2019-2024 Strategic Plan Revisions Pg. 64 
Attachment 1 – Red-Lined Strategic Plan Document Pg. 65 

E.4 Review Proposed District Rules and Procedures for Personal Wireless Pg. 77 
Service Facilities (Cell Towers) 

Attachment 1 – Draft Personal Wireless Service Facility Policy Pg. 79 

2



E.5 Consider Approval of Modification of Parks & Recreation CIP Budget  Pg. 82
to Appropriate Funds for the Replacement of Aging Toro Mower at Hiller 
Sports Site 

Attachment 1 – Draft Revised Parks/General Fund Budget Pg. 84
FY20-21  

E.6 Review Virtual Meeting Regulations to be Inserted into the Board Policy  Pg. 89
Manual 

Attachment 1 – Draft Virtual Meeting Guidelines Pg. 91

E.7 Approve the Regular Board Meeting Dates, Time, and Location Pg. 92
for the 2021 Calendar Year 

Attachment 1 – Proposed 2021 Board Meeting Calendar Year Pg. 93

E.8 Consider Special Board Meeting to Tour Proposed Community Forest Pg. 94
Trail Heads and Property 

Attachment 1 – Map of Proposed Community Forest Pg. 95

E.9 Consider Director Corbett’s Proposal to Establish Committee to Clarify Pg. 96
District’s Authority with regards to Library and Law Enforcement,  
Community Forest Operation, Support for the McKinleyville Municipal  
Advisory Committee, Reclamation, and Homelessness 

Attachment 1 – MCSD Clarification of Authority Memo, Director Pg. 98
Corbett 
Attachment 2 – July 31, 2020 Memo from Board Secretary Sousa  Pg. 101 
to Director Corbett 

Attachment 3 – LAFCo Municipal Service Review, January 2009 Pg. 108

E.10  Consider the Audit Committee’s Proposal to Amend the Debt Pg. 126
Management & Capital Financing Policy Manual to Include Language 
Outlining the Procedures for the District to Accept or Approve Grants  

Attachment 1 – Debt Management and Capital Financing Policy Pg. 128
Manual 
Attachment 2 – Audit Committee Memo  Pg. 133

E.11  Consider Audit Committee’s Proposal to Increase Transparency with Pg. 135
a Monthly Listing of Both Types of Current MCSD Grants Awarded: 
1) MCSD Grants, Where the District Receives and Administers the
Monies and Contract, and 2) Nonprofit Grants Where a Nonprofit Applies 
for the Grant, Receives, and Manages the Monies for an MCSD Project 

Attachment 1 – Grant Expenditure Sample Listing Pg. 137

E.12 Consider Approval of a Proposal and Rental Agreement with Justin Pg. 138
and April Sousa for the Rental, Repair, and Caretaker Position for  
the Pialorsi House and Property and Budgeting for Necessary Repairs 

Attachment 1 – Sousa Proposal  Pg. 141
Attachment 2 – A&I Roofing Proposal Pg. 146

3



F. REPORTS 
No specific action is required on these items, but the Board may discuss any particular item as required. 

F.1 ACTIVE COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a. Recreation Advisory Committee (Couch/Mayo)
b. Area Fund (John Kulstad/Barsanti)
c. Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (Mayo/Burke)
d. McKinleyville Senior Center Board Liaison (Barsanti/Burke)
e. Audit (Corbett/Barsanti)
f. Employee Negotiations (Couch/Corbett)
g. McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (Burke/Mayo)
h. Humboldt Local Agency Formation Commission (Couch)
i. Environmental Matters Committee (Couch/Corbett)
j. AdHoc Committee – Community Forest (Corbett/Mayo)

F.2 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORTS 

F.3 STAFF REPORTS 
a. Support Services Department (Colleen M.R. Trask) Pg. 149
b. Operations Department (James Henry) Pg. 151
c. Parks & Recreation Department (Lesley Frisbee) Pg. 156
d. General Manager (Pat Kaspari) Pg. 158

Attachment 1 – WWMF Monthly Self-Monitoring Report Pg. 163

F.4 PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

F.5 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, REPORTS AND AGENDA 
ITEMS REQUESTS  

G. ADJOURNMENT 

Posted 5:00 pm on October 2, 2020 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.5. this agenda and complete Board packet are available for 

public inspection on the web at McKinleyvillecsd.com/minutes or upon request at the MCSD office, 1656 Sutter 

Road, McKinleyville. If you would like to receive the complete packet via email, free of charge, contact the Board 

Secretary at (707)839-3251 to be added to the mailing list.  

McKinleyville Community Services District will, on request, make agendas available in appropriate alternative 

formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 

U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need 

this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to 

participate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at (707) 839-3251. Notification 48 hours prior to the 

meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements for accommodations.  

4



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020 TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of the Board of 

Directors  

PRESENTED BY: April Sousa, Board Secretary 

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call Vote – Consent Calendar 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review and approval of the draft minutes from 

the September 2, 2020 regularly scheduled Board Meeting.  

Discussion: 

The Draft minutes are attached for the above listed meeting. 

Alternatives: 

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis: 

Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements: 

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments: 

• Attachment 1 – Draft Minutes from September 2, 2020

5



 MINUTES OF THE CLOSED/REGULAR MEETING OF THE MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY  
SERVICES DISTRICT HELD ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2020 6:00/7:00 P.M. 

TELECONFERENCE Via ZOOM & TELEPHONE: 
ZOOM MEETING ID: 675 633 6928 (https://zoom.us/j/6756336928) and TOLL FREE: 1-888-788-0099 

CLOSED SESSION 

AGENDA ITEM A. CALL TO ORDER 

A.1 Roll Call: The Closed session of the Board of Directors of McKinleyville Community Services District 
convened at 6:01 pm with the following Directors and staff in attendance: 

Mary Burke, President  Pat Kaspari, General Manager 
Dennis Mayo, Vice President Russell Gans, Legal Counsel 
John Corbett, Director  April Sousa, Board Secretary 
David Couch, Director  

A.3 Closed Session Discussion 

a. Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(b):  1 Potential Case; Phil Lazzar
Claimant 

b. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (California Government Code §
54954.5 and 54957) Title: General Manager—Patrick Kaspari 

Regular Session 

AGENDA ITEM A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A.1 Report Out of Closed Session 
Item A.3.a. had nothing to report out. For item A.3.b. it was reported that General Manager Kaspari passed his 3-
month evaluation with an overall approval from the Board. 

A.2 Roll Call: The regular session of the Board of Directors of McKinleyville Community Services District 
convened at 7:00 pm with the following Directors and staff in attendance: 

Mary Burke, President  Pat Kaspari, General Manager 
Dennis Mayo, Vice President Colleen Trask, Finance Director 
John Corbett, Director  James Henry, Operations Director 
David Couch, Director  Lesley Frisbee, Recreation Director 

April Sousa, Board Secretary  

A.3 Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Couch. 

A.4 Additions to the Agenda: General Manager Kaspari brought forward an item to consider for addition to 
the agenda: Letter of Commitment from MCSD to Accept Community Forest Land and Commitment to 
Operation and Maintenance Cost. Mr. Kaspari noted that on Friday, August 28, 2020, MCSD was notified 
about passing the second-round process for funding and on Monday, August 31, 2020, a meeting took place 
to discover the next steps needed. This letter is one of those steps and needs to be written and signed prior 
to the end of a month. This is the only Board meeting available prior to the deadline to discuss the item.  

Motion: It was moved to add the additional action item to Consider a letter of Commitment from MCSD to 
Accept Community Forest Land and Commitment to Operation and Maintenance Cost and to Approve the 
Agenda with this addition. 
Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Director Corbet 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti 
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

Item D.1 Attachment 1

6

https://zoom.us/j/6756336928


AGENDA ITEM B.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: There were no Public Hearings. 

AGENDA ITEM C.  PUBLIC COMMENT AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

There was no public comment. 

AGENDA ITEM D.  CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Item D.4: Authorize General Manager to Send Letter of Support for Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’s 
Application for a US Economic Development Administration Industrial System Rehabilitation Project Grant, 
was pulled from the Consent Agenda 

D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular Meeting on August 5, 2020 

D.2 Consider Approval of July 2020 Draft Treasurer’s Report 

D.3 Compliance with State Double Check Valve (DCV) Law 

D.5 Approval of Proposal to Conduct a Capacity Fee Study from Willdan Financial Services  

Motion: It was moved to approve Consent Calendar. 
Motion by: Director Corbett; Second: Director Mayo 
There were no comments from the Board or public. 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti 
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

D.4 Authorize General Manager to Send Letter of Support for Humboldt Bay Municipal Water 
District’s Application for a US Economic Development Administration Industrial System 
Rehabilitation Project Grant 

General Manager Kaspari gave an overview of the item. Director Couch expressed concerns if there 
appeared to be a future request regarding filtration systems. Director Mayo also commented on the item. 

Motion: It was moved to approve the Authorization of the General Manager to Send Letter of Support for 
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’s Application for a US Economic Development Administration 
Industrial System Rehabilitation Project Grant.  
Motion by: Director Corbett; Second: Director Mayo 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti 
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

AGENDA ITEM E. CONTINUED AND NEW BUSINESS: 

Please note, the items are listed as they appeared at the meeting. 

E.1 Consider Approval of Professional Services Agreement with US Ecology to Perform 
Remediation and Demolition of PCB Impacted Milking Shed at Pialorsi Ranch 

General Manager Kaspari gave an overview explaining the scope of work for the PCB remediation. There 
was no public comment on this item. 

Motion: Authorize the General Manager to execute the Professional Services Agreement with USEcology to 
provide services to perform remediation and demolition of the PCB impacted milking parlor at the Pialorsi 
Ranch not to exceed $54,405 with a 20% ($10,881) contingency totally $65,286.   
Motion by: Director Couch; Second: Director Corbett 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti 
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

E.2 Consider Approval of Professional Services Agreement with GHD to Perform Phase 3c of the 
Mainline Replacement and Rehabilitation Master Plan 

7



General Manager Kaspari gave an overview of the item and explained the scope of work for phase 3c of the 
Mainline Replacement and Rehabilitation Master Plan. The Board gave overall comments regarding the 
necessity and overall satisfaction with the project. 

Motion: Authorize the General Manager to execute the amendment to the existing Professional Services 
Agreement with GHD to provide services to perform Phase 3c of the Mainline Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Master Plan not to exceed $71,500 with a 10% ($7,150) contingency totaling $78,650. 
Motion by: Director Corbett; Second: Director Mayo 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti  
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

E.3 Consider Approval of a Temporary 50% Reduction in Facility Use Fees for the McKinleyville 
Senior Center at Azalea Hall 

After a brief review of the item by Recreation Director Lesley Frisbee, the Board was given the opportunity to 
ask questions. Greg Orsini, McKinleyville Resident, asked a clarifying question regarding the reduction. 

Motion: Approve a temporary 50% reduction in facility use fees for the McKinleyville Senior Center at 
Azalea Hall. 
Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Director Couch 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti  
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

E.4 BMX Track Development Proposal Presentation 

Jason and Wendy Orlandi gave a presentation of a BMX track project to be placed at the Washington 
Ave./School Rd. District owned property site. The Board asked clarifying questions regarding insurance, 
public use, restrooms, and exact costs. Neighbors to the property were available and gave comments 
regarding invasive plants, barrier concerns, zoning and environmental concerns. Comments and direction 
were given back to the Orlandi’s and BMX track supporters regarding next steps, including neighborhood 
outreach to mitigate concerns and finalizing exact cost estimates. Director Couch also noted that this project 
was supported by the Recreation Advisory Committee. This was an informational only item, no action taken. 

E.7 Discuss and Consider Approval of Resolution 2020-22 Adopting the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Mad River Floodplain and 
Public Access Enhancement Project, and Approving the Project based on Approval of Final 
Construction Funding 

President Burke recused herself stating that she worked for the non-profit who was working on this project. It 
was noted that while there is no legal conflict of interest, she would recuse herself to mitigate the 
appearance of any conflict of interest. President Burke turned off her video and muted herself. Vice 
President Mayo took over the running of the meeting for this item. 

General Manager Kaspari gave an overview of the item to date. Greg Orsini gave public comment by giving 
historical information on the project from when he was General Manager of the District. The Board gave 
comments of support for the project and thanked staff for clarifying the specifics of the project for the Board 
and the public to understand it better.  

Board Secretary April Sousa noted that 14 letters of public comment were received regarding E.7 that were 
incorporated in the initial Board Packet and 2 letters of public comment were received prior to the Tuesday 
4:30 p.m. deadline and therefore were provided to the Board and public in a supplemental packet 
Wednesday morning. Of the 16 letters, 2 letters were received expressing concern for the project from Beryl 
Feldman and Bruce MacLaren, 1 letter expressing both concern and support from Bonnie MacGregor, and 
13 letters expressing support for the project from Redwood Community Action Agency, Ken Hamik and 
Cherie Newell, Harriet Hill, Lisa Dugan and John Calkins, Kate McClain, Coastal Conservancy, Bonnie 
Oliver, Linda Doerflinger, Twila Sanchez (Yurok Tribal Member and McKinleyville Resident), Coalition for 
Responsible Transportation Priorities, McKinleyville Land Trust, Joyce King, and the Blue Lake Rancheria. 

8



Motion: Approve Resolution 2020-22 adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the Mitigation 
Monitoring Report Program and approves the Mad River Floodplain and Public Access Enhancement 
Project, based on Board approval of final construction funding requirements. 
Motion by: Corbett; Second: Director Couch 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, and May   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti 
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

President Burke was invited back into the meeting after this item to continue running the meeting. 

E.8 Consider Approval of the Location of the Solar Panels for the Microgrid  Project to be Located 
at the Wastewater Management Facility 

General Manager Kaspari reviewed the project and item with the Board. The Board was given an 
opportunity to ask clarifying questions in regard to the location of the microgrid in pond 5. There was no 
other public comment. 

Motion: Approve the Pond 5 site for the solar array to be installed at the District’s Wastewater Management 
Facility as part of the Microgrid Project. 
Motion by: Mayo; Second: Director Corbett 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti  
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

E.9 Letter of Commitment from MCSD to Accept Community Forest Land and Commitment to 
Operation and Maintenance Cost 

An overview of this additional item was given by General Manager Kaspari. It was reviewed that MCSD 
heard from Trust for Public Lands about making it through to the next round for funding consideration, and 
there were specific documents needed. One of these documents is a letter from MCSD committing to 
accepting the land and maintenance of the land as well as accepting any deed restrictions on the land. Mr. 
Kaspari read the draft letter. Board and the Public discussed the deed restrictions and expressed concerns 
and support. 

Motion: Approve the draft letter to be sent to express a commitment from MCSD to accept the Community 
Forest land and operation and maintenance cost. 
Motion by: Corbett; Second: Director Couch 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Corbett, Couch, Mayo and Burke   Nays:  None   Absent:  Barsanti  
Motion Summary: Motion Passed 

E.5  Annual Review and Discussion of 2019-2024 Strategic Plan 

Board Secretary Sousa reviewed the proposed revisions. The Board gave feedback and direction to staff for 
minor changes. There was no other public comment. This was an informational only item, no action taken. 
This will be brought back for approval at the October 7, 2020 meeting. 

E.6 Discussion regarding Digital Meeting Guidelines, Procedures, and Universal Technology 
Elements 

This item was opened by General Manager Kaspari and Board Secretary Sousa. Universal technology 
devices were discussed and the questions regarding the difference between tablets and laptops were 
discussed. Direction was given to staff to move forward with the purchase of laptops and draft guidelines 
regarding decorum, public comment guidelines, and other virtual meeting procedures. This was an 
informational only item; no action taken. 

AGENDA ITEM F. REPORTS 

F.1 ACTIVE COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a. Recreation Advisory Committee (Couch/Mayo): Reiterated that the RAC supported the BMX track.

9



b. Area Fund (John Kulstad/Barsanti): Did not meet.

c. Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (Mayo/Burke): Nothing to report.

d. McKinleyville Senior Center Advisory Council (Barsanti/Burke): Did not meet.

e. Audit (Corbett/Barsanti): Nothing to report.

f. Employee Negotiations (Couch/Corbett): Reported that they met to discuss the trailer rental and
overtime implications.

g. McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (Burke/Mayo):  Reported on community safety updates
and additional support to Board of Supervisors.

h. Local Agency Formation Commission (Couch): Did not meet.

i. Environmental Matters Committee (Couch/Corbett): Did not meet.

j. AdHoc Community Forest Committee (Burke/Corbett): President Burke reported that she wished to
change the make up of this committee to be Director Mayo and Director Couch, since Director Mayo would
be continuing on the Board next year to allow for some continuity.

F.2 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORTS 

Director Mayo stated he was working to get support for Garamendi’s bill. Director Corbett gave a report on 
State Water Resources Board Legislation. 

F.3 STAFF REPORTS 

a. Support Services Department (Colleen M.R. Trask): Finance Director, Colleen Trask, highlighted that
the county tax allocation was still not available for the treasurer’s report and noted the “on-site” Auditor visit
that was done remotely. She also gave an update on the lock list.

b. Operations Department (James Henry): Operations Director, James Henry, had nothing further to add to
his written report.

c. Parks & Recreation Department (Lesley Frisbee): Recreation Director, Lesley Frisbee, had nothing
further to add to her written report.

d. General Manager (Patrick Kaspari): General Manager Kaspari had nothing further to add to his written
report.

F.3.2 PRESIDENT’S REPORT: President Burke had nothing to report but asked County Supervisor 
Madrone if he would like to speak. He commented about regular meetings with MCSD and the McKinleyville 
Municipal Advisory Committee that have been good. 

F.4 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, REPORTS AND AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS: 
Director Corbett commented that the meeting was well done, efficient, and got a lot done.  

G. ADJOURNMENT: 

Meeting Adjourned at 9:53 p.m. 

_____________________________________ 
April Sousa, CMC, Board Secretary 

10



BOARD MEETING October 7, 2020 CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM D.2

McKinleyville Community Services District
DRAFT Treasurer's Report

August 2020

Page 2 Investments & Cash Flow Report

Page 3 Consolidated Balance Sheet by Fund

Page 4 Activity Summary by Fund

with Selected Graphic Comparisons

Page 11 Capital Expenditure Report

Page 12 Summary of Long-Term Debt Report

Page 13 Cash Disbursement Report

Ratios as of August 31, 2020

- Utility Accounts Receivable Turnover Days 12

Beg.A/R End A/R Avg A/R Net Util Sales # of Times

294,530.03 276,396 285,463 1,423,883 5

- YTD Breakeven Revenue, Water Fund: 390,868$  

501 Ops Exp 501 COGS 501 Wtr Sales

289,724 193,602 748,173

- YTD Actual Water Sales: 748,173$  

2,819,870 17,113

- Days of Cash on Hand-Operations Checking/MM 165

Table of Contents

Treasurer's Report Page 1

11



McKinleyville Community Services District

Investments & Cash Flow Report

as of August 31, 2020

Petty Cash & Change Funds 9,197.46 

Cash

Operating & Money Market - Beginning Balance 3,602,665.26

Cash Receipts:

Utility Billings & Other Receipts 764,545.33       

Money Market Account Interest 111.87 

Transfers from County Funds #2560, #4240, CalTRUST, Meas. B - 

Other Cash Receipts (Pmt of SRF Solar Proj Grant Receivable) - 

Total Cash Receipts 764,657.20       

Cash Disbursements:

Transfers to County Funds #2560, #4240, CalTRUST - 

  Payroll Related Expenditures (238,975.10)      

  Debt Service (729,971.41)      

  Capital & Other Expenditures (incl. Hiller Trailer purchase) (578,505.79)      

Total Cash Disbursements (1,547,452.30)   

Operating & Money Market - Ending Balance 2,819,870.16    

Total Cash 2,829,067.62    

Investments (Interest and Market Valuation will be re-calculated as part of the year-end close, if material)

LAIF - Beginning Balance 138,138.96 

  Interest Income - 

LAIF - Ending Balance 138,138.96 

Humboldt Co. #2560 - Beginning Balance 1,067,255.53          

  Property Taxes and Assessments - 

  Transfer to/from Operating Cash - 

  Interest Income (net of adjustments) 1,414.11 

Humboldt Co. #2560 - Ending Balance 1,068,669.64       

Humboldt Co. #4240 - Beginning Balance 3,319,714.63

  Transfer to/from Operating Cash - 

  Transfer to/from Biosolids Reserve - 

  Interest Income 2,135.40 

Humboldt Co. #4240 - Ending Balance 3,321,850.03       

Humboldt Co. #9390 - Beginning Balance 663,032.08 

  Reserves Recovery Deposits/Other Bal Withdrawals - 

  Interest Income - 

Humboldt Co. #9390 - Ending Balance 663,032.08 

USDA Bond Reserve Fund - Beginning Balance 178,209.84 

  Bond Reserve Payment/Transfer to Service Fund (8,568.55) 

  Debt Service Payment, Principal/Interest (Net) (62,514.79) 

  Interest Adjustment 0.81 

USDA Bond Reserve Fund - Ending Balance 107,127.31 

CalTRUST - Beginning Balance 10,604,346.16     
  Net Transfer to/from Designated Reserves: PERS/OPEB - 
  Net Transfer to/from Capacity Fees/Catastrophe/Other Reserves - 
  Net: Interest Income/Unrealized Gain/Loss 10,363.32 
CalTRUST - Ending Balance 10,614,709.48     

Total Investments 15,919,544.98     

Total Cash & Investments - Current Month 18,748,612.60     

Total Cash & Investments - Prior Month 19,588,567.40     

Net Change to Cash & Investments This Month (839,954.80)         

Cash & Investment Summary

Cash & Cash Equivalents 18,026,566.18     

Davis-Grunsky Loan Reserve 614,919.11 

USDA Bond Reserve 107,127.31 

Total Cash & Investments 18,748,612.60     

12



M
c
K

in
le

y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t
C

o
n

s
o

lid
a

te
d

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 S
h

e
e

t b
y
 F

u
n

d
 

a
s

 o
f A

u
g

u
s

t 3
1

, 2
0

2
0

A
S

S
E

T
S

 P
a

rk
s

 &
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 B

S
tre

e
tlig

h
ts

W
a

te
r

W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r

 T
o

ta
l 

(M
e

m
o

ra
n

d
u

m
 

O
n

ly
) 

C
u

rre
n

t A
s

s
e

ts

U
n

re
s

tric
te

d
 c

a
s

h
 &

 c
a

s
h

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

1
,0

5
4

,5
0

8
.0

6
$

    
(5

1
2

,7
0

8
.5

4
)

$
      

3
9

,6
1

2
.3

5
$

         
7

,0
7

7
,1

0
8

.9
2

$
      

1
0

,5
1

4
,7

8
9

.9
6

$
    

1
8

,1
7

3
,3

1
0

.7
5

$
    

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 re

c
e

iv
a

b
le

8
,8

6
2

.2
4

              
-

                       
3

,6
0

8
.1

4
              

3
5

5
,6

2
6

.2
3

           
4

5
8

,4
0

0
.8

5
           

8
2

6
,4

9
7

.4
6

            

P
re

p
a

id
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 &

 o
th

e
r c

u
rre

n
t a

s
s

e
ts

4
8

,7
3

7
.4

5
           

9
7

9
.7

8
                 

4
,3

3
9

.0
4

              
1

2
5

,0
7

5
.2

7
           

7
6

,4
8

4
.4

4
             

2
5

5
,6

1
5

.9
8

            

T
o

ta
l C

u
rre

n
t A

s
s

e
ts

1
,1

1
2

,1
0

7
.7

5
      

(5
1

1
,7

2
8

.7
6

)
        

4
7

,5
5

9
. 5

3
           

7
,5

5
7

,8
1

0
.4

2
        

1
1

,0
4

9
, 6

7
5

.2
5

      
1

9
,2

5
5

,4
2

4
.1

9
       

N
o

n
c

u
rre

n
t A

s
s

e
ts

R
e

s
tric

te
d

 c
a

s
h

 &
 c

a
s

h
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

ts
1

7
9

,4
4

3
.4

9
         

-
                       

-
                       

6
1

4
,9

1
9

. 1
1

           
1

0
7

,1
2

7
.3

1
           

9
0

1
,4

8
9

. 9
1

            

O
th

e
r n

o
n

c
u

rre
n

t a
s

s
e

ts
-

                       
-

                       
-

                       
1

4
2

,9
9

0
.3

2
           

1
6

0
,3

2
2

.4
8

           
3

0
3

,3
1

2
.8

0
            

C
a

p
ita

l a
s

s
e

ts
 (n

e
t)

-
                       

-
                       

-
                       

8
,3

5
3

,5
2

5
.8

6
        

2
8

,2
3

0
,3

0
7

.8
6

      
3

6
,5

8
3

,8
3

3
.7

2
       

T
o

ta
l N

o
n

c
u

rre
n

t A
s

s
e

ts
1

7
9

,4
4

3
.4

9
         

-
                       

-
                       

9
,1

1
1

,4
3

5
.2

9
        

2
8

,4
9

7
,7

5
7

.6
5

      
3

7
,7

8
8

,6
3

6
.4

3
       

T
O

T
A

L
 A

S
S

E
T

S
1

,2
9

1
,5

5
1

.2
4

$
    

(5
1

1
,7

2
8

.7
6

)
$

      
4

7
,5

5
9

.5
3

$
         

1
6

,6
6

9
,2

4
5

.7
1

$
    

3
9

,5
4

7
,4

3
2

.9
0

$
    

5
7

,0
4

4
,0

6
0

.6
2

$
    

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 &

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
/N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

C
u

rre
n

t L
ia

b
ilitie

s

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 &
 o

th
e

r c
u

rre
n

t lia
b

ilitie
s

7
7

,0
5

6
.5

8
$

         
-

$
                    

6
5

4
.1

7
$

               
2

6
5

,6
3

1
.2

9
$

         
8

5
,4

2
6

. 0
5

$
           

4
2

8
,7

6
8

.0
9

$
          

A
c

c
ru

e
d

 p
a

y
ro

ll &
 re

la
te

d
 lia

b
ilitie

s
9

1
,1

9
4

.4
8

           
-

                       
-

                       
3

8
,0

2
0

.5
2

             
3

6
,4

1
6

.9
7

             
1

6
5

,6
3

1
.9

7
            

T
o

ta
l C

u
rre

n
t L

ia
b

ilitie
s

1
6

8
,2

5
1

.0
6

         
-

                       
6

5
4

.1
7

                 
3

0
3

,6
5

1
.8

1
           

1
2

1
,8

4
3

.0
2

           
5

9
4

,4
0

0
.0

6
            

N
o

n
c

u
rre

n
t L

ia
b

ilitie
s

L
o

n
g

-te
rm

 d
e

b
t

-
                       

-
                       

-
                       

2
,2

4
1

,4
0

4
.4

0
        

1
6

,0
5

8
,4

3
5

.8
2

      
1

8
,2

9
9

,8
4

0
.2

2
       

O
th

e
r n

o
n

c
u

rre
n

t lia
b

ilitie
s

-
                       

-
                       

-
                       

3
,4

3
3

,2
0

8
.7

7
        

3
,5

0
3

,9
6

2
.7

7
        

6
,9

3
7

,1
7

1
.5

4
         

T
o

ta
l N

o
n

c
u

rre
n

t L
ia

b
ilitie

s
-

                       
-

                       
-

                       
5

,6
7

4
,6

1
3

.1
7

        
1

9
,5

6
2

,3
9

8
.5

9
      

2
5

,2
3

7
,0

1
1

.7
6

       

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

1
6

8
,2

5
1

.0
6

         
-

                       
6

5
4

.1
7

                 
5

,9
7

8
,2

6
4

.9
8

        
1

9
,6

8
4

,2
4

1
.6

1
      

2
5

,8
3

1
,4

1
1

.8
2

       

F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

c
e

/N
e

t A
s

s
e

ts

F
u

n
d

 b
a

la
n

c
e

(2
,3

4
9

,4
0

0
.9

9
)

     
(5

1
1

,7
2

8
.7

6
)

        
4

6
,9

0
5

.3
6

           
-

                        
-

                        
(2

,8
1

4
,2

2
4

.3
9

)
       

N
e

t a
s

s
e

ts
3

,4
7

2
,7

0
1

.1
7

      
-

                       
-

                       
4

,5
7

8
,8

5
9

.2
7

        
7

,6
9

1
,3

1
9

.2
5

        
1

5
,7

4
2

,8
7

9
.6

9
       

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t in
 c

a
p

tia
l a

s
s

e
ts

, n
e

t o
f re

la
te

d
 d

e
b

t
-

                       
-

                       
-

                       
6

,1
1

2
,1

2
1

.4
6

        
1

2
,1

7
1

,8
7

2
.0

4
      

1
8

,2
8

3
,9

9
3

.5
0

       

T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c

e
/N

e
t A

s
s

e
ts

1
,1

2
3

,3
0

0
.1

8
      

(5
1

1
,7

2
8

.7
6

)
        

4
6

,9
0

5
.3

6
           

1
0

,6
9

0
,9

8
0

.7
3

      
1

9
,8

6
3

,1
9

1
.2

9
      

3
1

,2
1

2
,6

4
8

.8
0

       

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 &
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

/N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
1

,2
9

1
,5

5
1

.2
4

$
    

(5
1

1
,7

2
8

.7
6

)
$

      
4

7
,5

5
9

.5
3

$
         

1
6

,6
6

9
,2

4
5

.7
1

$
    

3
9

,5
4

7
,4

3
2

.9
0

$
    

5
7

,0
4

4
,0

6
0

.6
2

$
    

D
iffe

re
n

c
e

 in
 R

e
c
la

s
s
 fro

m
 C

a
p

 A
s
s
e

ts
 to

 N
e

t A
s
s
e

ts
:

-
                        

-
                        

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t in
 G

e
n

e
ra

l C
a

p
ita

l A
s

s
e

ts
3

,1
5

8
,5

4
1

.2
3

$
    

G
e

n
e

ra
l L

o
n

g
-te

rm
 L

ia
b

ilitie
s

P
G

&
E

 S
tre

e
tlig

h
ts

 L
o

a
n

-
                       

N
o

n
-d

e
b

t L
o

n
g

-te
rm

 L
ia

b
ilitie

s
 (in

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 O
th

e
r N

o
n

-c
u

rre
n

t L
ia

b
ilitie

s
 a

b
o

v
e

)

M
e

a
s

. B
 L

o
a

n
: T

e
e

n
/C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 C
e

n
te

r
1

,0
1

0
,9

4
4

.0
0

      

O
P

E
B

 L
ia

b
ility

2
,7

8
0

,5
6

3
.5

6
      

O
P

E
B

 L
ia

b
ility

2
,8

3
1

,3
5

0
.9

3
        

2
,8

4
3

,2
0

3
.5

2
        

8
,4

5
5

,1
1

8
.0

1
         

C
a

lP
E

R
S

 P
e

n
s

io
n

 L
ia

b
ility

/D
e

fe
rre

d
 In

flo
w

s
-O

u
tflo

w
s

5
9

3
,3

9
7

.3
3

         
C

a
lP

E
R

S
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 L

ia
b

ility
5

2
1

,2
4

0
.0

1
           

5
8

0
,2

8
3

.8
1

           
1

,6
9

4
,9

2
1

.1
5

         

A
c

c
ru

e
d

 C
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

te
d

 A
b

s
e

n
c

e
s

6
1

,4
3

6
.8

1
           

T
O

T
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 L
O

N
G

-T
E

R
M

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
4

,4
4

6
,3

4
1

.7
0

$
    

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

ta
l F

u
n

d
s

 P
ro

p
rie

ta
ry

 F
u

n
d

s
 

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 3

13



M
c

K
in

le
y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 D

is
tric

t

A
c

tiv
ity

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 b
y
 F

u
n

d
, A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t

A
u

g
u

s
t 2

0
2

0

%
 o

f Y
e
a
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

O
v
e
r (U

n
d

e
r)

O
v
e
r (U

n
d

e
r)

1
6
.6

7
%

Y
T

D
Y

T
D

Y
T

D

D
e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t S
u

m
m

a
rie

s
A

u
g

u
s
t

Y
T

D
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t %

N
o

te
s

W
a
te

r

W
a
te

r S
a
le

s
3
6
0
,8

3
3

       
7
4
8
,1

7
3

       
6
5
2
,9

5
7

       
9
5
,2

1
6

             
1
4
.5

8
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 w

ith
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l u

s
a
g
e

O
th

e
r R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s

1
3
,3

7
0

         
2
4
,1

9
7

         
8
6
,7

1
7

         
(6

2
,5

2
0
)

            
-7

2
.1

0
%

In
c
lu

d
e
s
 Y

T
D

 C
a
p
a
c
ity

 F
e
e
s
 $

3
7
1
3
. C

o
n
trib

.C
o
n
s
tru

c
tio

n
 $

0
.

T
o
ta

l O
p
e
ra

tin
g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s

3
7
4
,2

0
3

       
7
7
2
,3

6
9

       
7
3
9

,6
7
4

       
3
2
,6

9
5

             
4
. 4

2
%

S
a
la

rie
s
 &

 B
e

n
e

fits
6
6
,9

8
9

         
1
5
7
,5

1
3

       
1

7
4

,6
6
3

       
(1

7
,1

5
0
)

            
-9

.8
2
%

W
a
te

r P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

9
7
,3

7
1

         
1
9
3
,6

0
2

       
1

8
7

,5
8
9

       
6
,0

1
3

               
3

.2
1
%

O
th

e
r E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

4
4
,4

5
2

         
7
1
,7

1
1

         
1
3
4

,1
6
0

       
(6

2
,4

4
9
)

            
-4

6
.5

5
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
d
.

D
e
p
re

c
ia

tio
n
 

3
0
,2

5
0

         
6
0
,5

0
0

         
6
0
,5

0
0

         
-

                  
0
.0

0
%

T
o
ta

l O
p
e
ra

tin
g
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

2
3
9
,0

6
2

       
4
8
3
,3

2
7

       
5
5
6

,9
1
2

       
(7

3
,5

8
5
)

            
-1

3
.2

1
%

N
e
t O

p
e
ra

tin
g
 In

c
o
m

e
1
3
5
,1

4
2

       
2
8
9
,0

4
3

       
1
8
2

,7
6
2

       
(4

0
,8

9
0
)

            

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o
m

e
4
,6

5
7

           
9
,4

8
6

           
8
,3

3
3

           
1
,1

5
3

               
1

3
.8

3
%

In
te

re
s
t ra

te
s
 h

ig
h
e
r th

a
n
 a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
.

In
te

re
s
t E

x
p
e
n
s
e

(3
,5

8
0
)

         
(8

,1
3
5
)

         
(9

,1
8
8
)

         
(1

,0
5
4
)

              
-1

1
.4

7
%

In
te

re
s
t w

ill b
e
 re

-a
d
ju

s
te

d
 in

 S
e
p
t. 2

0
2
0

N
e
t In

c
o

m
e
 (L

o
s
s
)

1
3
6
,2

1
8

       
2
9
0
,3

9
4

       
1
8
1

,9
0
7

       
1
0
8

,4
8
7

           

W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r

W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

3
2
9
,2

8
4

       
6
7
5
,7

1
0

       
6
6
7
,4

1
0

       
8
,3

0
0

               
1
.2

4
%

O
th

e
r R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s

2
1
,2

8
3

         
4
4
,6

5
1

         
3
6
0
,2

1
8

       
(3

1
5
,5

6
7
)

          
-8

7
.6

0
%

In
c
lu

d
e
s
 Y

T
D

 C
a
p
a
c
ity

 F
e
e
s
 $

1
9
,4

0
1
. C

o
n
trib

.C
o
n
s
tru

c
tio

n
 $

0
.

T
o
ta

l O
p
e
ra

tin
g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s

3
5
0
,5

6
7

       
7
2
0
,3

6
1

       
1
,0

2
7
,6

2
8

    
(3

0
7
,2

6
7
)

          
-2

9
.9

0
%

S
a
la

rie
s
 &

 B
e

n
e

fits
9
1
,1

4
0

         
2
0
0
,8

4
7

       
1

8
4

,6
8
3

       
1
6
,1

6
4

             
8
.7

5
%

B
u
d
g
e
t s

p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t p

a
y
ro

ll a
c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 jo

b
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t

O
th

e
r E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

7
3
,5

5
3

         
9
9
,4

1
6

         
1
7
0

,1
5
4

       
(7

0
,7

3
8
)

            
-4

1
.5

7
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
d
.

D
e
p
re

c
ia

tio
n
 

9
6
,6

6
7

         
1
9
2
,5

0
0

       
1

9
3

,3
3
3

       
(8

3
3
)

                 
-0

.4
3
%

T
o
ta

l O
p
e
ra

tin
g
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

2
6
1
,3

6
0

       
4
9
2
,7

6
3

       
5
4
8

,1
7
0

       
(5

5
,4

0
7
)

            
-1

0
.1

1
%

N
e
t O

p
e
ra

tin
g
 In

c
o
m

e
8
9
,2

0
7

         
2
2
7
,5

9
9

       
4

7
9

,4
5
8

       
(2

5
1
,8

5
9
)

          

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o
m

e
6
,1

2
2

           
1
4
,5

1
8

         
1

2
,5

0
0

         
2
,0

1
8

               
1
6
.1

4
%

In
te

re
s
t ra

te
s
 h

ig
h
e
r th

a
n
 a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
.

In
te

re
s
t E

x
p
e
n
s
e

(2
6
,3

1
2
)

       
(5

3
,2

1
2
)

       
(4

1
,1

9
4
)

       
1
2
,0

1
8

             
2
9
.1

7
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 lo

a
n
 p

m
t s

c
h
e
d
u
le

N
e
t In

c
o

m
e
 (L

o
s
s
)

6
9
,0

1
7

         
1
8
8
,9

0
4

       
4

5
0

,7
6
4

       
(2

6
1
,8

6
0
)

          

E
n

te
rp

ris
e
 F

u
n

d
s
 N

e
t In

c
o

m
e
 (L

o
s
s
)

2
0
5
,2

3
5

       
4
7
9
,2

9
8

       
6
3
2

,6
7
1

       
(1

5
3
,3

7
3
)

          

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 4

14



M
c
K

in
le

y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

A
u

g
u

s
t 2

0
2

0

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 5

, S
e
le

c
te

d
 G

ra
p
h
ic

 C
o
m

p
a
ris

o
n
s

C
o

m
p

a
ris

o
n

 o
f W

a
te

r F
u

n
d

 O
p

e
ra

tin
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 &
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 to

 B
u

d
g

e
t

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

W
ater O

perating Revenues

W
ater O

perating Expenses

O
perating Revenue Budget

O
perating Expense Budget

Budgeted Surplus to cover :
*Pay-Go Capital Projects
*Debt Service
*Reserves

15



M
c
K

in
le

y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

A
u

g
u

s
t 2

0
2

0

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 6

, S
e
le

c
te

d
 G

ra
p
h
ic

 C
o
m

p
a
ris

o
n
s

C
o

m
p

a
ris

o
n

 o
f W

a
s

te
w

a
te

r F
u

n
d

 O
p

e
ra

tin
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 &
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 to

 B
u

d
g

e
t

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

W
astew

ater O
perating

Revenues

W
astew

ater O
perating

Expenses

O
perating Revenue Budget

O
perating Expense Budget

Budgeted
Surplus to Cover:

*Pay-Go Capital Projects
*Debt Service
*Reserves

16



M
c

K
in

le
y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 D

is
tric

t

A
c

tiv
ity

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 b
y
 F

u
n

d
, A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t

A
u

g
u

s
t 2

0
2

0

%
 o

f Y
e
a
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

O
v
e
r (U

n
d

e
r)

O
v
e
r (U

n
d

e
r)

1
6
.6

7
%

Y
T

D
Y

T
D

Y
T

D

D
e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t S
u

m
m

a
rie

s
A

u
g

u
s
t

Y
T

D
B

u
d

g
e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t %

N
o

te
s

*P
a
rk

s
 &

 R
e
c
re

a
tio

n

P
ro

g
ra

m
 F

e
e
s
 

9
,5

1
9

           
2
0
,2

1
0

         
3
4
,3

7
4

         
(1

4
,1

6
4
)

            
-4

1
.2

1
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t s

c
h
e
d
u
le

R
e
n
ts

 &
 R

e
la

te
d
 F

e
e
s

1
,1

4
0

           
1
,5

7
5

           
6
,4

8
1

           
(4

,9
0
6
)

              
-7

5
.7

0
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t s

c
h
e
d
u
le

P
ro

p
e
rty

 T
a
x
e
s

-
              

-
              

1
0
5
,6

4
0

       
(1

0
5
,6

4
0
)

          
-1

0
0
.0

0
%

C
o
u
n
ty

 T
a
x
 re

m
itta

n
c
e
: D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r, A

p
ril, a

n
d
 J

u
n
e
; p

e
r A

u
d
ito

r-C
o
n
tro

lle
r's

 o
ffic

e
,

O
th

e
r R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s

1
5
,3

3
8

         
2
8
,3

2
9

         
2
8
,4

4
3

         
(1

1
4
)

                 
-0

.4
0
%

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o
m

e
2
,9

6
4

           
6
,0

6
1

           
7
,5

0
0

           
(1

,4
3
9
)

              
-1

9
.1

9
%

In
te

re
s
t ra

te
s
 h

ig
h
e
r th

a
n
 a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
.

T
o
ta

l R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

2
8
,9

6
2

         
5
6
,1

7
4

         
1
8
2

,4
3
8

       
(1

2
6
,2

6
4
)

          
-6

9
.2

1
%

S
a
la

rie
s
 &

 B
e

n
e

fits
6
2
,8

4
6

         
1
5
9
,8

3
0

       
1

3
4

,7
4
2

       
2
5
,0

8
8

             
1
8
.6

2
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 jo

b
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t

O
th

e
r E

x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s

2
2
,5

4
0

         
3
8
,1

4
7

         
4
0
,3

4
1

         
(2

,1
9
4
)

              
-5

.4
4
%

C
a
p
ita

l E
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s

1
1
,1

8
4

         
1
1
,1

8
4

         
6
,5

0
0

           
4

,6
8
4

               
7

2
. 0

6
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t s

c
h
e
d
u
le

T
o
ta

l  E
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s

9
6
,5

7
0

         
2
0
9
,1

6
2

       
1

8
1

,5
8
3

       
2
7
,5

7
9

             
1
5
.1

9
%

E
x
c
e
s
s
 (D

e
fic

it)
(6

7
,6

0
9
)

       
(1

5
2
,9

8
8
)

     
8

5
5

             
(1

5
3
,8

4
3
)

          

*M
e
a
s
u

re
 B

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

T
o
ta

l R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

2
8
1

             
5
8
6

             
3
7
,3

8
9

         
(3

6
,8

0
3
)

            
-9

8
.4

3
%

In
te

re
s
t &

 u
n
re

a
liz

e
d
 g

a
in

s
/lo

s
s
e
s
; C

o
u
n
ty

 T
a
x
 re

m
itta

n
c
e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r/A

p
ril/J

u
n
e

S
a
la

rie
s
 &

 B
e

n
e

fits
6
,7

4
6

           
1
6
,0

4
7

         
1

1
,7

3
5

         
4
,3

1
2

               
3
6
.7

4
%

B
u
d
g
e
t s

p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 jo

b
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t

O
th

e
r E

x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s

4
,4

6
6

           
6
,4

2
7

           
4
,2

5
0

           
2
,1

7
7

               
5

1
. 2

3
%

C
a
p
ita

l E
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s
/L

o
a
n
 R

e
p
a
y
m

e
n
t

-
              

-
              

2
1
,2

4
2

         
(2

1
,2

4
2
)

            
-1

0
0
.0

0
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t s

c
h
e
d
u
le

T
o
ta

l  E
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s

1
1
,2

1
3

         
2
2
,4

7
4

         
3
7
,2

2
7

         
(1

4
,7

5
3
)

            
-3

9
.6

3
%

E
x
c
e
s
s
 (D

e
fic

it)
(1

0
,9

3
1
)

       
(2

1
,8

8
8
)

       
1
6
2

             
(2

2
,0

5
0
)

            

*S
tre

e
t L

ig
h

ts

T
o
ta

l R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

9
,8

3
5

           
1
9
,7

2
6

         
1
9
,4

7
0

         
2
5
6

                  
1
.3

1
%

S
a
la

rie
s
 &

 B
e

n
e

fits
3
,5

5
9

           
1
4
,7

0
3

         
7

,9
9
2

           
6

,7
1
1

               
8

3
. 9

7
%

O
v
e
ra

g
e
 re

la
te

d
 to

 lu
m

p
 s

u
m

 fin
a
l p

a
y
ro

ll, n
o
t s

p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 o
v
e
r 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s

O
th

e
r E

x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s

3
,2

9
1

           
7
,2

1
5

           
6
,8

1
2

           
4
0
3

                  
5

.9
1
%

C
a
p
ita

l E
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s
/L

o
a
n
 R

e
p
a
y
m

e
n
t

-
              

-
              

3
3
3

             
(3

3
3
)

                 
-1

0
0
.0

0
%

B
u
d
g
e
t is

 s
p
re

a
d
 e

v
e
n
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
, b

u
t a

c
tu

a
ls

 v
a
ry

 b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t s

c
h
e
d
u
le

T
o
ta

l  E
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
s

6
,8

5
0

           
2
1
,9

1
7

         
1

5
,1

3
7

         
6
,7

8
0

               
4
4
.7

9
%

E
x
c
e
s
s
 (D

e
fic

it)
2
,9

8
4

           
(2

,1
9
2
)

         
4

,3
3
3

           
6

,5
2
5

               

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

ta
l F

u
n

d
s
 E

x
c
e
s
s
 (D

e
fic

it)
(7

5
,5

5
6
)

       
(1

7
7
,0

6
7
)

     
5

,3
5
0

           
(1

8
2
,4

1
7
)

          

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 7

17



M
c
K

in
le

y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

A
u

g
u

s
t 2

0
2

0

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 8

, S
e
le

c
te

d
 G

ra
p
h
ic

 C
o
m

p
a
ris

o
n
s

C
o

m
p

a
ris

o
n

 o
f P

a
rk

s
 &

 R
e

c
re

a
tio

n
 T

o
ta

l R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 &
 E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
s

 to
 B

u
d

g
e

t

 $
-

 $
2
0
0

,0
0
0

 $
4
0
0

,0
0
0

 $
6
0
0

,0
0
0

 $
8
0
0

,0
0
0

 $
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
1
,2

0
0
,0

0
0

Parks Revenues

Parks Expenditures

Revenue Budget

Expenditure Budget

18



M
c
K

in
le

y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

A
u

g
u

s
t 2

0
2

0

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 9

, S
e
le

c
te

d
 G

ra
p
h
ic

 C
o
m

p
a
ris

o
n
s

C
o

m
p

a
ris

o
n

 o
f M

e
a

s
u

re
 B

 F
u

n
d

 T
o

ta
l R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

 &
 E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
s

 to
 B

u
d

g
e

t

 $
-

 $
5
0
,0

0
0

 $
1
0
0

,0
0
0

 $
1
5
0

,0
0
0

 $
2
0
0

,0
0
0

 $
2
5
0

,0
0
0

 $
3
0
0

,0
0
0

M
easure B Revenues

M
easure B Expenditures

Revenue Budget

Expenditure Budget

19



M
c
K

in
le

y
v
ille

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

A
u

g
u

s
t 2

0
2

0

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

0
, S

e
le

c
te

d
 G

ra
p
h
ic

 C
o
m

p
a
ris

o
n
s

C
o

m
p

a
ris

o
n

 o
f S

tre
e

t L
ig

h
t F

u
n

d
 T

o
ta

l R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 &
 E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
s

 to
 B

u
d

g
e

t

 $
-

 $
2
0
,0

0
0

 $
4
0
,0

0
0

 $
6
0
,0

0
0

 $
8
0
,0

0
0

 $
1
0
0

,0
0
0

 $
1
2
0

,0
0
0

 $
1
4
0

,0
0
0

Street Light Revenues

Street Light Expenditures

Revenue Budget

Expenditure Budget

20



McKinleyville Community Services District

Capital Expenditure Report

as of August 31, 2020

YTD FY 20-21

August Total Budget Budget $ Budget % Notes

Water Department
Ramey Pump Upgrades -             -                -                 -                 #DIV/0!

Water Tank Painting -             -                500,000         500,000         100% Water Tank Painting & Cathodic

Alternative Energy Master Plan -             -                50,000           50,000           100% Alternative energy master plan

4.5m New Water Tank 26,537        26,537          178,000         151,463         85% Drilling, LACO Assoc.

Production Meter Replacements -             -                -                 -                 #DIV/0! Production Meter Replacement

N.BankBoosterStation VFD#2 replacement -             -                25,000           25,000           100% Emergency Water Supply

Emergency Generator-Cochran -             -                25,000           25,000           100% CochranEmergency Generator

Fire Hydrant System Upgrade -             -                7,000             7,000             100% Fire Hydrant System Upgrade

Tank Seismic Actuators -             -                20,000           20,000           100% Tank Seismic Actuators

Customer Radio Meter Testing -             -                10,000           10,000           100% Customer Radio meter testing

Water Tank Upgrade-Norton#2 Tree Svc -             -                7,000             7,000             100% Water Tank Upgrade-Norton Tree 

Water Main Rehab & Replacement 74               1,440            900,000         898,560         100% Water Main Rehab

Property Purchase- Tank Site -             -                -                 -                 #DIV/0! Property Purch/Imprv.Tank Site

Subtotal 26,611        27,977          1,722,000      1,694,023      98%

Wastewater Department

Sewer Main Rehab & Replacement 72               1,395            900,000         898,605         100% Sewer Main Rehab

WWMF Sludge Disposal - next -             -                240,000         240,000         100% Sludge handling/disposal

WWMF Recirculation Valve Replacement -             -                12,000           12,000           100% Recirculatioin Valve replacemt

Alternative Energy Master Plan -             -                50,000           50,000           100% Alternative energy master plan

WWMF Chlorine Injector/Controllers 28,996        28,996          10,000           (18,996)          -190% Chlorine Injector/Controllers

Collection Upgrades-UndercrossingsProj 27,542        33,271          1,335,000      1,301,729      98% Collection System upgrades

Sewer Lift Stn Upgrade-Hiller 6,804          6,804            538,000         531,196         99% Sewer lift stn Upgrade-Hiller

Solar Project - CWSRF Grant/Loan 2,290          5,389            1,250,000      1,244,612      100% WWMF Solar Project

WWMF Alt. Disinfection/ Feasibility Study -             -                70,000           70,000           100% Alt. Disinfection Feasibility Study

WWMF - next NPDES Permit 14,218        24,796          50,000           25,204           50% NPDES Permit Project

Customer Radio Meter Testing 500             -                10,000           10,000           100% Radio meters testing

Underground pipe locator & camera -             -                5,000             5,000             100% Underground pipe locator & camer

Flow Totalizers -             39,698          45,000           5,302             12% Flow Totalizers

Sewer Lift Station Other Upgrades -             181,321        -                 (181,321)        #DIV/0! SwrLiftStnUpgrade-Letz

Subtotal 80,423        321,669        4,515,000      4,193,331      93%

Water & Wastewater Operations

Heavy Equipment -             -                150,000         150,000         100% backhoe, emerg.generators, aircom

Utility Vehicles -             -                38,000           38,000           100% CCTV truck, 3/4 or 1-ton Pickup

Office, Corporate Yard & Shops 55,777        55,777          25,000           (30,777)          -123% Facilities upgrade/sealcoat

Computers & Software -             -                18,000           18,000           100% Server, PCs, GIS/SEMS/CADD

Fischer Ranch - Reclamation Site Upgrade (tr  1,565          4,595            200,000         195,405         98% Match to 3rd party grant funding

Fischer Ranch - Barn & Fence upgrades, Und 148             148               55,000           54,852           100% Underground valving/piping

Pialorsi Ranch Survey -             3,009            30,000           26,991           90% Pialorsi Ranch Survey

Small Equipment & Other -             -                40,000           40,000           100% Misc,response, & GPS surveying

Subtotal 55,777        63,529          556,000         492,471         89%

Enterprise Funds Total 164,522      413,175        6,793,000      6,379,825      94%

Parks & Recreation Department

Hiller Park & Sports Complex 11,184        11,184          -                 (11,184)          #DIV/0! Hiller Sports Sealcoat-CountyGrant

Pierson Park Upgrades -             -                -                 -                 #DIV/0!

Washington Avenue Park Project -             -                -                 -                 #DIV/0!

Azalea Hall Projects -             -                32,000           32,000           100% Flooring, Pkg Lot resurface

McKinleyville Activity Center Upgrades -             -                6,000             6,000             100% Major Appliance replacement

Law Enforcement Facility Improvements -             -                24,000           24,000           100% LEF flooring/Library Carpet

Projects Funded by Quimby/Other Funds -             -                -                 -                 #DIV/0! Covered Picnic Area

Projects Funded by Measure B Renewal -             -                -                 -                 #DIV/0! Teen Center Constr&Loan svc

Other Parks Projects & Equipment -             -                14,000           14,000           100% Brush&LawnMowers/Trailer

Subtotal 11,184        11,184          76,000           64,816           85%

Streetlights

Pole Replacement -             -                2,000             2,000             100% Pole Replacement

   Subtotal -                2,000             2,000             100%

Governmental Funds Total 11,184        11,184          78,000           66,816           86%

All Funds Total 186,890      424,359        6,871,000      6,446,641      94%

Remaining

Treasurer's Report Page 11

21



M
c
K

in
le

y
v

ille
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f L

o
n

g
-T

e
rm

 D
e
b

t R
e
p

o
rt

P
rin

c
ip

a
l M

a
tu

ritie
s
 a

n
d

 

a
s
 o

f A
u

g
u

s
t 3

1
, 2

0
2
0

S
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 In

te
re

s
t

 %
 

 M
a
tu

rity
 

D
a
te

 

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 - J
u

ly
 3

1
, 

2
0

2
0

 

 B
a

la
n

c
e

- A
u

g
u

s
t 

3
1

, 2
0

2
0

 
 F

Y
-2

1
 

 T
h

e
re

a
fte

r 

W
a
te

r F
u

n
d

:

I-B
a
n
k
 

8
/1

/3
0

P
5
7
7
,2

0
2
.6

2
          

5
7
7
,2

0
2
.6

2
         

-
                  

5
7
7
,2

0
2
.6

9
         

In
te

re
s
t

3
.3

7
%

I
9
,7

2
5
.8

7
         

1
0
2
,5

6
7
.8

1
         

S
ta

te
 o

f C
A

 E
n
e
rg

y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (A

R
R

A
)

1
2
/2

2
/2

6
P

7
8
,1

6
5
.6

8
            

7
8
,1

6
5
.6

8
           

1
1
,6

9
8
.2

7
       

6
6
,4

6
7
.2

0
           

In
te

re
s
t

1
.0

%
I

7
5
2
.5

7
            

2
,0

1
2
.1

3
             

S
ta

te
 o

f C
A

 (D
a
v
is

 G
ru

n
s
k
y
)

1
/1

/3
3

P
1
,3

6
4
,5

8
4
.8

9
       

1
,3

6
4
,5

8
4
.8

9
      

9
0
,1

2
8
.4

8
       

1
,2

7
4
,4

5
6
.4

1
      

S
ta

te
 o

f C
A

 (D
a
v
is

 G
ru

n
s
k
y
) D

e
fe

rre
d
 In

te
re

s
t

1
/1

/3
3

P
2
2
1
,4

5
1
.2

1
          

2
2
1
,4

5
1
.2

1
         

1
7
,0

3
5
.1

2
       

2
0
4
,4

1
6
.0

9
         

In
te

re
s
t

2
.5

%
I

3
4
,1

1
4
.6

2
       

2
1
6
,4

6
0
.7

2
         

T
o
ta

l W
a
te

r F
u
n
d
-P

rin
c
ip

a
l

2
,2

4
1
,4

0
4
.4

0
       

2
,2

4
1
,4

0
4
.4

0
      

1
1
8
,8

6
1
.8

7
     

2
,1

2
2
,5

4
2
.3

9
      

T
o
ta

l W
a
te

r F
u
n
d
-In

te
re

s
t

4
4
,5

9
3
.0

6
       

3
2
1
,0

4
0
.6

6
         

   T
o

ta
l W

a
te

r F
u

n
d

2
,2

4
1
,4

0
4
.4

0
       

2
,2

4
1
,4

0
4
.4

0
      

1
6
3
,4

5
4
.9

3
     

2
,4

4
3
,5

8
3
.0

5
      

W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r F
u

n
d

:

W
W

M
F

 S
R

F
 L

o
a
n

7
/3

1
/4

7
P

1
4
,8

6
9
,5

5
5
.0

2
     

1
4
,4

4
4
,4

3
5
.8

2
    

-
                  

1
4
,9

0
5
,4

3
0
.4

1
    

In
te

re
s
t

1
.6

%
I

-
                  

3
,4

5
7
,4

3
0
.3

4
      

C
h
a
s
e
 B

a
n
k
 (P

ia
lo

rs
i P

ro
p
e
rty

)
3
/8

/3
5

P
1
,5

0
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
       

1
,4

6
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
      

4
4
,2

0
0
.0

0
       

1
,4

2
4
,8

0
0
.0

0
      

In
te

re
s
t

2
.9

%
I

-
                      

-
                      

1
3
,9

5
5
.5

1
       

2
0
4
,5

9
4
.8

5
         

U
S

D
A

 (S
e
w

e
r B

o
n
d
)

8
/1

/2
2

P
2
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
          

1
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
         

-
                  

1
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
         

In
te

re
s
t

5
.0

%
I

3
,6

2
5
.0

0
         

6
,8

7
5
.0

0
             

T
o
ta

l W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r F
u
n
d
-P

rin
c
ip

a
l

1
6
,6

0
3
,0

5
5
.0

2
     

1
6
,0

5
8
,4

3
5
.8

2
    

4
4
,2

0
0
.0

0
       

1
6
,4

7
5
,2

3
0
.4

1
    

T
o
ta

l W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r F
u
n
d
-In

te
re

s
t

1
7
,5

8
0
.5

1
       

3
,6

6
8
,9

0
0
.1

9
      

   T
o

ta
l S

e
w

e
r F

u
n

d
1
6
,6

0
3
,0

5
5
.0

2
     

1
6
,0

5
8
,4

3
5
.8

2
    

6
1
,7

8
0
.5

1
       

2
0
,1

4
4
,1

3
0
.6

0
    

M
e
a
s
. B

 F
u

n
d

: T
e
e
n

/C
o

m
m

 C
e
n

te
r L

o
a
n

1
1
/1

/2
9

P
1
,0

1
0
,9

4
4
.0

0
       

1
,0

1
0
,9

4
4
.0

0
      

9
2
,0

5
4
. 0

0
       

9
2
7
,6

7
0
.0

0
         

3
.5

5
%

I
3
5
,3

9
7
.6

0
       

1
5
5
,1

3
1
.2

9
         

             T
o
ta

l P
rin

c
ip

a
l

1
9
,8

5
5
,4

0
3
.4

2
     

1
9
,3

1
0
,7

8
4
.2

2
    

2
5
5
,1

1
5
.8

7
     

1
9
,5

2
5
,4

4
2
.8

0
    

             T
o
ta

l In
te

re
s
t

9
7
,5

7
1
.1

7
       

4
,1

4
5
,0

7
2
.1

4
      

T
o

ta
l

1
9
,8

5
5
,4

0
3
.4

2
     

1
9
,3

1
0
,7

8
4
.2

2
    

3
5
2
,6

8
7
.0

4
     

2
3
,6

7
0
,5

1
4
.9

4
    

N
o

n
-d

e
b

t L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 L
ia

b
ilitie

s
, D

is
tric

t-w
id

e

O
P

E
B

 L
ia

b
ility

8
,4

5
5
,1

1
8
.0

1
      

C
a
lP

E
R

S
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 L

ia
b
ility

1
,6

9
4
,9

2
1
.1

5
      

T
re

a
s
u

re
r's

 R
e

p
o

rt P
a

g
e

 1
2

 

22



 M
cKinleyville Com

m
unity Services District

 Cash Disbursem
ent Report 

For the Period August 1 through August 31, 2020

Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description

Accounts Payable Disbursem
ents

37344
8/3/2020

ACC04
ACCU

RATE DRU
G TESTIN

G SERVICE
90.00

                     
522

DO
T PHYSICAL EXAM

37345
8/3/2020

BU
R01

M
ARY C. BU

RKE
125.00

                   
   C00731 

BO
ARD M

TG 7/1/2020

37346
8/3/2020

GHD01
GHD   

100.00
                   

145474
GRAN

T FU
N

DIN
G ASSISTAN

CE

37347
8/3/2020

M
AY02

DEN
N

IS M
AYO

125.00
                   

   C00731 
BO

ARD M
TG 7/1/2020

37348
8/3/2020

M
U

N
02

M
U

N
ICIPAL M

AIN
TEN

AN
CE

569.51
                   

8015422
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES

37349
8/3/2020

PGE11
P&

GE STREETLIGHTS
24.18

                     
   C00731 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC SEW

ER PU
M

P

37350
8/3/2020

PGE12
P&

GE   
57.69

                     
   C00731 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC HILLER SPO

RTS SITE

37351
8/3/2020

PRO
01

PRO
FESSIO

N
AL CREDIT SERVICE

30.56
                     

   C00731 
RECO

VERY O
F BAD DEBT

37352
8/3/2020

SHN
01

SHN
 EN

GIN
EERIN

G
2,716.25

                
106018

M
AD RIVER PU

BLIC ACCESS PRO
J

37353
8/3/2020

SO
U

03
FSA REIM

BU
RSEM

EN
T AS

257.80
                   

   C00731 
FSA REIM

BU
RSEM

EN
T AS

37354
8/3/2020

TW
O

01
TW

O
 BRO

THERS CATHO
DIC SERVICE

1,600.00
                

751
PRO

FESSIO
N

AL SERVICES

37355
8/3/2020

U
N

D01
U

N
DERGRO

U
N

D SERVICE ALERT
863.17

                   
202015243

AN
N

U
AL SU

BSCRIPTIO
N

37356
8/3/2020

VER01
VERIZO

N
 W

IRELESS
75.74

                     
   C00731 

CELL PHO
N

ES/ TABLET

37357
8/7/2020

M
AL02

M
. AN

D C. M
ALIN

1,000.00
                

   C00807P
HILLER TRAILER PU

RCHASE DEPO
SIT

37358
8/10/2020

10102
101 N

ETLIN
K

960.00
                   

   C00810 
BACKU

P IN
TERN

ET SERVICES

37359
8/10/2020

ACW
01

CB&
T/ACW

A-JPIA           
10,548.40

             
   C00810 

GRP. HEALTH IN
S

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

3

23



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description

37360
8/10/2020

ADV01
ADVAN

CED SECU
RITY SYSTEM

966.00
                   

523487
SECU

RITY SYSTEM
S

37361
8/10/2020

BAD01
BADGER M

ETER, Inc.
354.18

                   
80057566

BE ACO
N

 M
O

BILE HO
STIN

G

37362
8/10/2020

CO
A01

CO
ASTAL BU

SIN
ESS SYSTEM

S
1,110.83

                
   C00731 

CO
PIER M

O
N

THLY PM
T

37363
8/10/2020

CO
R01

CO
RBIN

 W
ILLITS SYSTEM

S, IN
C

924.31
                   

   C00810 
M

O
M

S M
O

N
THLY M

AIN
TEN

AN
CE

37364
8/10/2020

FED02
FEDAK &

 BRO
W

N
 LLP

791.00
                   

   C00810 
ACCT. / AU

DIT

37365
8/10/2020

G3E01
G3 EN

GIN
EERIN

G IN
C.

39,698.00
             

2020-6731 
SM

ARTCO
VER SYSTEM

S

37366
8/10/2020

GAN
01

GAN
 CO

N
FEREN

CIN
G

15.38
                     

45301
PRO

FESSIO
N

AL SERVICES

37367
8/10/2020

GHD01
GHD   

15,018.75
             

146347
HILLER LIFT STATIO

N
 U

PGRADE
5,728.39

                
146841

SEW
ER CRO

SSIN
G PRO

JECT
3,098.25

                
146938

W
ASTEW

ATER M
ICRO

GRID PRO
J

2,688.50
                

146940
W

ATER/SEW
ER M

ASTER PLAN
Check Total:

26,533.89
             

37368
8/10/2020

HAR13
The Hartford - Priority A

447.13
                   

   C00810 
GRO

U
P LIFE IN

SU
RAN

CE

37369
8/10/2020

HU
M

01
HU

M
BO

LDT BAY M
U

N
ICIPAL W

ATER DISTRICT
96,231.46

             
   C00810 

W
TR PU

RCHASED

37370
8/10/2020

HU
M

08
HU

M
BO

LDT SAN
ITATIO

N
2,774.90

                
   C00810 

TRASH SERVICE

37371
8/10/2020

IN
D02

IN
DU

STRIAL ELECTRIC SERVICE
80.83

                     
36414

REPAIRS/SU
PPLY

37372
8/10/2020

IN
F02

IN
FO

SEN
D

2,857.60
                

175838
PRIN

TIN
G/M

AILIN
G O

F U
TILITY BILLS

37373
8/10/2020

M
CK04

M
CK ACE HARDW

ARE
506.54

                   
   C00810 

REPAIRS/SU
PPLY

37374
8/10/2020

M
ER03

M
ERCER, FRASER CO

M
PAN

Y
166,302.25

           
1

HILLER LIFT STATIO
N

 U
PGRADE

37375
8/10/2020

M
IT01

M
ITCHELL LAW

 FIRM
        

2,020.00
                

46093
LEGAL SERVICES

914.50
                   

46094
LEGAL SERVICES

545.00
                   

46095
LEGAL SERVICES

92.50
                     

46096
LEGAL SERVICES

Check Total:
3,572.00

                

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

4

24



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description

37376
8/10/2020

M
U

D01
M

U
DDY W

ATERS CO
FFEE CO

.,IN
C

160.00
                   

   C00810 
O

FFICE SU
PPLIES

37377
8/10/2020

O
RE01

O
'REILLY AU

TO
M

O
TIVE, IN

C.
21.54

                     
   C00707 

RE PAIRS/SU
PPLY

29.06
                     

   C00810 
REPAIRS/SU

PPLY
Check Total:

50.60
                     

37378
8/10/2020

SEQ
01

Sequoia Gas Co.
196.30

                   
   C00810 

FU
EL/ HILLER SPO

RTS SITE

37379
8/10/2020

SU
D01

SU
DDEN

LIN
K

194.23
                   

   C00731 
TEEN

 CEN
TER IN

TERN
ET     

37380
8/10/2020

U
M

P01
U

M
PQ

U
A BAN

K
88.47

                     
   0720CT 

O
FFICE SU

PPLIES
8.66

                       
   0720DS 

O
FFICE SU

PPLIES
395.00

                   
   0720JH 

CW
EA REN

EW
AL

54.85
                     

   0720LF 
TRAIN

IN
G/ REC O

FFICE SU
PP

99.00
                     

  0720 PK 
SO

ALR PAN
EL SYSTEM

460.00
                   

0720BO
ARD TRAIN

IN
G/ O

FFICE SU
PPLIES

676.28
                   

0720PARKS 
REC SU

PPLIES/ REPAIRS &
 S

0.74
                       

0720RO
U

N
D RO

U
N

D U
P TO

 N
EXT DO

LLAR
Check Total:

1,783.00
                

37381
8/10/2020

U
SB01

U
.S. BAN

K TRU
ST N

.A.
7,270.83

                
   C00810 

SEW
ER BO

N
D PAYM

EN
T

37382
8/10/2020

VAL01
VALLEY PACIFIC PETRO

LEU
M

 
540.66

                   
   C00810 

GAS/O
IL/LU

BE

37383
8/10/2020

VAL02
VALLEY PACIFIC PETRO

LEU
M

 
2,595.90

                
   C00810 

GAS/O
IL/LU

BE

37384
8/10/2020

\B019
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R BL

80.37
                     

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R BL

37385
8/10/2020

\D011
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R DE

103.54
                   

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R DE

37386
8/10/2020

\D012
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R DE

62.15
                     

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R DE

37387
8/10/2020

\K011
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R KI

70.21
                     

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R KI

37388
8/10/2020

\K012
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R KU

89.87
                     

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R KU

37389
8/10/2020

\M
001

M
Q

 CU
STO

M
ER REFU

N
D FO

R M
C

50.49
                     

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R M

C

37390
8/10/2020

\P005
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R PO

53.84
                     

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R PO

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

5

25



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description

37391
8/10/2020

\Y006
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R YU

38.80
                     

000C00801 
M

Q
 CU

STO
M

ER REFU
N

D FO
R YU

37392
8/11/2020

HU
M

05
HU

M
BO

LDT CO
U

N
TY

26.50
                     

   C00811P
M

O
BILEHO

M
E TAX CLEARAN

CE 

37393
8/14/2020

ACC04
ACCU

RATE DRU
G TESTIN

G SERVICES
120.00

                   
503

PRO
FESSIO

N
AL SERVICES

37394
8/14/2020

BAS01
BASIC LABO

RATO
RY IN

C.
197.50

                   
2007331

LAB TESTIN
G

37395
8/14/2020

CHA07
CHASE BAN

K
52,397.67

             
38531

PIALO
RSI LO

AN
 PAYM

EN
T

37396
8/14/2020

DRU
01

DRU
GFREE U

SA
214.00

                   
6887

DRU
G TESTIN

G

37397
8/14/2020

HAR03
HARPER M

O
TO

RS CO
.

143.73
                   

   C00810 
VEHICLE REPAIRS

37398
8/14/2020

IN
F03

IN
FIN

ITE CO
N

SU
LTIN

G SERVICE
373.78

                   
8574

SU
BSCRIPTIO

N
S

2,250.00
                

8583
PRO

FESSIO
N

AL SERVICES
Check Total:

2,623.78
                

37399
8/14/2020

ISE01
I-SECU

RE IN
C.

393.00
                   

91120
O

FFICE SU
PPLIES/ SHRED SERVICE

37400
8/14/2020

KER01
KERN

EN
 CO

N
STRU

CTIO
N

490.52
                   

13770
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES

37401
8/14/2020

LAI01
LAN

CE LAIR
135.61

                   
   C00813 

SAFETY ALLO
TM

EN
T REIM

B LL

37402
8/14/2020

M
AD03

M
AD RIVER CO

M
M

U
N

ITY HO
SPITAL

145.00
                   

180538
PRO

FESSIO
N

AL SERVICES

37403
8/14/2020

M
ER03

M
ERCER, FRASER CO

M
PAN

Y
309.23

                   
101339

REPAIRS/ SU
PPLIES

37404
8/14/2020

M
IL01

M
iller Farm

s N
ursery

138.37
                   

   C00810 
REPAIRS/SU

PPLY

37405
8/14/2020

N
O

R01
N

O
RTH CO

AST LABO
RATO

RIES 
14,140.00

             
   C00813 

LAB TESTIN
G

37406
8/14/2020

N
O

R13
N

O
RTHERN

 CALIFO
RN

IA SAFET
120.00

                   
26666

SAFETY TRAIN
IN

G

37407
8/14/2020

PGE01
PG &

 E (O
ffice &

 Field)
28,608.01

             
   C00814 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC

37408
8/14/2020

PO
I01

PO
IN

TS W
EST SU

RVEYIN
G CO

.
2,953.75

                
11904

PIALO
RSI RAN

CH SU
RVEY

37409
8/14/2020

S&
S02

S &
 S W

O
RLDW

IDE, IN
C.

21.96
                     

100562738
REC PRO

GRAM
 SU

PPLIES

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

6

26



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description

37410
8/14/2020

STA11
STAPLES CREDIT PLAN

564.97
                   

   C00813 
O

FFICE SU
PPLIES

37411
8/14/2020

THA01
THATCHER CO

M
PAN

Y, IN
C.

1,383.78
                

   C00810 
RE PAIRS/SU

PPLY TREATM
EN

T

37412
8/14/2020

THO
02

Thom
as Hom

e Center
1,112.15

                
   C00813 

REPAIRS/SU
PPLY

37413
8/14/2020

THR01
THRIFTY SU

PPLY CO
M

PAN
Y

2,534.89
                

   C00810 
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES

37414
8/14/2020

W
IL09

W
ILLDAN

 FIN
AN

CIAL SERVICE
466.46

                   
010-45335 

M
EASU

RE B

37415
8/14/2020

ZEP01
ZEP M

AN
U

FACTU
RIN

G CO
.

148.68
                   

   C00810 
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES

37416
8/19/2020

CO
U

01
CO

U
N

TY O
F HU

M
BO

LDT
677.00

                   
   C00819P

TAX DEPO
SIT FY 20-21

37417
8/24/2020

*0005
JO

B AT5 DEPO
SIT REFU

N
D CP

374.63
                   

   C00820 
JO

B AT5 DEPO
SIT REFU

N
D CP

37418
8/24/2020

*0006
JO

B AR0 DEPO
SIT REFU

N
D M

F
128.87

                   
   C00820 

JO
B AR0 DEPO

SIT REFU
N

D M
F

37419
8/24/2020

*0009
JO

B AT1 DEPO
SIT REFU

N
D HG

33.64
                     

   C00820 
JO

B AT1 DEPO
SIT REFU

N
D HG

37420
8/24/2020

ATT01
AT&

T  
3,039.16

                
   C00820 

PHO
N

E/IN
TERN

ET SERVICES

37421
8/24/2020

ATT02
AT&

T                     
1,110.47

                
   C00820 

TELEPHO
N

E ADM
IN

/GEN
ERAL

37422
8/24/2020

ATT04
AT&

T                     
912.54

                   
   C00820 

SW
ITCHED ETHERN

ET SERVICE

37423
8/24/2020

ATT05
AT&

T                     
191.10

                   
   C00820 

TELEPHO
N

E TEEN
/FAM

 CTR

37424
8/24/2020

ATT06
AT&

T                     
245.12

                   
   C00820 

TELEPHO
N

E AZALEA HALL

37425
8/24/2020

CW
E01

CW
EA  

91.00
                     

   C00820 
CERT REN

EW
AL-D. SM

ALL

37426
8/24/2020

DEL02
DELFIN

O
, M

ADDEN
, O

'M
ALLEY

913.00
                   

142590
LEGAL SERVICES

37427
8/24/2020

GRA02
GRAIN

GER
300.43

                   
961935076

REPAIRS/ SU
PPLIES

37428
8/24/2020

HIG02
HIGH RO

CK CO
N

SERVATIO
N

 CAM
P

200.00
                   

   C00820 
PRO

FESSIO
N

AL SERVICES

37429
8/24/2020

HO
O

01
HO

O
VEN

 &
 CO

., IN
C.

11,184.00
             

16984
SEAL CO

AT PRO
J.HILLER SPO

RTS SITE

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

7

27



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description

37430
8/24/2020

HU
M

14
HU

M
BO

LDT HU
M

AN
 RESO

U
RCES

177.91
                   

76282
PRO

FESSIO
N

AL SERVICES

37431
8/24/2020

JAC04
JACKSO

N
 &

 EKLU
N

D, IN
C.

540.00
                   

431564
ACCT . / AU

DIT

37432
8/24/2020

KER01
KERN

EN
 CO

N
STRU

CTIO
N

488.88
                   

14080
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES

37433
8/24/2020

M
CK11

M
CKIN

LEYVILLE SEN
IO

R CEN
TER

21.40
                     

   C00820 
PARKS SHARE O

F IN
TERN

ET

37434
8/24/2020

PGE10
PG&

E STREETLIGHTS
3.53

                       
   C00820 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC S.L.- ZO

N
E

37435
8/24/2020

STA08
SW

RCB ACCO
U

N
TIN

G O
FFICE

663,032.08
           

   C00813 
SRF LO

AN
 PAYM

EN
T

37436
8/24/2020

W
IL09

W
ILLDAN

 FIN
AN

CIAL SERVICE
4,466.46

                
45335

M
EASU

RE B

37437
8/31/2020

BAD01
BADGER M

ETER, Inc.
7,399.47

                
   C00827 

REPAIRS/ SU
PPLIES

37438
8/31/2020

BO
R01

BO
RGES &

 M
AHO

N
EY CO

.
27,574.90

             
   C00827 

W
W

M
F SEW

ER SYSTEM

37439
8/31/2020

BTM
01

BT M
ETAL SALES &

 FABRICAT
55.31

                     
36914

REPAIRS/SU
PPLY

37440
8/31/2020

BU
R01

M
ARY C. BU

RKE
125.00

                   
   C00827 

BO
ARD M

TG 8/5/2020

37441
8/31/2020

CO
A01

CO
ASTAL BU

SIN
ESS SYSTEM

S
1,230.52

                
   C00827 

CO
PIER M

O
N

THLY PAYM
EN

T

37442
8/31/2020

CO
R01

CO
RBIN

 W
ILLITS SYSTEM

S, IN
C

924.31
                   

   C00827 
M

O
M

S M
O

N
THLY M

AIN
TEN

AN
CE

37443
8/31/2020

DEP05
DEPARTM

EN
T O

F JU
STICE

64.00
                     

461536
FIN

GERPRIN
TIN

G

37444
8/31/2020

GHD01
GHD   

146.00
                   

147251
W

ATER/SEW
ER M

ASTER PLAN
350.00

                   
147462

GRAN
T FU

N
DIN

G ASSISTAN
CE

27,542.21
             

147740
HIGHW

AY 101 SEW
ER CRO

SSIN
G

Check Total:
28,038.21

             

37445
8/31/2020

GRA02
GRAIN

GER
23.28

                     
962668185

REPAIRS/ SU
PPLIES

45.77
                     

962820154
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES
Check Total:

69.05
                     

37446
8/31/2020

HCD01
HCD   

73.00
                     

   C00827 
M

O
BILE HO

M
E PU

RCHASE-DECA

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

8

28



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description
37447

8/31/2020
IN

D02
IN

DU
STRIAL ELECTRIC SERVICE

204.04
                   

   C00827 
RE PAIRS/SU

PPLY

37448
8/31/2020

M
AY02

DEN
N

IS M
AYO

125.00
                   

   C00827 
BO

ARD M
TG 8/5/2020

37449
8/31/2020

M
CK03

M
CKIN

LEYVILLE O
FFICE SU

PP
11.75

                     
52188

SO
LAR PRO

JECT

37450
8/31/2020

M
CM

01
M

cM
aster-Carr Supply Co.

168.23
                   

43428700
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES

37451
8/31/2020

M
U

D01
M

U
DDY W

ATERS CO
FFEE CO

.,IN
C

80.00
                     

57670190
O

FFICE SU
PPLIES

37452
8/31/2020

PGE05
PG&

E STREETLIGHTS
371.73

                   
   C00827 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC S.L.- ZO

N
E

37453
8/31/2020

PGE06
PG&

E-STREETLIGHTS
17.04

                     
   C00827 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC S.L.- ZO

N
E

37454
8/31/2020

PGE07
PG&

E STREETLIGHTS
1,055.99

                
   C00831 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC

37455
8/31/2020

PGE08
PG&

E STREETLIGHTS
16.34

                     
   C00831 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC S.L.- ZO

N
E

37456
8/31/2020

PGE09
PG&

E STREETLIGHTS
82.69

                     
   C00827 

GAS &
 ELECTRIC S.L.- ZO

N
E

37457
8/31/2020

PGE14
PACIFIC GAS &

 ELECTRIC CO
14.72

                     
   C00831 

GAS/ELECTRIC AN
DERSO

N
 AVE

37458
8/31/2020

SLO
01

FSA REIM
BU

RSEM
EN

T DS
152.86

                   
   C00831 

FSA REIM
BU

RSEM
EN

T DS

37459
8/31/2020

SO
U

03
FSA REIM

BU
RSEM

EN
T AS

167.80
                   

   C00827 
FSA REIM

BU
RSEM

EN
T AS

37460
8/31/2020

SU
D01

SU
DDEN

LIN
K

194.23
                   

   C00827 
TEEN

 CEN
TER IN

TERN
ET     

37461
8/31/2020

THA01
THATCHER CO

M
PAN

Y, IN
C.

1,383.78
                

   C00827 
REPAIRS/SU

PPLY TREATM
EN

T

37462
8/31/2020

THR01
THRIFTY SU

PPLY CO
M

PAN
Y

213.27
                   

   C00827 
REPAIRS/ SU

PPLIES
1,147.15

                
   C00828 

W
W

M
F U

PGRADE
Check Total:

1,360.42
                

37463
8/31/2020

U
SA01

U
SA BLU

EBO
O

K
991.68

                   
   C00827 

LAB TESTIN
G SU

PPLIES

37464
8/31/2020

U
SB01

U
.S. BAN

K TRU
ST N

.A.
7,270.83

                
   C00827 

SEW
ER BO

N
D PAYM

EN
T

D00050
8/5/2020

BAR02
SHEL BARSAN

TI
125.00

                   
   C00731 

BO
ARD M

TG 7/1/2020

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 1

9

29



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description
D00050

8/5/2020
CO

R07
JO

HN
 W

. CO
RBETT

125.00
                   

   C00731 
B O

ARD M
TG 7/1/2020

D00050
8/5/2020

CO
U

09
DAVID CO

U
CH

125.00
                   

   C00731 
BO

ARD M
TG 7/1/2020

D00051
8/31/2020

BAR02
SHEL BARSAN

TI
125.00

                   
   C00827 

BO
ARD M

TG 8/5/2020

D00051
8/31/2020

CO
R07

JO
HN

 W
. CO

RBETT
125.00

                   
   C00827 

BO
ARD M

TG 8/5/2020

D00051
8/31/2020

CO
U

09
DAVID CO

U
CH

125.00
                   

   C00827 
BO

ARD M
TG 8/5/2020

D00051
8/31/2020

M
AL02

M
 &

 C M
ALIN

54,000.00
             

   C00831 
PU

RCHASE O
F HILLER PARK TRAILER

1,307,144.07
        

Total Disbursem
ents, Accounts Payable:

1,307,144.07
    

Payroll Related Disbursem
ents

16995-17002
8/6/2020

Various Em
ployees

10,528.04
             

Payroll Checks

17003
8/6/2020

CAL12
CalPERS 457 Plan

4,000.00
                

   C00731 
RETIREM

EN
T

7,046.24
                

   C00806 
RETIREM

EN
T

719.04
                   

  1C00806 
PERS 457 LO

AN
 PM

T
Check Total:

11,765.28
             

17004
8/6/2020

DIR01
DIRECT DEPO

SIT VEN
DO

R- U
S

41,392.56
             

   C00806 
Direct Deposit

17005
8/6/2020

EM
P01

Em
ploym

ent Developm
ent

-
                         

   C00723A
STATE IN

CO
M

E TAX
17005

8/6/2020
EM

P01
Em

ploym
ent Developm

ent
46.94

                     
   C00731 

STATE IN
CO

M
E TAX

2,031.49
                

   C00806 
STATE IN

CO
M

E TAX
28.73

                     
  1C00723A

SDI
47.11

                     
  1C00731 

SDI
737.00

                   
  1C00806 

SDI
Check Total:

2,891.27
                

17006
8/6/2020

HEA01
HEALTHEQ

U
ITY, ATTN

: CLIN
T

175.00
                   

   C00806 
HSA

17007
8/6/2020

HU
M

29
U

M
PQ

U
A BAN

K--PAYRO
LL DEP.

-
                         

   C00723A
FEDERAL IN

CO
M

E TAX
156.46

                   
   C00731 

FEDERAL IN
CO

M
E TAX

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 2

0

30



Check
Check

Vendor
N

et
N

um
ber

Date
N

um
ber

N
am

e
Am

ount
Invoice #

Description
6,355.60

                
   C00806 

FEDERAL IN
CO

M
E TAX

356.26
                   

  1C00723A
FICA

584.18
                   

  1C00731 
FICA

9,136.94
                

  1C00806 
FICA

83.32
                     

  2C00723A
M

EDICARE
136.62

                   
  2C00731 

M
EDICARE

2,136.88
                

  2C00806 
M

EDICARE
Check Total:

18,946.26
             

17008
8/6/2020

ACW
01

CB&
T/ACW

A-JPIA           
61,297.33

             
   C00731 

M
ED-DEN

TAL-EAP IN
SU

R

17009
8/6/2020

PU
B01

Public Em
ployees PERS

22,175.07
             

   C00731 
PERS PAYRO

LL REM
ITTAN

CE

17010-17017
8/24/2020

Various Em
ployees

9,252.50
                

Payroll Checks

17018
8/24/2020

CAL12
CalPERS 457 Plan

6,487.74
                

   C00824 
RETIREM

EN
T

719.04
                   

  1C00824 
PERS 457 LO

AN
 PM

T
Check Total:

7,206.78
                

17019
8/24/2020

DIR01
DIRECT DEPO

SIT VEN
DO

R- U
S

35,878.25
             

   C00824 
Direct Deposit

17020
8/24/2020

EM
P01

Em
ploym

ent Developm
ent

1,546.23
                

   C00824 
STATE IN

CO
M

E TAX
641.66

                   
  1C00824 

SDI
Check Total:

2,187.89
                

17021
8/24/2020

HEA01
HEALTHEQ

U
ITY, ATTN

: CLIN
T

175.00
                   

   C00824 
HSA

17022
8/24/2020

HU
M

29
U

M
PQ

U
A BAN

K--PAYRO
LL DEP.

5,287.29
                

   C00824 
FEDERAL IN

CO
M

E TAX
7,955.88

                
  1C00824 

FICA
1,860.70

                
  2C00824 

M
EDICARE

Check Total:
15,103.87

             

Total Disbursem
ents, Payroll:

238,975.10
        

T
o

ta
l C

h
e
c
k
/W

ire
 D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

ts
:

1
,5

4
6
,1

1
9
.1

7
  

T
re

a
s
u
re

r's
 R

e
p
o
rt P

a
g
e
 2

1

31



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020           TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATIONAL 

ITEM:  E.1 Review and Discuss the McKinleyville Skatepark 

Quarterly Project Status Update Presented by the 

Humboldt Skatepark Collective (HSC) 

PRESENTED BY: Lesley Frisbee, Recreation Director and Charlie 

Caldwell, HSC 

TYPE OF ACTION:  None 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided, discuss, take 
public comment, and air questions about the status update of the McKinleyville 
Skate Park as presented by the Humboldt Skatepark Collective. 

Discussion: 

At the October 4, 2017 meeting, the Board approved a right of entry agreement 
between MCSD and the HSC for the development of a skate park in 
McKinleyville. Since that time the HSC has committed to working on an alternate 
design of the park and has been seeking funding for the project. 

The HSC has presented the quarterly reports at regular intervals since the right 
of entry agreement was approved.  The current report includes detail on the 
current status, in addition to project and budget overviews.  

Attachment 1 outlines the most recent summary of the current project status. 

Alternatives: 

Take Action  

Fiscal Analysis:  

Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements:  

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – Quarterly Report from Humboldt Skatepark Collective 

32



Humboldt Skatepark Collective   

2437 East Cochran Rd. McKinleyville Ca 95519 

Phone (707)499-7021    

HSC QUARTERLY MCSD REPORT  

PROJECT SUMMARY 

REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

09/17/2020  McKinleyville Skatepark Charlie 

STATUS SUMMARY 

Current 
quarterly status 

A. Summary of current fundraising efforts:

• Small amounts of funding is coming in from : Your Cause, Amazom Smile and Holaday in
Humboldt supporters

B. Summary of current funds

• $119,887.95
C. Summary of Grant Applications,  next Prop 68 round in December

% DONE DUE DATE DRIVER NOTES 

Stamped Design & Permitting  99% Sept  2020  Humboldt County 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

CATEGORY SPENT  budgeted % on track ON TRACK? NOTES 

  $ 9712.50 95%Permiting & engenearing 

RISK AND ISSUE HISTORY 

ISSUE DATE 

Fund raising events for summer were put on hold as well as setting up portable ramp system.

Contract  between Liquid 
Stone Design and MCSD 50% Sept 2020 MCSD, LSD & HSC

working on addressing MCSD 
GM comments should be 
completed by end of September 
ready for county submittal.
LSD working on State 
Contractors License 

Yes

Follow through with permit process, determine if we go for partial construction with funds we have  or wait for next 
prop 68 grant round. we will be contuning to write other grants as the become avaliuble.

Project Overview

CONCLUSIONS/RECOMMENDATIONS

Engineering cost for stamped 
design and preparation for all 
documents needed for permit 
submittal.

Task

Item E.1 Attachment 1

33



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020  TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  E.2 Consider of Hay Lease for Fischer and Pialorsi 

Properties with Andy Titus 

PRESENTED BY: Pat Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call Vote 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided, take public 
comment, and authorize the General Manager to enter into a lease agreement 
with Andy Titus, Fern Vallee Farms, for hay production on the Fischer and 
Pialorsi properties. 

Discussion: 

The District solicited a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Lease of 220 acres of 
Pastureland (Fischer and Pialorsi properties) of which 174 (87%) would be 
irrigated with recycled water. Additionally, the RFP named two hay barns, one on 
each property, available for use by the Lessee. Additional information regarding 
requested information solicited, along with a map of the area, can be found in 
Attachment 1. 

Two proposals were received, one from Andrew Titus of Fern Vallee Farms 
(Attachment 2), and a second from David Collenberg of Lost Coast Hay, who 
currently holds a month to month lease for haying the Fischer Ranch property 
(Attachment 3).  The Titus proposal proposed paying a monthly lease rate of 
$3,666/month.  The Collenberg proposal proposed to pay $1,500/month. Both 
proposers laid out a proposed approach that will serve to revitalize the soil at the 
Pialorsi property, which is in poor shape and infested with thistle. This will help 
ensure that both properties continue to be suitable for disposal of the District’s 
reclaimed water. 

A committee of two Board members, President Burke and Director Mayo, along 
with General Manager Kaspari and Operations Director Henry, reviewed the 
proposals, grading on four basic criteria: Price, Qualifications and Experience on 
Similar Projects, Proposed Farming Approach, and References. Each Committee 
Member scored the proposals separately, and the overall scores were averaged 
for each.  Titus’ score averaged 73 points out of 100 and Collenberg’s score 
averaged 55 out of 100 as shown in Proposal Rating Score Sheet (Attachment 
4). 

The Committee’s unanimous decision and recommendation is to award the 
Lease to Andy Titus.  He has been running a similar operation adjacent to the 

34



Humboldt Creamery property in Fernbridge and is familiar with the permit 
requirements and coordination required for properties utilizing reclaimed water 
for irrigation.  His references were also happy with his communication and 
operational abilities.  It is proposed that the initial lease for a period of one year 
be signed with Mr. Titus, with the option to extend the lease by five or more years 
if favorable to both parties. The Draft Lease Agreement is included as 
Attachment 5 and has been submitted to Mr. Titus for review. Any proposed 
changes would be run by District Legal Counsel, and major revisions would be 
brought back to the Board for approval. 

Alternatives: 

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis: 

Monthly income from the Pialorsi and Fischer Hay lease would be $3,666/month 
to the Wastewater Enterprise Fund.  Current income for just the Fischer Ranch 
lease is $1,500/month. 

Environmental Requirements: 

Hay operations must comply with District’s Waste Discharge Permit 
requirements. 

Exhibits/Attachments: 

• Attachment 1 – Request for Proposals

• Attachment 2 – Proposal from Andy Titus

• Attachment 3 – Proposal from David Collenberg

• Attachment 4 – Proposal Rating Score Sheet

• Attachment 5 – Draft Lease Agreement

35



Request for Proposals for Lease of 220 acres of Pastureland 

McKinleyville Community Services District (MCSD) is requesting proposals from 

interested parties to lease and manage approximately 220 acres of pastureland located 

along the Mad River in McKinleyville, CA.  The property consists of: 

• 39 acre upper terrace (Upper Fischer Ranch on the attached map) of which 36 acres

can be irrigated with recycled water,

• 62 acres of bottom land (Lower Fischer Ranch) of which 45 acres can be irrigated

with recycled water

• 44 acres of bottom land (West Pialorsi Ranch) of which 38 acres can be irrigated with

recycled water, and

• 75 acres of bottom land (East Pialorsi Ranch) of which 55 acres can be irrigated with

recycled water.

For a Total of 220 acres, of which 174 acres can be irrigated. (See Attached Map) 

There is also a large hay barn (8,250 square feet) on the Fischer Ranch, and a hay barn 

(2,800 square feet) on the Pialorsi Ranch available for use.  For many years, both properties 

were operated as dairy ranches, but due to current environmental regulations it is necessary 

to restrict grazing of livestock on the parcel.  The hay and silage produced from the Fischer 

property for the last five years has been certified organic.  

The District is interested in considering various lease terms including a long-term lease (up 

to 5 years with option to renew).  The District is interested in receiving proposals of how to 

best utilize the properties and allow the continued use of treated water for irrigation within the 

parameters of the MCSD Waste Discharge Permit. Selection criteria will be based on best 

overall value to the District, not necessarily highest lease price.  

Please provide a brief proposal including name and contact information, and detailing 

proposed lease amount per month, any proposed management strategies you would like to 

highlight, any limitations or restrictions, and any proposed changes or edits to the draft lease. 

Please provide proposals in a sealed envelope by 3:30 pm August 31, 2020. Label 

outside of envelop “Ranch Lease” and deliver to MCSD Office at 1656 Sutter Road, 

McKinleyville, CA. 95519.  

A tour of the property can be arranged, or questions answered by contacting: 

Patrick Kaspari 

pkaspari@mckinleyvillecsd.com 

(707) 839-3251 

Item E.2 Attachment 1

36



FIS
CH

ER

US HWY 101

AN
DE

RS
ON

SCHOOL

MAD RIVER

BIR
D VIN

E

WH
ITM

IR
E

SA
LM

ON

OC
EA

N

UNN 5

WI
ND

SO
R

STAPP

DUCHESS

HA
RP

ER

US HWY 101 OFF

HU
GH

ES

HA
WK

ES

US HWY 101 ON

MARY

VERWER

CAITLIN

GRIFFITH

RO
SE

ST
EE

NB
LO

CK

HA
MM

ON
D 

TR
AIL

 FO
OT

 BR
ID

GE

LO
ST

MC
KIN

LE
YV

ILL
E

US HWY 101 OFF
US HWY 101 ON

SCHOOL

MARY

East Pialorsi Ranch 

West Pialorsi Ranch 

Lower Fischer Ranch 

Upper Fischer Ranch 

K0 500250 Feet

Irrigated Area with 100ft Setback
Parcels

McKinleyville Community Services District 
Fischer and Pialorsi Ranches

36 Acres

45 Acres

38 Acres

55 Acres

37



1

James Henry

From: fernvalleefarms@aol.com
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 2:31 PM
To: James Henry
Subject: Rent and management proposal

Hello James this is Andy Titus with Fern Vallee farms I would like to provide you with my proposal for renting 
and managing the McKinleyville property I would be willing to pay $200 an acre which is $44,000 a year around $3666 a 
month and change I currently rent the property that borders Humboldt creamery at Fernbridge and I take all of their 
wastewater seven days a week 365 days a year so I am well aware of what it takes to work together with an organization 
to make sure the property is used efficiently and effectively for both parties if you choose my proposal I feel like we 
could work closely together to farm whatever pieces of land need to be farm to make sure that the nutrients are being 
utilized effectively and that you meet all the specs that you need to meet to keep your standards where I’m sure they 
need to be my initial plan would be to basically just make silage three or four time A year up there which would be a 
quick in and out within three or four days to where your downtime would be minimal and we would obviously have to 
rotate cutting to where you were still able to utilize arrogating where it needed to be and we could communicate and 
work effectively together to make sure that works for both of us if you wanted crops that would absorb more nutrients 
such as corn I would be willing to plant corn up there I would also be willing to plant clover’s which would utilize quite a 
bit of water and the nutrients that you would be putting out on the fields I am certified organic I actually have that ranch 
certified up there for David Colenberg right now it would be a huge boost to my operation to be able to get an additional 
220 acres for making feed and I feel like that we could work well together staying in close communication and utilizing 
the property well for both of us I hope that you except my proposal sincerely Andrew Titus 

Sent from AOL Mobile Mail 
Get the new AOL app: mail.mobile.aol.com 

Item E.2 Attachment 2

38



Item E. 2 Attachment 3

39



40



Fischer Pialorsi H
ay Lease SO

Q
  Score Sheet Septem

ber 2020
Collenberg

Titus
Points 

Possible
Points 

A
w

arded
Points 

A
w

arded
1

Price
30

14
24

2
Q

ualifications and experience on sim
ilar projects

30
20

22
3

Proposed Farm
ing Approach

30
20

20
4

R
eferences

10
2

8
5

Total Points Possible
100

55
73

C
riteria

Item
 E.2 A

ttachm
ent 4

41



LEASE AGREEMENT 

MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, herein called “Lessor”, hereby 
leases to, Andy Titus herein called “Lessee”, those certain premises, herein called 
“Premises”, in the County of Humboldt, State of California, described as follows:  The 
real property in the unincorporated area of McKinleyville, Humboldt County, California 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto, including all improvements thereon, on the 
terms and conditions set forth herein.  

ARTICLE 1. TERM OF LEASE 

1.1 Original Term.   This initial lease shall be for a term of one (1) year commencing 
on approximately January 1, 2021 (“Commencement Date”) and ending on December 
31, 2021, unless the District at its sole discretion, decides to sell the property, thereby 
vacating the Lease.  In the event Lessor sells and/or conveys the Premises, this lease 
shall automatically terminate effective immediately at the close of escrow.  The actual 
final commencement date and the date the lessee will be established upon Board 
approval of this lease and a 30-day notification to the current lessee has been provided. 
1.2 Extension of Term.  The Term of this Lease can be extended as provided in 
Article 11 hereof. 
1.3 Hold over. Should Lessee hold over and continue in possession of said Premises 
after expiration of the term of this lease or any extension thereof, Lessee’s continued 
occupancy of said Premises shall be considered a month-to-month tenancy subject to 
all terms and conditions of this Lease. 

Item E.2 Attachment 5

42



ARTICLE 2.  RENT 

2.1 Rent.  Lessee agrees to pay Lessor $3,666.00 per month for the initial term of the 
Lease commencing on January 1, 2021.  For the period from January 1 to December 
31, 2021.  Rent shall be prorated on a 30-day month for any portion of a month included 
in the term.  However, rent may be adjusted upon renewal of the Lease in accordance 
with Section 2.2. 
2.2 Rent Adjustment.  Rent for the period of January 1, 2021 through December 31, 
2021 shall be $3,666.00 per month.  The amount of the monthly rent for any extended 
term of the Lease pursuant to Article 11 herein may be adjusted to a mutually agreed 
upon rate. 
2.3 Rent Payments. Rent shall be payable on the first day of the month, at the 
office of Lessor at 1656 Sutter Road, McKinleyville, California, or at such other place or 
places as Lessor may from time to time designate by written notice delivered to Lessee.  
Unless previously agreed upon by the Lessor in writing, should any rent payment be ten 
(10) or more days late, interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum or the 
maximum amount allowed by law if said rate is higher than the maximum amount 
allowed by law, may accrue and be payable on all amounts due. 
2.4 Deposit.  Lessee shall place a deposit equal to the first month’s Lease amount 
($3,666) to Lessor at start of Lease.  This Deposit will be returned to Lessee at end of 
lease period subject to the terms stated in Article 10 for defaults and remedies.  

ARTICLE 3.  USE OF PREMISES 

3.1 Uses.  Said Premises shall, during the term of this Lease and any extensions 
thereof, be used for the purpose of growing fodder crop for baling or to process as 

43



silage for uses normally incident to such purposes.  The Lessee shall farm the land in 
general conformance with the proposal and emails to James Henry dated August 26, 
2020 and September 13, 2020. Within six months start of lease, lessee shall disk and/or 
plow and reseed half the farmable acreage, then the remainder within eight months of 
the first seeding.  The lessee shall reseed with a mix of grasses such as annual rye, 
perennial rye, and orchard grass.  The lessee has the option to plant corn on a portion 
of the farmable acreage if the market will support it.  If corn is planted a suitable grass 
mixture will replace it at the time the corn is harvested.  Said use(s) shall comply with all 
applicable zoning requirements and permit procedures.  In conducting the business 
specified in this section and on said Premises, Lessee shall be entitled to sell such 
merchandise and render such services, as are customarily sold and rendered by the 
operators of businesses of the same type in the county and state where said Premises 
are located.  Lessor makes no representation concerning the Premises’ suitability for 
such use.   
3.2.  Restrictions on Use.  Use of the Premises shall be restricted as set forth below. 

3.2.1. Irrigation Set Backs.  No irrigation is to occur within 100’ of the 
perimeter fences or within 200’ of the bottom of the slope between the 
lower and upper pastures.  

3.2.2. Discharge Permit Compliance.  Lessee shall not operate in any manner 
to cause a waste discharge violation or violation of any state, federal or 
local law or regulation affecting the environment or the storage, 
handling, use or discharge of any hazardous material, pollutant or 
substance. 

44



3.2.3. Storage of Equipment or Materials.  Lessee is only to store those pieces 
of equipment or materials owned or leased by Lessee and needed as 
part of the agricultural operation.  Equipment is to be stored only within 
the two hay barns, the milk barns and the area designated on Exhibit A.  
The grounds and buildings are to be kept clean and free of debris and 
nonoperational equipment. 

3.2.4. Livestock and Animals.  No livestock or animals of any sort are to be 
brought onto the Premises at any time. 

3.2.5. Burning.  No burning of any type is to be done on the Premises.  All 
trash and vegetation is to be removed from the Premises by the Lessee 
for disposal. 

3.2.6. Residence.  The Lessee shall not reside nor allow any employee to 
reside upon the Premises. 

3.3. Insurance Hazards.  Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission of any 
acts on said Premises nor use or permit the use of said Premises in any manner that 
will increase the existing rates for or cause the cancellation of any fire, liability, or other 
insurance policy insuring said Premises or the improvements on said Premises.  Lessee 
shall, at its own cost and expense, comply with any and all reasonable requirements of 
Lessor’s insurance carriers necessary for the continued maintenance at reasonable 
rates of fire and liability insurance policies on said Premises and the improvement on 
said Premises; provided, however that in the event Lessee believes the requirements 
are unreasonable, Lessor shall seek coverage with other reputable carrier which may or 
may not have such unreasonable requirements. Requirements which are imposed on 

45



an industry-wide basis shall be complied with by Lessee regardless of Lessee’s 
assessment of reasonableness. 
3.4. Waste or Nuisance.   Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission by 
others of any waste on said Premises; Lessee shall not maintain, commit, or permit the 
maintenance of commission of any nuisance as defined in Section 3479 et seq. of the 
California Civil Code on said Premises; and Lessee shall not use or permit the use of 
said Premises for an unlawful purpose. 
3.5. Compliance With Law.  Lessee shall at Lessee’s own cost and expense comply 
with all statutes, ordinances, regulations, and requirements of all governmental entities, 
federal, state, county or municipal, relating to Lessee’s use and occupancy of said 
premises whether such statues, ordinances, regulations, and requirements be now in 
force or hereinafter enacted. This shall include, but not be limited to, compliance with 
ADA requirements, obligations regarding workers’ compensation insurance and 
employers’ liability insurance as set forth in the Labor Code, and all laws relating to 
sanitation and odor abatement, as well as any state, federal or local law or regulation 
affecting the environment or the storage, handling, use or discharge of any hazardous 
material, pollutant or substance.  The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or 
the admission by Lessee in a proceeding brought against Lessee by a government 
entity, that Lessee has violated any such statute, ordinance, regulation, or requirement 
shall be conclusive as between Lessor and Lessee and shall be grounds for termination 
of the Lease by Lessor. Lessee shall be deemed in violation of this provision if Lessee’s 
activities are the cause of Lessor being found in violation of any statutes, ordinances, 

46



waste discharge regulation, and requirements of any governmental entities, including 
federal, state, county or municipal. 
3.6. Weed Abatement.  Lessee shall be responsible to keep Premises free of 
invasive weeds such as Canadian Thistle, Baltic Grass and other invasive plants 
deemed detrimental to the grass crop.  Invasive weeds shall not be allowed to go to 
seed and must be removed or cut down by mechanical means. 

ARTICLE 4. TAXES AND UTILITIES 

4.1 Payment of Utility Charges.  Lessee shall pay, and hold Lessor and the property 
of Lessor free and harmless from all charges for the furnishing of gas, water, electricity, 
telephone service, and other public utilities to said Premises during the term of the 
Lease or any extension thereof and for the removal of garbage and rubbish from said 
premises during the term of this Lease or any extension thereof, except as expressly 
provided for herein. 

4.1.1. Irrigation Water.  Lessor will provide treated wastewater for irrigation to 
those areas south of the flood irrigation cells and not closer than 100 
feet from the nearest property boundary, and 200’ from the bottom of 
the slope, except as set forth below.  Lessee may purchase water from 
Lessor to irrigate those portions of the Premises not irrigated with 
treated wastewater for the period between October 1 and May 15, when 
Lessor is not irrigating with treated wastewater.  

4.1.2. All Other Water.  Lessee may purchase water from Lessor for all other 
uses at the prevailing rates and charges. 

47



4.2. Personal Property Taxes.  Lessee shall pay before they become delinquent all 
taxes, assessments, or other charges levied or imposed by any governmental entity on 
the furniture, trade fixtures, appliances, and other personal property placed by Lessee 
in, on, or about said Premises including, without limiting the generality of the other terms 
used in this section, any fixtures, machinery, plant equipment or office equipment 
brought on said Premises by Lessee. 
4.3. Real Property Taxes.  Subject to Lessee’s obligation to reimburse Lessor as 
hereinafter provided, all real property taxes and assessments levied or assessed 
against said Premises by any governmental entity, including any special assessment 
imposed on or against said Premises for the construction or improvement of public 
works in, on, or about said Premises, shall be paid by Lessor before they become 
delinquent.  Lessee shall promptly reimburse Lessor, within fifteen (15) days of the date 
of receipt of a request for reimbursement, for all real property taxes and assessments 
paid by Lessor during the term of the Lease, or any extension thereof.  In the event that 
a portion of the Premises are later developed by Lessor for use by other tenants, the 
real property taxes and assessments levied against the Premises will be prorated in an 
equitable manner based upon the value and size of the improvements and ground area 
occupied by each Lessee. 

ARTICLE 5. ALTERATIONS, REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 

5.1 Conditions of Premises.  Lessee acknowledges herein that he has inspected and 
approved the condition of the Premises. Lessor makes no warranties of any kind or 
nature, express or implied, regarding the condition of the Premises or any 
improvements located thereon, or the suitability of the Premises and improvements 

48



thereon for Lessee’s intended use.  Lessee assumes occupancy of the Premises based 
solely on Lessee’s inspection and assessment of the Premises, and assumes 
occupancy of the Premises in its existing condition, with all faults and defects present, 
both patent and latent. 
5.2 Maintenance by Lessor.  Lessor shall have no maintenance obligation 
whatsoever, except being responsible for normal wear and tear of buildings, roofs and 
wiring.  Notwithstanding the above, if this Lease through extension pursuant to Section 
1.2 continues in effect for more than 15 years, Lessee shall be solely responsible for 
maintaining and restoring all improvements and facilities, including but not limited to all 
fencing, so that they are in the condition they were in at the commencement of this 
Lease.  Lessor shall cooperate, at Lessee’s expense, with any reasonable demand of 
Lessee in arranging repairs or maintenance.  Capital improvements required by 
governmental mandate shall be the responsibility of Lessor.   
5.3 Maintenance by Lessee.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 5.2 
of this Lease, Lessee shall at his own cost and expense keep and maintain all portions 
of said Premises as well as improvements of said Premises and all facilities appurtenant 
to said Premises in good order and repair and in as safe and clean a condition as they 
were when received by Lessee from Lessor.  Without limiting the foregoing, Lessee is 
responsible for damages directly attributed to the hay operation such as broken pipes, 
damages to buildings, fences or structures or other damages associated with the 
operation and use of the Premises. 

5.3.1. Harvesting.  Lessee may harvest at his discretion however, Lessor may 
advise Lessee when the Premises must be harvested.  Lessee agrees to cut 

49



and remove crop using commercially reasonable methods from the areas 
designated for harvesting by Lessor within twenty (20) calendars days of 
notice to harvest by Lessor.   

5.4. Alterations and Liens.  Lessee shall not make or permit any other person to make 
any alterations to said Premises or to any improvement thereon to the facilities 
appurtenant thereto without first obtaining the written consent of Lessor.  Lessee shall 
keep the Premises free and clear from any and all liens, claims, and demands for work 
performed, materials furnished, or operations conducted on said Premises at the 
instance or request of Lessee.  Furthermore, any and all alterations, additions, and 
improvements, except furniture and trade fixtures, made or placed in or on said 
Premises by Lessee or any other person shall on expiration or sooner termination of this 
lease become the property of the Lessor and remain in said premises; provided, 
however, that Lessor shall have the option on expiration or sooner termination of the 
Lease of requiring Lessee, at Lessee’s sole cost and expenses, to remove any or all 
such alterations, additions and improvements from said Premises and restore the 
Premises to its original condition. 
5.5. Inspection by Lessor.  Lessee shall permit Lessor or Lessor’s agents, 
representatives, or employees to enter said Premises at all reasonable times for the 
purpose of inspecting said Premises to determine whether Lessee is complying with the 
terms of this Lease and for the purpose of doing other lawful acts that may be 
necessary to protect Lessor’s interest in said Premises under this Lease or to perform 
Lessor’s duties under this Lease. 

50



5.6. Surrender of Premises.  On expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, or any 
extensions or renewals of this Lease, Lessee shall promptly surrender and deliver said 
Premises to Lessor in as good condition as they were at the commencement of this 
Lease in accordance with Section 5.2 and 5.3 herein.  Lessee shall remove all 
equipment and supplies from the Premises prior to the end of the term.  Should Lessee 
fail to remove any equipment or supplies, Lessor may, at its own discretion remove 
equipment or supplies and bill Lessee for actual costs of removal.  Lessee agrees to 
pay Lessor’s actual costs of removal.  Lessee acknowledges that all equipment and 
supplies left on the Premises may become the property of Lessor at Lessor’s discretion. 

ARTICLE 6. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

6.1. Hold Harmless Clause.  Lessee agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Lessor and 
the property of Lessor, including, without limitation, the Premises, free and harmless 
from any and all claims, liability, loss, damage, penalties, fees and expenses of any kind 
resulting from or arising out of Lessee’s occupation and use of the Premises, and all 
improvements thereon, specifically including, without limitation, any claim, liability loss, 
or damage arising by reason of: 

6.1.1. The death of injury of any person or persons, including Lessee or any 
person who is an employee of agent of Lessee, or by reason of damage to 
or destruction of any property, including property owned by Lessee or any 
person who is an employee or agent of Lessee, and caused or allegedly 
caused by either the condition of said Premises or some act or omission of 
Lessee or of some agent, contractor, employee, servant or sublessee or 
licensee on said Premises; 

51



6.1.2. Any work performed on said Premises or materials furnished to said 
Premises at the instance or request of Lessee or any agent or employee of 
Lessee; 

6.1.3. Lessee’s failure to perform any provision of this Lease or to comply with any 
provision of law or any requirement imposed on Lessee or the leased 
Premises by any duly authorized governmental agency or political 
subdivision; and 

6.1.4. Any death, damage or injury occurring to any person arising out of any use, 
act, omission or other occurrence relating to or arising out of Lessee’s use of 
the Premises. 

6.2 Liability Insurance.  Lessee shall obtain, prior to commencement of the term of 
this Lease, comprehensive general public liability insurance issued by carriers 
acceptable to Lessor insuring the performance by Lessee of all obligations set forth in 
this Lease including all contractually assumed liability which insurance shall insure the 
Lessor, its officers, agents, employee and Lessee in the amount of not less than 
$1,000,000 for any individual claimant and $1,000,000 in the aggregate.  A certificate of 
insurance shall be provided to Lessor prior to the inception of the term which shall 
provide that coverage provided by the policy shall not be canceled or amended until the 
Lessor is first provided with at least thirty (30) days written notice concerning such 
cancellation notice, and naming Lessor as an additional named insured.  Failure of 
Lessee to maintain insurance pursuant to this section for a period longer than four (4) 
days shall be grounds for immediate termination of the Lease. 

52



6.3 Waiver of Subrogation.  The parties agree to release each other, and their 
respective authorized representatives, from any claims for damage to any person, the 
Premises or any improvements on the Premises, or Lessee’s trade fixtures, equipment, 
merchandise, or personal property located on the premises, caused by or resulting from 
risks insured against under any insurance policies carried by the parties pursuant to this 
Lessee that are in force at the time of any such damage to the extent of the available 
insurance proceeds.  Each party shall cause each insurance policy carried pursuant to 
this Lease by that party to be written to provide that the insurance company waives all 
right of recovery by way of subrogation against either party in connection with any 
damage covered by the policy. 

ARTICLE 7. SIGNS AND TRADE FIXTURES 
7. 1 Installation and Removal of Trade Fixtures.  Lessee shall have the right at any
time and from time to time during the term of this lease and any renewal or extension of 
such term, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, to install and affix in, to, or on said 
Premises such items, herein called “trade fixtures” for use in Lessee’s trade or business 
as Lessee may, in his sole discretion, deem advisable.  Any and all such trade fixtures 
that cannot be removed without structural damage to said Premises or any building or 
improvements on said Premises shall remain the property of Lessor and may not be 
removed by Lessee at any time or times prior to the expiration or sooner termination of 
this Lease. 
7.2 Unremoved Trade Fixtures.  Any trade fixtures described in this Article that are 
not removed from said Premises by Lessee within thirty (30) days after the expiration or 

53



sooner termination, regardless of cause, of this Lease shall be deemed abandoned by 
Lessee and shall automatically become the property of Lessor as owner of the real 
property to which they are affixed.  However, Lessor may demand that Lessee remove 
said fixtures and restore Premises to original condition, all at Lessee’s expense. 
7.3 Signs.  Lessee may install such signs as Lessee requires for its business 
operations, subject to the laws of any governmental agency having jurisdiction.  On the 
expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, or any extension thereof, Lessee shall 
remove all such signs and shall repair any damage to the Premises caused by the 
removal.  

ARTICLE 8.  DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION 

8.1 Partial Destruction.  If, during the term, the Premises are totally or partially 
destroyed from any cause, rendering the Premises totally or partially inaccessible or 
unusable, Lessor shall restore the Premises to substantially the same condition it was 
immediately before destruction, if the restoration can be made under the existing laws 
and can be completed within one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of the 
destruction.  Such destruction shall not terminate this Lease.  If the restoration cannot 
be made in the time stated in this section, then within fifteen days after the parties 
determine that the restoration cannot be made in the time stated in this paragraph 
Lessee can terminate this Lease immediately by giving written notice to Lessor.  If 
Lessee fails to terminate this Lease and if restoration is permitted under the existing 
laws, Lessor shall restore the Premises within a reasonable time and this Lease shall 
continue in full force and effect.  If the existing laws do not permit the restoration, or 

54



cannot be achieved at a reasonable cost to Lessor, either party can terminate this 
Lease immediately by giving notice to the other party. 
8.2  Insurance Proceeds.   Any insurance proceeds received by Lessor because of 
the total or partial destruction of said Premises or any building on said Premises shall 
be the sole property of Lessor, free from any claims of Lessee, and may be used by 
Lessor for whatever purpose Lessor may desire. 
8.3 Abatement of Rent.  Should Lessor be required under Section 8.1 of this Lease 
to repair and restore said Premises to their former condition following partial or full 
destruction of said Premises. 

8.3.1 Lessee shall not be entitled to any damages for any loss or inconvenience 
sustained by Lessee by reason of the making of such repairs and 
restoration; 

8.3.2. Lessor shall have full right to enter said premises and take possession of 
so much of said Premises, including the whole of said Premises as may 
be reasonably necessary to enable Lessor promptly and efficiently to carry 
out the work of repair and restoration; and 

8.3.3 The rent payable by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to Section 2.1 of the 
Lease shall be abated to the extent that the Lessee shall be prevented 
from using the whole of said Premises.  The extent of abatement of rent 
shall be calculated as the percentage reduction in the useable area of the 
Premises. 

8.4. Condemnation.  Should, during the term of this Lease or any renewal or 
extension thereof, title and possession of all or portions of said Premises be taken 

55



under the power of eminent domain by any public or quasi-public agency or entity, this 
Lease shall terminate as of the date actual physical possession of said Premises is 
taken by the agency or entity exercising the power of eminent domain and both Lessor 
and Lessee shall thereafter be released from all obligations herein.  If a lesser portion of 
the Premises is taken, the Lease will terminate as to the part taken, except that if the 
remaining portion is not reasonably suitable for Lessee’s continuing use, then Lessee 
shall have the option to terminate the Lease in it entirety.  In the event of such partial 
taking which does not result in termination of the Lease, an equitable reduction in the 
rent shall be made. 

ARTICLE 9.  ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASES 

9.1. Subleasing or Assigning as Breach.  Lessee shall not encumber, assign, or 
otherwise transfer this Lease, any right or interest in this Lease, or any right or 
interest in said Premises or any of the improvements that may now or hereafter be 
constructed or installed on said Premises without the express prior written consent of 
Lessor, which shall be given or refused in Lessor’s sole discretion.  Neither shall 
Lessee sublet said Premises or any part thereof without the prior express written 
consent of Lessor.  Under no circumstance shall any sublessee use the Premises for 
grazing or raising of livestock.   A consent by Lessor to one assignment, one 
subletting, or one occupation of said Premises by a person shall not constitute 
consent to any such action involving others. Any encumbrance, assignment, 
subletting, or transfer without the prior express written consent of Lessor, whether it 

56



be voluntary of involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, is void and shall, at the 
option of Lessor, terminate this Lease.  

ARTICLE 10. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

10.1. Default by Lessee.  Lessee shall be in default hereunder if (i) Lessee fails to 
timely pay rent or other charges due hereunder, or (ii) Lessee fails to perform any 
other obligation of Lessee under this Lease within fourteen (14) days after written 
notice from Lessor specifying the failure and stating that it is a “notice of default”, 
provided that if the nature of the obligation is such that more than 14 days is 
reasonably required for its cure, then within such longer period as is reasonably 
necessary for the cure, as long as the cure is begun during the 14 day period and 
prosecuted with diligence to completion.  Notwithstanding the above, failure of Lessee 
to perform an obligation under this Lease which is expressly stated to be grounds for 
termination of the Lease shall result in immediate default by Lessee and is grounds 
for immediate termination of the Lease unless an express cure period is specified, in 
which case such cure period will control notwithstanding Section 10.2 below. 
10.2. Lessor’s Cure Right.  Upon a default by Lessee pursuant to clause (ii) of 
Section 10.1 above, Lessor, without prejudice to its other remedies, shall have the 
right to notify Lessee that if Lessee fails to cure the default within fourteen (14) days, 
then Lessor may cure the default and the cost of the cure shall immediately be 
deducted from the Lessee’s Deposit held by the Lessor.  Upon notice, Lessee must 
reinstate the Deposit to the full amount within 14 days. In addition, in the event of an 
emergency risking injury to persons or immediate damage to property, Lessor shall 

57



have the right to cure the default after giving telephone notice to Lessee and allowing 
such time for Lessee to cure the default as is reasonable in the circumstances. 
10.3. Lessor’s Remedies.  Following a default by Lessee pursuant to Section 10.1, 
Lessor shall have the option to either (i) cure the default pursuant to Section 10.2 , or 
(ii) terminate this Lease by notice to Lessee and recover the difference between the 
rent due hereunder and the fair rental value of the Premises for the remainder of the 
then unexpired Lease Term, together with reletting costs including necessary Lease 
improvements and leasing commissions, or (iii) re-enter and re-take possession of the 
Premises without terminating this Lease and re-let them in a commercially reasonable 
manner to a substitute Lessee and Lessor may continue to collect the difference, if 
any, between the rent and other charges payable under this Lease and the lower rent 
collected from Lessor’s substitute Lessee. 
10.4. Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by Lessor or Lessee of any breach by the other 
party of any of the provisions of this Lease shall not constitute a continuing waiver or 
a waiver of any subsequent breach by either party. 

ARTICLE 11. EXTENSION OF TERM 

11.1. Option for Lease Renewal.  Provided that Lessee is not in default of any term of 
this Lease, no later than December 13, 2021 the Lessee shall have the option or an 
extended term of this Lease, for five (5) years, however, that the rent shall be subject 
to adjustment at the commencement of each extended term as provided in Section 
2.2.  Such extension of the Lease shall not occur if written notice is not received by 
the District by December 13, 2021.  If proper notice not to extend has occurred, at the 

58



end of the Lease Term, Lessor may consider a month-to-month tenancy of the 
Premises to Lessee as described in Section 1.3.  Furthermore, this lease shall 
terminate automatically in the event Lessor sells or conveys the Premises as stated in 
Section 1.1, above. 

ARTICLE 12.  MISCELLANEOUS 

12.1. Force Majeure - Unavoidable Delays.  Should the performance of any act 
required by this Lease to be performed by either Lessor or Lessee by prevented or 
delayed by reason of an act of God, strike, lockout, labor troubles, inability to secure 
materials, restrictive governmental laws or regulation, or any other cause except 
financial inability not the fault of the party required to perform the act, the time for 
performance of the act will be extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay 
and performance of the act during the period of delay will be excused; provided, 
however, that nothing contained in this section shall excuse the prompt payment of 
rent by Lessee as required by this Lease or the performance of any act rendered 
difficult solely because of the financial condition of the party, Lessor or Lessee, 
required to perform the act. 
12.2. Attorney’s Fees.  Should any litigation be commenced between the parties to 
this Lease concerning said Premises, this Lease or the rights and duties of either in 
relation thereto, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled, in addition to 
such other relief as may be granted in the litigation, to a reasonable sum for costs and 
attorney’s fees in such litigation which shall be determined by the court in such 
litigation or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

59



12.3. Notice.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or 
other communications required by this Lease or by law to be served on or given to 
either party hereto by the other party hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
duly served and given when personally delivered to the party to whom they are 
directed, or in lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the United States mail, 
first class postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

To Lessee: Andy Titus 
Fern Vallee Farms 
XXXXX  
xxxx, CA  955xx 
707-xxx-xxxx 

To Lessor: McKinleyville Community Services District 
P.O. Box 2037 
McKinleyville, CA  95519  
707-839-3251 707-839-8456 (fax) 

Either party, Lessee or Lessor, may change its address for the purpose of this section 
giving written notice of such change to the other party in the manner provided in this 
section. 
12.4.  Binding on Heirs and Successors.  This Lease shall be binding on and shall 
inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of 
the parties hereto, Lessor and Lessee, but nothing in this section contained shall be 
construed as a consent by the Lessor to any assignment of the Lease or any interest 
herein by Lessee. 
12.5.  Partial Invalidity.  Should any provision of this Lease be held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be either invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Lease shall remain in full force and effect unimpaired by the holding. 

60



12.6.  Sole and Only Agreement.  This instrument constitutes the sole and only 
agreement between Lessor and Lessee respecting said Premises, the leasing of said 
Premises to Lessee, or the Lease Term herein specified, and correctly sets forth the 
obligations of Lessor and Lessee to each other as of its date.  Any agreements or 
representations respecting said Premises or their leasing by Lessor to Lessee not 
expressly set forth in this instrument are null and void. 
12.7.  Time of Essence.  Time is expressly declared to be of the essence for this 
Lease. 
12.8.  Transfers by Lessor.  Lessor shall have the right to transfer and assign, in 
whole or in part, all of the Lessor’s rights and obligations under this Lease and on the 
Premises, and in such event and on assumption by Lessor’s transferee of Lessor’s 
obligation under this Lease, no further liability or obligation shall accrue against 
Lessor under this Lease, and Lessor shall be entirely relieved of all agreements and 
conditions of this Lease to be performed by Lessor.  Lessee agrees to consent to any 
such transferee or assignee. 
12.9.  Modification.  This Lease may not be altered, changed, or amended except by 
an instrument in writing signed by Lessee and Lessor. 
LESSOR: 

McKinleyville Community Services District 

Dated: ______________________  
By: _________________________________ 
Mary Burke, Board President 

61



LESSEE: 

Dated: ______________________  
By: __________________________________ 
Andy Titus 
Exhibit A Property Description and Use of Property 

62



FIS
CH

ER

US HWY 101

AN
DE

RS
ON

SCHOOL

MA
D 

RI
VE

R

BIR
D VIN

E

OC
EA

N

WH
ITM

IR
E

SA
LM

ON

WI
ND

SO
R

HA
WK

ES

STAPP

US HWY 101 ON

HA
RP

ER

US HWY 101 OFF

HU
GH

ES DUCHESS

WOLF

MARY

LO
ST

UNN 5

CHELSEA

VERWER

CAITLIN

GRIFFITH

RO
SE

ST
EE

NB
LO

CK

HA
MM

ON
D 

TR
AIL

 FO
OT

 BR
ID

GE

MC
KIN

LE
YV

ILL
E

PRIVATE 6

US HWY 101 ON

US HWY 101 OFF
SCHOOL

MARY

K
0 600300 FeetMcKinleyville Community Services District 

Fischer and Pialorsi Ranches Hay Lease  Exhibit A

100ft Setback 

Farmable Lands 

Irrigated  Lands 

Hay Barn

Hay Barn

Upper Fischer Ranch 
36 Acres

Lower Fischer Ranch 
45 Acres

West Pialorsi Ranch
38 Acres

East Pialorsi Ranch 
55 Acres

63



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020 TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  E.3 Consider Approval of 2019-2024 Strategic Plan 

Revisions 

PRESENTED BY: April Sousa, Board Secretary 

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call Vote 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the revisions to the Strategic Plan 
(Attachment 1), take public comment, and approve the revisions to the 2019-
2024 Strategic Plan.  

Discussion: 

The McKinleyville Community Services Districts Strategic Plan was approved 
September 4, 2019. As a part of the process, the Strategic Plan is reviewed by 
Staff and the Board annually to reflect continued progress that MCSD makes with 
projects, finances, and improvement programs. This plan is foundational to the 
District’s long-term financial health and stability yet provides annual reviews to 
stay grounded in the current and mid-term needs of the community we serve. 
The Strategic Plan will continue to be presented to the Board annually for 
approval.  

At the September 2, 2020 Board of Director’s meeting, proposed revisions were 
brought to the Board. Many of the revisions were to the timeline of specific goals 
due to the pandemic causing delays. The Board was given the opportunity to 
review staff changes as well as offer direction for other changes to this living 
document. All revisions from staff and the Board are present in the attached, red-
lined document.  

Alternatives: 

Take no Action 

Fiscal Analysis: 

Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements: 

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments: 

• Attachment 1 – Strategic Plan 2019-2024 – Red Lined Staff and Board
Revisions

64



Strategic 

Plan 

2019-2024 

McKinleyville Community 

Services District 

Item E.3 Attachment 1

65



Table of Contents 

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan TOC 

Introduction  ………………………………………………………………………. 1 

Purpose  ……………………………………………………………………………………… 1 

History  ……………………………………………………………………………………….. 1 

Services ………………………………………………………………………………………. 1 

Mission, Vision & Values  ……………………………………………………. 2 

Mission  ………………………………………………………………………………………. 2 

Vision  …………………………………………………………………………………………. 2 

Values  ………………………………………………………………………………………… 3 

Goals & Objectives  …………………………………………………………….. 5 

Plan Review, Revisions & Reporting  ……………………………………. 6 

APPENDIX A: Progress Reports  …………………………………………… A-1 

Plan Revisions 

Date Description of Change 

October 5, 2020 Change of due dates and direction of action in some cases due, in 

general, to pandemic causing delays. 

Addition to purpose regarding what district does. 

66



McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 1 

Introduction 

Purpose 

This Strategic Plan (Plan) exists to empower the McKinleyville Community Services 

District (District) to accomplish its mission by providing vision and specific objectives 

for the next five years. These objectives represent goals that are above and beyond 

the daily operations of the District required to fulfill our Mission Statement to:  

“Provide McKinleyville with safe and reliable water, wastewater, lighting, open space, 

parks and recreation, and library services in an environmentally and fiscally 

responsible manner.” 

The Plan was updated in July 2019, and approved in September 2020 by the 

District’s Board of Directors and staff with the understanding that it is a living 

document that will be reviewed regularly and revised as needed to better serve the 

District and the McKinleyville community. The Plan was purposefully fashioned as a 

succint, workable document so that it can be easily used to: 

o Measure District success

o Generate focused work plans

o Adopt comprehensive, goal-oriented budgets

o Communicate District values and direction to the community

History 

The McKinleyville Community Services District created on April 7, 1970 when 

McKinleyville's voters voted to form the District. Initially, the District had authority to 

serve water and treat sewer wastes. In 1972, the voters added street lighting powers, 

in 1985 the voters added recreational powers and in 1995 the voters authorized 

construction of the McKinleyville Library.  

Services 

The District boundary encompasses 12,140 acres ranging from North Bank Road on 

the south to Patrick’s Creek on the north and has over 5,300 active water services 

and 4,470 active sewer connections. The District is an independent, special district 

governed by a five member Board of Directors. The District provides the following 

services:  

- Water   -    Open Space 

- Wastewater   -    Parks and Recreation 

- Street Lights           -    Library Services 

67



McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 2 

Mission, Vision & Values 

Mission 

Provide McKinleyville with safe and reliable water, wastewater, lighting, open space, 

parks and recreation, library services, and other appropriate services for an urban 

community in an environmentally and fiscally responsible manner. 

Vision 

The District is an engaged, collaborative and responsible public agency that is 

committed to enhancing and preserving McKinleyville’s quality of life through the 

implementation of clear and forward thinking policies and plans for service provision 

within its scope of power.  

The District has established the following visionary goals for the next five years: 

 

The Parks & Recreation Department has developed and implemented and 

effective strategy that will close the gap between revenues and expenses, 

allowing for the long term sustainability of the department. 

 

The District is prepared for a major natural disaster and the public is 

educated and aware of MCSD’s role in response to a major natural disaster. 

 

The District will know the number of building permits allocated by the county 

within the District AND will know the impact accommodating allocated 

permits will have on District capacity. 

 

The District will have an effective strategic partnership plan in place. 

 

The District will have acquired the property for a community forest and will 

have a plan for sustainable management of said property. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

68



Mission, Vision & Values 

Values 

The Board of Directors has collectively established the following core values, along 

with the defining traits, culture and actions.  

INTEGRITY 

o Definition –  Truthfulness; Saying what you mean and doing what you say.

o Culture –  Trustworthy performance; Incorruptible.

o Actions –  Communicate using non-discriminatory language; Provide clear and

factually accurate information to public, staff and fellow board members; Make

decisions transparently; Form opinions/make judgments based on facts, not

assumptions.

RESPONSIBILITY 

o Definition – Dependable and accountable; Doing what is necessary in the best

possible way and with the best possible intentions.

o Culture – Accepting all consequences, both good and bad; Adaptive

Management.

o Actions – Follow through with commitments and follow up to evaluate results

and outcomes; Give full attention to listening to public, staff and/or fellow

board members during discussion and comment periods; Accept ownership of

decisions and all results/outcomes/consequences of decisions; do not engage

in blaming or making excuses; Focus decision making to that which serves

the best interest of McKinleyville residents within the powers of the MCSD

(water, sewer, streetlights, parks & rec and library powers).

FAMILY 

o Definition – Group/Unit that is not always chosen, connected by commonalities

and shared experience with defined roles.

o Culture – Efficiency, lightheartedness, respect, listening (open eared), care for

members, forgiveness, and understanding with respected leadership.

o Actions – Listen to HEAR, not to REPLY; focus listening until person stops

talking and THEN formulate your reply; Do not engage in gossip; Remain

mindful and considerate of commonalities between self and others when

engaging in challenging dialogue; Volunteer in the community; Express

gratitude, regularly and often; Develop a shared vision and goal that we work

to achieve together.

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 3 
69



Mission, Vision & Values 

Values Cont. 

FAIRNESS 

o Definition –   Decisions based on rules, facts and circumstances.

o Culture –  Consideration given to all facets in a consistent manner.

o Actions – Clearly communicate criteria for fairness in decisions; Judge

according to facts; leave out emotion, ‘shoulds’, judgements and assumptions;

Listen and give due consideration to all sides of an issue with an open mind

before forming opinions or making judgements and decisions; Give equitable

and consistent consideration to issues and options when making decisions.

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 4 
70



G O A L 1 

ACTION 
DESCRIPTION 

PARTY / DEPT 
RESPONSIBLE 

BEGIN 
DATE 

DUE 
DATE 

RESOURCES  
REQUIRED  (staff, 

tech, etc. ) 

HAZARD 
FORECAST 

DESIRED 
OUTCOME 

Plan and 
Implement an 
annual "Spirits & 
Appetizers" 
Event as a 
fundraiser in 
Coordination with 
a local non-profit 

Rec. Director 7/1/2019 
2/28/2020 
TBD 

Willing & interested 
non-profit; 
Volunteers; Vendors; 
Activity & Teen Ctrs 

No 
interested 
and willing 
non-profit; 
competing 
events; 

Raise 
minimum of 
$10,000 in 
first year 

Add 2-3 revenue 
generating 
classes/programs 
to annual 
offerings 

Rec. 
Coordinators 

7/1/2019 6/30/2023 

Facility space; 
available 
staff/instructors; 
supplies and/or 
technology 
depending on 
program 

No interest 
in classes; 
will not 
generate 
revenue 
exceeding 
the cost of 
offering; 

Increase 
dept. revenue 
by $5k-$10k 

Implement a 
comprehensive 
marketing plan 

Rec. Director 6/15/2019 
6/30/2020 
12/31/2020 

Staff time; money to 
invest in marketing 
strategies 

Lack of 
resources 
to invest in 
marketing; 
possibility of 
not getting 
return on 
investment 
of 
marketing. 

Increase 
facility 
revenue by 
$8k-$15k 

Survey 
community to 
determine 
feasibility of 
increasing 
Measure B 
Assessment 
amount 

GM & Rec. 
Director 

7/1/2021 12/31/2021 
Consultant/contractor 
to implement survey 
and write report 

Lack of 
resources 
to hire 
consultants; 
community 
does not 
support 
increase. 

Increase is 
feasible; know 
amount of 
feasible 
increase 
based on 
community 
support 

Implement 
process for re-
assessment of 
Measure B at 
higher rate 

GM & Rec. 
Director 

1/1/2022 11/10/2022 

Consultant/contractor 
to implement process 
for reassessing 
measure B 

Community 
does not 
support 
increase 

Community 
supports 
reassessment 
and votes to 
increase in 
measure tax 

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 5 

Goals & Objectives 

71



G O A L 2 

The District is prepared for a major natural disaster and the public is educated and aware of MCSD’s role in 
response to a mjore natural disaster. 

ACTION 
DESCRIPTION 

PARTY / DEPT 
RESPONSIBLE 

BEGIN 
DATE 

DUE 
DATE 

RESOURCES  
REQUIRED  (staff, 

tech, etc. ) 

HAZARD 
FORECAST 

DESIRED 
OUTCOME 

Plan and 
implement Public 
Education 
materials related 
to Disaster 
Preparedness and 
the District 

EOP Team 8/1/2019 
12/31/2019 
12/31/20 

Staff time; materials 

Public does not 
participate; 
method of 
distributing 
materials does not 
reach whole 
community; 

Disaster 
preparedness 
Education 
materials 
related the 
District's role 
and the roles 
of community 
members are 
available and 
distributed 
widely 

Host 2-3 public 
workshops or 
trainings videos 
related to disaster 
preparedness 
specific to 
McKinleyville 

EOP Team 1/2/2020 6/30/2022 
Staff time; facility 
space; 
materials/resources 

Public does not 
participate; 
Outreach/invitation 
methods not 
effective; lack of 
staff time 

Workshops 
hosted and 
community 
feedback 
regarding 
increased 
knowledge 
evaluated 

Create process 
for updating 
public. Outline all 
methods of 
putting 
information out to 
public. 

EOP Team & 
Admin Staff 

5/1/2020 12/31/2020 Staff Time 
Lack of staff time; 
methods are not 
effective 

Information 
campaign is 
ready to 
launch and 
surveys of 
public 
indicate an 
increase in 
awareness 
and 
knowledge 

Goals & Objectives 

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 6 
72



G O A L 3 

The District will know the number of building permits allocated by the county within the District AND will know the 
impact accommodating allocated permits will have on District capacity. 

ACTION 
DESCRIPTION 

PARTY / DEPT 
RESPONSIBLE 

BEGIN 
DATE 

DUE 
DATE 

RESOURCES  
REQUIRED  (staff, 

tech, etc. ) 

HAZARD 
FORECAST 

DESIRED 
OUTCOME 

Create process by 
which county 
permit allocation 
information is 
shared with the 
District 

GM 7/29/2019 
12/31/2019 
TBD 

Staff time; County 
Staff 
time/participation 

County does not 
cooperate 

Process is 
effective and 
efficient for 
collecting the 
necessary 
data 

Integrate County 
information into 
District's 
Hydraulic Flow 
Analysis 

GIS Tech 1/1/2020 
6/30/2020 
TBD 

Staff time; County 
zoning and building 
permit data; 
hydraulic analysis 
software; GIS 
software; 

Inadequate data 
or format of data; 

Integrated 
data allows 
analysis of 
zoning, 
planning and 
hydraulic 
capacity. 

Determine or set 
annual date for 
providing this 
information to the 
MCSD Board of 
Directors 

GM, GIS Tech 
and BOD 

7/1/2020 
8/31/2020 
TBD 

Staff time; Modeling 
analysis; 
coordination 
w/county 

Lack of agreement 
between county 
and MCSD related 
to the outcome of 
the analysis. 

An annual 
date is set 
and agreed 
upon by both 
county and 
MCSD 

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 7 

Goals & Objectives 

73



G O A L 4 

The District will have an effective strategic partnership plan in place. 

ACTION 
DESCRIPTION 

PARTY / DEPT 
RESPONSIBLE 

BEGIN 
DATE 

DUE 
DATE 

RESOURCES  
REQUIRED  (staff, 

tech, etc. ) 

HAZARD 
FORECAST 

DESIRED 
OUTCOME 

Create a 
comprehensive 
list of existing 
partnerships 
including projects 
in progress or 
completed 
through the 
partnership 

GM & Dept. 
Heads 

6/1/2021 6/30/2021 Staff time 

Lack of staff time; 
lack of 
participating/willing 
partners 

List serves 
as a resource 
for current 
and future 
work of the 
District 

Create a 
comprehensive 
list of potential 
partnerships that 
have not yet been 
developed 

GM & Dept. 
Heads, BOD 

2/1/2022 
3/32/2022 
3/31/2022 

Staff time 

Lack of staff time; 
lack of 
participating/willing 
partners 

List serves 
as a resource 
for current 
and future 
work of the 
District 

Create a rubric for 
determining when 
to partner, with 
whom and for 
what 

GM & Dept. 
Heads, BOD 

7/1/2021 12/31/2021 Staff time Lack of staff time 

Rubric 
exists to 
guide 
partnership 
decisions 

Outline the 
required steps 
and 
considerations for 
developing and 
implementing 
partnership 
agreements 

GM & Dept. 
Heads 

1/1/2022 6/30/2022 Staff time Lack of staff time 

Clear 
guidelines 
and 
expectations 
for staff to 
follow when 
developing 
partnerships 
and engaging 
in work with 
existing 
partners. 

Create a rubric of 
criteria for 
measuring the 
effectiveness of a 
partnership 

GM & Dept. 
Heads, BOD 

7/1/2022 12/31/2022 Staff time Lack of staff time 

Rubric 
exists to 
measure 
effectiveness 
of partnership 

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 8 

Goals & Objectives 

74



G O A L 5 

The District will have acquired the property for a community forest and will have a plan for sustainable 
management of said property. 

ACTION 
DESCRIPTION 

PARTY / DEPT 
RESPONSIBLE 

BEGIN 
DATE 

DUE 
DATE 

RESOURCES  
REQUIRED  (staff, 

tech, etc. ) 

HAZARD 
FORECAST 

DESIRED 
OUTCOME 

Define amenities 
of Community 
Forest as desired 
by the community 
residents 

GM, Rec. Dir & 
BOD 

1/1/2019 12/31/2021 
Staff time; public 
input; 
resources/materials 

Lack of public 
participation 

Parameters 
are defined for 
a Community 
Forest 

Identify potential 
properties 

GM & BOD 1/1/2022 12/31/2023 Staff time 
Lack of available 
property 

Potential 
properties are 
identified and 
available 

Identify funding 
for acquisition of 
property 

GM, Rec. Dir & 
BOD 

7/1/2022 6/30/2024 Staff time 

Lack of funding 
options; lack of 
public support for 
new taxes 

Funding for 
acquisition 
obtained. 

Identify Forest 
management 
strategies for 
identified 
properties 

Forest 
Consultant 

1/1/2023 12/31/2024 
Resources to fund 
consultant; staff time 

Lack of 
resources for 
consultant; lack 
of resources to 
support 
management 
strategies 

Management 
strategies 
identified are 
feasible and 
funded. 

McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 9 

Goals & Objectives 

75



McKinleyville Community Services District | Strategic Plan 10 

Plan Review, Revisions & Reporting 

The District will review this Plan at least once annually to ensure that the Plan 

continues to be accurate and best serve the needs of the District. Plan revisions may 

be made at any time. All revisions must be approved by the Board of Directors. A 

record of revisions will be kept on the Table of Contents page. 

At the end of each fiscal year, the General Manager will prepare a brief report for the 

Board of Directors summarizing the progress that has been made toward attaining 

the District’s goals and objectives. Reports will be included in the Appendix of this 

Plan. 

76



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020       TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATIONAL 

ITEM:  E.4 Review Proposed District Regulations and Procedures 

for Personal Wireless Service Facilities (Cell Towers) 

PRESENTED BY: Pat Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION: None 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the proposed policy language regarding 
procedures for construction and lease of personal wireless service facilities on 
District property, take public comment, and provide feedback to Staff. Staff will 
present a final draft of this policy at the November 4, 2020 Board meeting. 

Discussion: 

Due to public comments and concerns received at both the June and July Board 
of Directors meeting regarding cellular towers being placed on District property. 
Staff was directed to return to the Board a draft policy for consideration. Staff 
consulted with the County on current regulations. The County considers these 
towers as quasi-public structures and their uses, principally permitted or 
otherwise, is found in County Code Section 314-85.1. There are also countless 
State and Federal regulations as well. It should be noted that cellular towers fall 
collectively under the term “personal wireless service facility” along with other 
facilities constructed for the provision of personal wireless services. This policy is 
intended to establish guidelines for the approval of the installation of new 
infrastructure on District land and is not intended to cover existing structures or 
supersede/replace any State, County, or Federal guidelines. It is also not 
intended to cover components of the District’s SCADA system needed to operate 
and maintain District facilities. 

This draft policy contains a path from proposal submittal to approval, which 
includes multiple appearances at Board meetings to include informational 
sessions, public hearings, formal discussion and approval/denial of proposal. 
Staff is open to suggestions regarding edits to this policy draft. 

Alternatives: 

Take Action 

Fiscal Analysis: 

Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements: 

77



Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments: 

• Attachment 1 – Draft Personal Wireless Service Facility Policy

78



Purpose 

MCSD is committed to being responsible and responsive to its ratepayers and community. In recent 

times, the erecting of personal wireless service facilities (cellular towers) on public lands has become a 

general practice throughout the county and the state. As of the adoption of this policy, Humboldt 

County does not have specified regulations for the placing of personal wireless service facilities on public 

land; however, these facilities are considered quasi-public structures, and their uses (principally 

permitted or otherwise) are laid out in County Code section 314-85.1. County Code and other State and 

Federal regulations cover the permitting, installation, and operation of these facilities, and it is not the 

intent to supersede or replace any of those regulations with this Policy. 

The District currently has personal wireless service facilities (PWSF) on some of its properties and 

collects rents for the leasing of the area for the PWSF.  This rental payment goes into the general fund 

and can be used on any project the Board approves as it is not constrained by water and sewer fee 

restrictions.  This policy is intended to establish guidelines for the approval for the installation of a new 

PWSF infrastructure on District land. It is not the intent for this policy to cover any existing PWSF 

structures.  It is also not the intent for this policy to cover District communication antenna or other 

infrastructure required for the operation and monitoring of District facilities. Additionally, this policy is 

not intended to prohibit any personal wireless service provider’s ability to provide personal wireless 

services, unreasonably discriminate among providers of functionally equivalent personal wireless 

services, deny any request for authorization to place, construct, or modify PWSF on the basis of 

environmental effects of radio frequency emissions to the extent that such facilities comply with the 

Federal Communication Commission’s (FCC) regulations concerning such emissions, or impose any 

unreasonable, discriminatory, or anticompetitive fees that exceed the reasonable cost to provide the 

services for which the fee is charged. 

Definitions 

Personal Wireless Service Facility (PWSF) – facilities for the provision of personal wireless services, 

including transmitters, antennas, structures supporting antennas (such as Cellular Towers), and other 

electronic equipment that is typically installed in close proximity to a transmitter. 

Personal wireless service provider – any entity that provides commercial mobile services, Licensed and 

unlicensed wireless services, and common carrier wireless exchange access services. 

Proposal and Review procedures 

1. Proposal. A proposal of any new PWSF must include the following information and materials:

a. Construction Drawings and specific measurements/dimensions of facility. Including location of

tower, tower height, location of supporting wiring and other infrastructure, set back 

requirements from other structures or infrastructure, operational parameters. 

b. Photo simulations that show the existing location and the proposed PWSF in context from at

least three vantage points. 

c. Project narrative and justification that explains in plain factual detail whether the proposed

facility meets both the requirements of Humboldt County zoning and FCC regulations. 

Item E.4 Attachment 1

79



d. RF Exposure Compliance Report that certifies the proposed small wireless facility, both

individually and cumulatively with all other emitters that contribute more than 5% to the 

cumulative emissions in the vicinity (if any), will comply with applicable federal RF exposure 

standards and limits. 

e. Regulatory Authorization that shows the applicant has regulatory status under federal and

state law to provide the services and construct the PWSF proposed in the application. 

f. Proposed Lease monthly/annual lease amount, lease terms, copy of draft lease agreement or

statement of willingness to sign District lease agreement. 

g. Any necessary environmental studies required to allow the District to perform the required

CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) evaluation and permitting. 

h. Necessary Plan review fees as established by the District to pay for Staff time to review the

proposal. 

2. Voluntary Pre-submittal Conference. MCSD strongly encourages but does not require applicants to

schedule and attend a pre-submittal conference with District staff. This will streamline the review 

process, identify any latent issues in connection to the proposal, discover any potential concerns, and 

address the completeness of the proposal. 

3. District Board Review. At a duly convened meeting of the MCSD Board of Directors, the following will

be required, and may cause the need of multiple reviews: 

a. Information session to inform the Board of the project proposal and allow for the Board to ask

questions. 

b. Public Hearing for neighbors/community/ratepayers to communicate concerns or support for

the project. Although Applicant is not required to attend the Public Meeting to answer 

questions, they are strongly encouraged to. 

c. Formal discussion and vote of the Board to approve or deny the proposal.

d. In the event of an approval, a formal discussion and vote of a contract/lease for the PWSF.

e. Additional approval may be required if, for instance, the Board approves the Project in

concept but requires the applicant to submit a final design, environmental studies and other 

necessary permits for complete approval. 

f. District will need to comply with CEQA on the project.  This may be at the initial meeting or a

subsequent meeting.  Note that CEQA needs to be completed before the project is formally 

approved by the Board. 

Required Approvals 

1. Interested parties shall send a proposal of PWSF development for consideration to the General

Manager. The General Manager will then work with the applicant to bring the project proposal to the 

Board for Board approval. 

80



2. If the location in which the personal wireless service facility is to be located is not principally

permitted, the provider will need to obtain permission through the Humboldt County Planning 

Department to construct this quasi-public structure on non-principally permitted zones. 

3. Applicant is required to obtain all other required permits, license, pay any other necessary fees, etc.

for project approval, construction, and operation. 

81



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020  TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  E.5 Consider Approval of Modification of Parks & 

Recreation CIP Budget to Appropriate Funds for the 

Replacement of Aging Toro Mower at Hiller Sports Site 

PRESENTED BY: Lesley Frisbee, Recreation Director 

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call Vote 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided, air questions, 
discuss, take public comment and approve the modification of the Parks & 
Recreation CIP budget for the replacement of the aging Toro mower at Hiller 
Sports Site.  

Discussion: 

The existing Toro mower at Hiller Sports Site was purchased in 2015.  It currently 
has over 3,600 hours of use.  A mower of its size and scope typically lasts for 
3,000 hours of use.  It was budgeted to be replaced in the spring of FY 2019-
2020, however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and lost revenues, the Parks & 
Recreation Dept. did not purchase the replacement during that time.  In finalizing 
the budget for FY 2020-2021, staff mistakenly failed to edit the Parks CIP to 
include the replacement purchase in the current fiscal year and so it is necessary 
to request a budget modification in order to be able to replace the aged mower.   

At this time the existing mower is in consistent need of repairs, and it is 
recommended that it be replaced.  The replacement cost is $15,780.   

Alternatives: 

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis: 

The old mower will be sold to offset the cost of the new mower. However, the 
price range for used mowers of that type ranges from immaterial to modest 
(approximately $700 to $4,250), so offsetting revenue lines were not adjusted. 
Given the useful life of less than five years for these mowers (as currently used 
by the District), one possible recommendation would be to treat them as an 
expense rather than a capital asset on future purchases. 

Environmental Requirements: 

82



Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – Draft Revised Parks/ General Fund Budget FY20-21 

83



McKinleyville Community Services District

Budget Summary: Net Position - All Funds

FY2020-21

Item E.5 Attachment 1

Net Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the 
District, total assets and deferred outflows of resources are projected in the budget to exceed liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources by $27,792,166 as of June 30, 2021. 

The District's total net position is made up of three components: (1) net investment in capital assets, (2) 
restricted net position, and (3) unrestricted net position.

At the end of the Fiscal Year, June 30, 2021, the net position of the District is projected to remain nearly 
unchanged from the FY18-19 total of 27,919,237. A decrease of approximately 0.4% or $127,071 is projected for 
a total net position of $27,792,166. This includes an decrease of approximately 4% for the current fiscal year and 
an offsetting increase of approximately 4% for the proposed budgeted year.

Total revenues are projected to increase at the end of the budget year by 23.7%, or $2,295,751 for a total of 
$11,989,590 from all revenue sources. This compares to an overall decrease projected for the current year of -
9.31% or $995,712 for a total of $9,693,839 in projected actual revenues for this fiscal year.

Total expenditures are projected to increase at the end of the budget year by 7.6% or $593,059 for a total of 
$8,345,981 for all expenditure types. This compares to an overall decrease projected for the current year of -
2.9% or ($231,190) for a total of $7,752,922 projected actual expenditures for this fiscal year.

Even though the overall net position is not expected to change by a materially significant amount, the impact of 
the various State and local government orders related to the COVID19 pandemic are apparent in the decreases 
projected for the current fiscal year followed by modest increases for the budgeted year. Aside from that, the 
total projected revenue loss of the current fiscal year is also in small part due to the loss of expected capital 
projects grant income for the Parks/General Fund. Likewise, the total revenue budget for FY20-21 is increased by 
the expected receipt of capital projects grant income for both the Water and Wastewater Funds. The net 
projected decrease in expenditures for the current fiscal year includes the removal of the grant-dependent 
capital projects for the Parks/General Fund as well as the reduction in part-time Parks staff due to the COVID19 
orders. The net budgeted increase in expenditures for FY20-21 is smaller than the expected increase in revenues 
from all sources, even allowing for the capital projects grant income.  

84



Description  Water Fund 

 Wastewater 

Fund 

 Streetlights 

Fund 

 Gen'l/Parks 

Fund 

 Measure B 

Fund 

 Total 

(Memorandum 

Only) 

Revenues

Water Sales 3,917,744       3,917,744 

Sewer Service Charges 4,004,460       4,004,460 

Capacity Fees 100,000          100,000          200,000 

Streetlight Charges 98,268 98,268 

Program Fees - 206,245 206,245 

Facility Fees - 37,015 37,015 

Property Taxes - 633,841 633,841 

Measure B Assessment - - 221,132 221,132 

Open Space Fees - 115,315 115,315 

Contributions & Other Program - 1,300 1,300 

Other Revenue 320,299          1,986,309       18,500 16,912 2,342,020 

Contributed Construction 100,000          75,000 - 175,000 

Proceeds from Long Term Debt (Gov't only) - - - 

Quimby Fees/Capital Proj. Grants - 39,000 39,000 

Interest Revenue 50,000 75,000 50 45,000 3,200 173,250 

Total Revenues 4,488,043       6,240,769       116,818          1,094,628        224,332 12,164,590         

Expenditures

Salaries & Benefits - Operations & Maint. 590,676          639,198          2,832 1,232,706 

Salaries & Benefits - Billing & Admin 454,804          433,238          45,120 933,162 

Salaries & Benefits - Rec Programs - 238,156 238,156 

Salaries & Benefits- Parks Maintenance - 212,718 70,409 283,127 

Salaries & Benefits- Parks&Rec Admin - 357,588 357,588 

Water Purchased (COGS) 1,125,534       1,125,534 

Water & Electrical Expense - 164,000          17,300 181,300 

Operating Expenses 262,900          292,250          - 555,150 

Other Expenses 528,061          594,335          23,174 1,145,570 

Other Expenditures - Rec Programs - 15,850 15,850 

Other Expenditures - Parks Maintenance - 112,075 25,500 137,575 

Other Expenditures - Parks&Rec Admin - 113,022 113,022 

Depreciation Expense 363,000          1,160,000       1,523,000 

Board Travel Expense 10,000 6,000 400 1,100 17,500 

CalPERS UAL - Gov't Funds only - - - 

Debt Service - Gov't Funds only - - - 92,054 92,054 

Interest Expense 55,126 247,163          - 35,398 337,687 

Parks/Meas.B Capital Expenditures - 2,000 55,000 57,000 

Total  Expenditures 3,390,101       3,536,184       90,826 1,105,509        223,361 8,345,981 

Excess (Deficit) 1,097,942       2,704,585       25,992 (10,881) 971 3,818,609 

Fund Balance - July 1, 2019 8,974,118       18,260,731     19,231 1,245,711        (580,554)          27,919,237         

Projected Surplus (Deficit) FY2019-20 1,125,940       922,579          28,658 (22,221) 5,261 2,060,217 

Debt Principal FY2019-20 (Enterprise only) (162,868)         (500,344)         (663,212) 

New Borrowing FY2019-20(Enterprise only) - 1,508,500       1,508,500 

Capital Expenditure FY2019-20(Enterprise) (137,057)         (1,669,804)      (1,806,861) 

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2020 9,800,133       18,521,661     47,889 1,223,490        (575,293)          29,017,881         

Budgeted Excess (Deficit) FY2020-21 1,097,942       2,704,585       25,992 (10,881) 971 3,818,609 

Anticipated Borrowing FY2020-21(Enterprise) - - - 

Capital Project grant funding (contingent) 183,500          1,880,250       2,063,750 

Debt Principal FY2020-21 (Enterprise only) 166,746          (588,819)         (422,073) 

Capital Expenditure FY2020-21(Enterprise) (1,832,500)      (4,853,500)      (6,686,000) 

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2021 9,415,821       17,664,177     73,881 1,212,609        (574,322)          27,792,166         

McKinleyville Community Services District
Summary Budgets - All Funds, Draft Revised for Parks/Gen'l Fund

FY 2020-21

FY 2020-21 Budget
Attachment 1

 

85



Description

 Difference 

(Memorandum 

Only) 

Revenues

Program Fees 368,779 28% 206,245         19% (162,534) -9.0%

Facility Fees 87,375 7% 37,015 3% (50,360) -3.2%

Property Taxes 631,898 48% 633,841         58% 1,944 10.1%

Open Space Fees 112,162 8% 115,315         11% 3,153 2.1%

Contributions & Other Program 1,000 0% 1,300 0.1% 300 0.0%

Other Revenue 17,682 1% 16,912 2% (770) 0.2%

Quimby Fees/ Grants/Loans 77,000 6% 39,000 4% (38,000) -2.3%

Interest Revenue 27,000 2.0% 45,000 4.1% 18,000 2.1%

Total Revenues 1,322,896       100% 1,094,628      100% (228,267) -20.9%

Expenditures 431,102 194,554 

Salaries & Benefits - Programs 366,551 28% 238,156         22% (128,395) -6.6%

Salaries & Benefits- Maintenance 215,857 17% 212,718         19% (3,139) 2.6%

Salaries & Benefits- Admin 353,909 27% 357,588         32% 3,679 5.1%

Other Expenditures - Programs 28,406 2% 15,850 1% (12,556) -0.8%

Other Expenditures - Maint. 119,190 9% 112,075         10.1% (7,115) 1.0%

Other Expenditures - Admin 100,421 8% 113,022         10.2% 12,601 2.5%

Board Travel Expenditures 1,300 0.1% 1,100 0.1% (200) 0.0%

CalPERS UAL 40,000 3% - 0.0% (40,000) -3.1%

Capital Expenditures & Interest 75,000 6% 55,000 5% (20,000) -0.8%

Total  Expenditures 1,300,634       100% 1,105,509      100% (195,125) -17.7%

Excess (Deficit) 22,262 (10,880)          

McKinleyville Community Services District

Parks/General Fund DRAFT Revised Operating Budget

FY 2020-21

 Parks/General Fund 

Approved Budget 

FY2019-20 

  Parks/General Fund 

Proposed Budget 

FY2020-21 

 Salaries & Benefits -
Programs

 Salaries & Benefits-
Maintenance

 Salaries & Benefits-
Admin

 Other Expenditures -
Programs

 Other Expenditures -
Maint.

 Other Expenditures -
Admin

 Board Travel
Expenditures

 CalPERS UAL

 Capital Expenditures
& Interest

Budgeted 
Expenditures
FY20-21

 Salaries & Benefits -
Programs

 Salaries & Benefits-
Maintenance

 Salaries & Benefits-
Admin

 Other Expenditures -
Programs

 Other Expenditures -
Maint.

 Other Expenditures -
Admin

 Board Travel
Expenditures

 CalPERS UAL

 Capital Expenditures &
Interest

Budgeted 
Expenditures 
FY19-20

FY 2020-21 Parks Revised Budget
Attachment 1

86



A
tta

c
h

m
e
n

t 1(A
ll n

u
m

b
e
rs

 in
 $

0
0
0
s
)

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
1

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
2

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
3

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
4

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
5

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
6

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
7

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
8

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
2
9

J
u

n
e
 3

0
,

2
0
3
0

1
.

H
ille

r P
a
rk

 &
 S

p
o

rts
 C

o
m

p
le

x
 P

ro
je

c
ts

T
o

ta
ls

:
1
4

0
5
0

0
2
5

0
0

1
3

5
0

2
.

P
ie

rs
o

n
 P

a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
ts

T
o

ta
ls

:
0

0
6
0

0
2
2

5
0

0
0

0

3
.

A
z
a
le

a
 H

a
ll P

ro
je

c
ts

T
o

ta
ls

:
0

2
4

1
1
1

2
5

6
6

6
1
1

6
2
1

3
1

4
.

M
c
K

in
le

y
v

ille
 A

c
tiv

ity
 C

e
n

te
r P

ro
je

c
ts

T
o

ta
ls

:
1
5

8
5

4
2

1
0

7
0

2
6

0
0

0
0

5
.

O
th

e
r P

a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 &
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

T
o

ta
ls

:
1
6

1
8

1
6

1
1

0
1
1

0
1
2

0
1
2

6
.

L
a
w

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t F
a
c
ility

 P
ro

je
c
ts

T
o

ta
ls

:
0

0
6

0
5

1
0

0
2
1

0
0

7
.

M
c
K

in
le

y
v

ille
 L

ib
ra

ry
 P

ro
je

c
ts

T
o

ta
ls

:
1
0

0
6

0
6

2
0

2
1

0
0

0

M
c
K

in
le

y
v

ille
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

F
o

r th
e
 F

is
c
a
l Y

e
a
rs

 E
n

d
in

g
 J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2
1
 - 2

0
3
0

G
e
n

e
ra

l F
u

n
d

 (P
a
rk

s
 &

 R
e
c
re

a
tio

n
) D

R
A

F
T

 R
e
v

is
e
d

 C
a
p

ita
l Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t P
ro

je
c
t B

u
d

g
e
t

Page4

87



A
tta

c
h

m
e
n

t 1(A
ll n

u
m

b
e
rs

 in
 $

0
0
0
s
)

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
1

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
2

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
3

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
4

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
5

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
6

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
7

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
8

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
9

J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
3
0

M
c
K

in
le

y
v

ille
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

is
tric

t

F
o

r th
e
 F

is
c
a
l Y

e
a
rs

 E
n

d
in

g
 J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2
1
 - 2

0
3
0

G
e
n

e
ra

l F
u

n
d

 (P
a
rk

s
 &

 R
e
c
re

a
tio

n
) D

R
A

F
T

 R
e
v

is
e
d

 C
a
p

ita
l Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t P
ro

je
c
t B

u
d

g
e
t

8
.

T
e
e
n

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 C
e
n

te
r 

T
o

ta
ls

:
0

1
0

0
0

0
2
0

0
5

0
0

9
.

P
ro

je
c
ts

 C
o

n
tin

g
e
n

t U
p

o
n

 G
ra

n
t F

u
n

d
in

gT
o

ta
ls

:
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
0

0
0

0

1
0
.

P
ro

je
c
ts

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 Q

u
im

b
y
 &

 O
th

e
r F

u
n

d
s

T
o

ta
ls

:
0

0
0

2
5

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

n
e
d

 C
a
p

ita
l E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
s

5
5

1
3
7

2
9
1

7
1

1
9
4

9
8

4
2

5
7

2
6

4
3

Page5

88



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020       TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATIONAL 

ITEM:  E.6 Review Virtual Meeting Rules to be Inserted into the 

Board Policy Manual  

PRESENTED BY: April Sousa, Board Secretary 

TYPE OF ACTION: None 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the suggested Rules, take public 
comment, and give feedback on the proposed Rules to incorporate virtual 
meeting etiquette, participation, public comment, and Brown Act requirements 
into current Board Policy Manual. This item will come back to the Board 
integrated within other updates to the Board Policy Manual at the November 
Board Meeting. 

Discussion: 

In April 2020, MCSD conducted its first virtual meeting due to the COVID-19 
pandemic in accordance with guidance put forth by the State of California. Due to 
continued COVID-19 impacts, it has become necessary to formalize and include 
procedures and Rules within the Board Policy Manual for current and future 
situations.  

The Board directed Staff to draft language for these procedures. Attachment 1 
provides the draft language and suggested areas for each portion of these 
procedures. Primarily, Board member etiquette and participation procedures 
would be found in Part 4, which deals with the Code of Ethics of Board Members. 
Part 5 is primarily concerned with Board Meeting Procedures, which includes 
location of meetings, Brown Act compliance requirements for transparency and 
open meeting laws, organization of the meetings and preparation of the 
meetings. Part 6 gives guidelines on Board Meeting Conduct.  

One Rule regarding Virtual Meeting Board Member Participation could be located 
in Rule 4-2 or Rule 6-8, or both.  

Staff is open to combining all regulations into a separate rule titled “Virtual 
Meetings” instead of spreading out the Rules throughout other sections if the 
Board would prefer this method. 

Alternatives: 

Take Action 

89



Fiscal Analysis:  

Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements:  

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – Draft Regulations and Procedures for Virtual Meetings 

90



Part 4 (Code of Ethics) 
Rule 4-1 (Objectives)  

Rule 4-1J Virtual Meeting Etiquette 
In the event that Board meetings are held on a virtual platform, or a Board member attends a 
meeting remotely or by teleconference, the Board member is expected to express the same 
decorum as they would in person. For any virtual meeting participation, Board members 
should attend dressed appropriately and provide full attention to the proceedings of the Board 
meeting.   

Rule 4-2 (Information) 

Rule 4-2E Virtual Meeting Board Member Participation (or Rule 6-8) 
When attending a meeting remotely or virtually, Board members should keep microphones 
muted unless speaking. In order to be called upon for discussion, motions, or voting, Board 
members should use the “Raise Hand” feature of the virtual platform. If this is not accessible, 
the Board member may physically raise their hand and wait to be called upon by the Chair. 

Part 5 (Board Meeting Procedures) 

Rule 5-1: REGULAR MEETINGS - Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on 
the first Wednesday of each calendar month at 7:00 PM at either Azalea Hall 1620 Pickett 
Road, McKinleyville or the District Office at 1656 Sutter Road, McKinleyville as specified by 
the agenda. The date, time, and place of regular meetings shall be reconsidered annually at the 
annual organizational meeting of the Board. 

5-1a: Virtual Meetings – On March 12, California State Governor Newsom signed 
Executive Order N-25-20 with clarifying regulations through Executive Order N-29-20 on 
March 20, 2020, relaxing specific location meeting requirements of the Brown Act. On April 
1, 2020 MCSD approved Resolution 2020-05 aligning with executive orders to allow for 
Regular board meetings to meet virtually via zoom at the following location Zoom: 
https://zoom.us/j/6756339628 or Toll Free: 1-888-788-0099. This regulation will remain 
in effect until rescinded by the Governor. If similar circumstances in the future require 
virtual meetings, a new Resolution will be drafted and voted on by the Board. 

Rule 6-3: Public Input 

6-3C: Public Input for Virtual Meetings – the public will be permitted to participate 
live at each virtual meeting in accordance with the same regulations as attending and 
speaking at a live board meeting. For members who are unable to attend the meeting live, 
the public may send letters and/or emails to the Board Secretary no later than 4:30 p.m. 
the day prior to the meeting. A supplemental packet of all received letters will be presented 
to the board the day of the meeting and posted online for public viewing. Any letters 
received after the deadline will be held until the next meeting. The Board secretary will 
record a summary of the letters/emails received during the meeting for public record.  

Item E.6 Attachment 1

91

https://zoom.us/j/6756339628


McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020       TYPE OF ITEM:  Action 

ITEM:  E.7 Approve Regular Board Meeting Dates, Time, and Location 

for the 2021 Calendar Year 

PRESENTED BY:  April Sousa, Board Secretary 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call Vote 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Board review, discuss, take public comment, and approve the 
presented Regular Board Meeting Dates, Time, and Locations for the 2021 Calendar 
Year. 

Discussion: 

Both the MCSD Rules and Regulations (under Regulation 61, Board Meetings, Rule 
61.0, Regular Meetings) and the Board of Directors Policy Manual (under Part 5, 
Board Meeting Procedures, Rule 5-1: Regular Meetings) address this topic – 
Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the first Wednesday of 
each calendar month at 7:00 PM at either Azalea Hall, 1620 Pickett Road, or the 
District Office, 1656 Sutter Road, as specified by the agenda. The date, time, and 
place of the regular meetings shall be reconsidered annually.  On April 1, 2020, in 
accordance with California State Governor’s Executive Orders regarding open public 
meeting laws, MCSD declared an emergency due to COVID-19 and confirmed a 
virtual platform as the location for MCSD Board meetings indefinitely. Meeting 
locations for 2021 may be the afore mentioned locations or by Teleconference via 
Zoom & Telephone (zoom meeting ID 6756336928 or Dial in at 1-888-788-0099). 

This item was originally brought to the Board at the August 5, 2020 meeting for 
review and input. No potentially problematic dates were brought forward to be 
considered for cancellation.  

Alternatives: 

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action 

• Change the meeting dates  

Fiscal Analysis:  

Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements:  

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – Proposed 2021 MCSD Regular Board Meeting Schedule 

92



2021 Proposed MCSD Board Meetings 

Per MCSD Rules and Regulations and the Board of Directors Policy 
Manual, all Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the 

first Wednesday of every month at 7:00 p.m. at either Azalea Hall 1620 
Pickett Road, or the  District Office, 1656 Sutter Road, as specified by the 
agenda. On April 1, 2020, in accordance with California State Governor’s 
Executive Orders regarding open public meeting laws, MCSD declared an 

emergency due to COVID-19 and confirmed a virtual platform as the 
location for MCSD Board meetings indefinitely. Meeting locations for 2021 
may be the afore mentioned locations or by Teleconference via Zoom & 
Telephone (zoom meeting ID 6756336928 or Dial in at 1-888-788-0099). 

DATE 

January 6, 2021 

February 3, 2021 

March 3, 2021 

April 7, 2021 

May 5, 2021 

June 2, 2021 

July 7, 2021 

August 4, 2021 

September 1, 2021 

October 6, 2021 

November 3, 2021 

December 1, 2021 

Item E.7 Attachment 1

93



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020       TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATIONAL 

ITEM:  E.8 Consider Special Board Meeting to Tour Proposed 

Community Forest Access Points and Property 

PRESENTED BY: Pat Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION: Direction to Staff 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the information, take public comment, 
and provide direct to Staff regarding a special meeting to tour the proposed 
Community Forest trail heads and property. 

Discussion: 

The District is in the next round for possible grant funding to purchase 550-acres 
of Community Forest land. Although the grant award is not guaranteed, Staff is 
beginning the planning and community outreach for the establishment of a 
Community Forest.  An Ad Hoc Committee has been established consisting of 
Directors Corbett and Mayo, Parks & Recreation Director Frisbee, and GM 
Kaspari. Other Members of the Board have expressed interest in seeing the 
proposed Community Forest property.  District staff is asking Board members if 
they would be interested in a tour of the proposed property and access points 
where the proposed forest intersects existing roads. Board members could 
choose to tour the trails in person or virtually through a series of maps and 
videos. If more than three Board members wish to tour the property at one time, 
a special meeting will need to be scheduled to avoid Brown Act issues. A virtual 
tour could be scheduled as part of a Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting or a 
Special Board meeting.   

Alternatives: 

Take Action 

Fiscal Analysis: 

Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements: 

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments: 

• Attachment 1 – Map of Proposed Community Forest

94



Item
 E.8 

A
ttachm

ent 195



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020       TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  E.9 Consider Director Corbett’s Proposal to Establish 

Committee to Clarify District’s Authority with regards to 

Library and Law Enforcement, Community Forest 

Operation, Support for the McKinleyville Municipal 

Advisory Committee, Reclamation, and Homelessness 

PRESENTED BY: Pat Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION: Establishment of Committee 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the provided information, take public 
comment, have the Board President appoint a committee of two Board Members 
and others as appropriate to consider clarification of the District’s Authority. 

Discussion: 

Director Corbett has prepared a memo directed to the Board outlining his 
recommendations with regards to clarifying certain aspects of the District’s 
authority (Attachment 1). Director Corbett’s memo recommends that a 
Committee be established to review and clarify the District’s authority with 
respect to five specific areas: 

1) Law Enforcement & Library
2) Community Forest
3) Support of McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (MMAC)
4) Reclamation
5) Homeless

Staff directs the Board to Attachment 1, Director Corbett’s Memo.  Attachment 2, 
a memo from Board Secretary to Director Corbett with regards to the process for 
establishing or expanding the District’s Latent Powers is included as a reference.  
Attachment 3 is also for reference and is the current Municipal Services Review 
by the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) which outlines their 
understanding of the District’s powers as of 2009. 

Director Corbett’s recommended Motion is: 

The following proposed steps and actions will be taken. 

• The Board Chair appoint a committee consisting of two Board Members.
It is recommended but not required that the General Manager and Greg
Orsini be added to the committee.

96



 

• The committee will review and document past District resolutions 
asserting authority, the documentation of any filings with LAFCo, and 
actions before January 1, 2005 as those were retroactively approved by 
legislation.  The committee will research and review Section 61000 latent 
powers to determine if activities fit into those provisions for jurisdiction. 
 

• The committee would report back with proposed language and a 
recommendation regarding the subject area. The MCSD board would vote 
on each recommended item separately. 

 

• The approved language would be forwarded to Legal Counsel for review 
and an outline of the proposed legal actions to proceed. 
 

• A final version will come back for an additional Board vote within one to 
two months. 

 

• If successful, a letter would be written to the County requesting specific 
permission for each approved subject area. 
 

• An application will be made to LAFCo to approve of the exercise of 
authority by the District to finalize the clarification. 

Alternatives: 

Take No Action  

Fiscal Analysis:  

No impact except for approximately 24 hours of Staff time and cost associated 
with Legal Counsel review. 

Environmental Requirements:  

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – MCSD Clarification of Authority Memo, Director Corbett 

• Attachment 2 – July 31, 2020 Memo from Board Secretary Sousa to 
Director Corbett 

• Attachment 3 – LAFCo Municipal Service Review, Jan. 2009 

97



  MCSD Clarification of Authority Proposals 

  We have a vibrant MckMac the District has solved community problems that may be at the periphery 

of the District’s traditional authority.   This has resulted in the need to clarify current and future 

initiatives as clearly being in the scope and jurisdiction of the District.   This will require a careful review 

of when various activities began and whether they fall within the scope of latent powers for Special 

Districts as specified in Government Code 61000 or are otherwise provided for by Government Code.  I 

have included Government Code Sections 61000 and 61100 for background. 

No additional revenue or taxes would be required for any of the proposed changes.  The District is 

planning to use our tremendous community support throughout the years and grants as we have done 

in the past.   

After study by the committee these items may have a history of prior approval by the BOS, LAFCO, or 

code sections relating to latent powers being accepted implemented prior to January 1, 2006.  Such 

items may or may not suggest that LAFCO concur in writing that no application is needed. 

Note that while not being proposed 61100 (ac) provides for the financing the operations of area 

planning commissions formed pursuant to Section 65101.  This would be established and run by the 

County. 

The following areas have been identified for review. 

Law Enforcement and Library:   The clarification of authority is not expected to change existing efforts.  

We currently lease the facilities at below cost and have benefited from a significant increase in services 

from the county.    

  Sample Language:  The District is authorized to enter into collaborative agreements with Humboldt 

County or others that support the provision of Library and Law Enforcement Services. 

The entire history of the establishment of these services should be researched.  There is a resolution but 

it is unclear whether it needed to be forwarded to LAFCO and whether it was.  61100 (i) allows special 

districts to “provide for police protection and law enforcement services by establishing and operating a 

police department that employees peace officers.”  Section 61100 (k) provides for library services.  

Community Forrest:    We have a long range strategic plan to create a community forest.  It is the right 

time to establish our authority to receive property, operate, and manage a community forest for public 

and economic benefits.   

Community Forest sample language:  The District is authorized to acquire, manage, and operate a 

community forest for current and future generations.  Such forests may be managed for conservation, 

environmental, fire, and timber operations. 

Item E.9 Attachment 1

98



 

Support of the MMAC:  We have a vibrant community process.  The district needs to be able to support 

and enter into contracts with the county on behalf of the McMAC. 

Sample Language:  The MCSD has authority to apply resources to support the McMac including 

entering collaborative contracts with the county as well as direct support of the McMac. 

  

 

 

 

Reclamation:  Reclamation is strongly favored by the State of California and having projects is important 

towards meeting future regulatory demands.  Reclamation in recycling water and other uses makes sure 

we wisely conserve our natural resources.   Many subdivisions have small open spaces the District 

currently manages uses to recharge water and to reduce flooding. This stays clear, reduces fire potential  

and has converted excess water to recharging our ground water aquifer.   This is paid for by the 

landowners.  The district applies treated sewer water to keep our dairy farms productive.  Reclamation 

is clearly within the powers of a special district.  61100 Government Code.    

Reclamation:  Sample language: The District is authorized to seek grants, enter into contracts, seek 

grants, to provide district land, and other resources to further reclamation projects such as flood plain 

restoration, ground water recharge, prevent flooding, the use of land for sewage treatment, the 

recycdling of water and environmental projects. 

Homeless:  There should be a discussion and recommendation of whether the district should consider 

providing support for the homeless which is expected to be primarily the use of district land.  No sample 

language is recommended.  A determination needs to be made whether providing for the homeless is 

outside the latent powers of the district and that the district would be exceeding it’s authority to 

participate in such a project.  See Government Code 61100.  Section D allows the district to create a 

leasehold interest in property for the benefit of the district.  Section 61100 (s) allow the operation of, 

provision and maintenance of community facilities.  

Motion:  The following proposed steps and actions will be taken. 

The Board Chair appoint a committee consisting of two Board Members .  It is recommended but not   

required that the General Manager and Greg Orsini be added to the committee. 

The committee will review and document past District resolutions asserting authority, the 

documentation of any filings with LAFCO and actions before January 1, 2005 as those were retroactively 

approved by legislation.  The committee will research and review Section 61000 latent powers to 

determine if activities fit into those provisions for jurisdiction. 

99



The committee would report back with proposed language and a recommendation regarding the subject 

area.   The MCSD board would vote on each recommended item separately. 

The approved language would be forwarded for legal counsel for review and an outline of the proposed 

legal actions to proceed. 

A final version will come back for an additional board vote within one to two months. 

If successful, a letter would be written to the County requesting specific permission for each approved 

subject area. 

An application will be made to LAFCO to approve of the exercise of authority by the District to finalize 

the clarification. 

Projects are expected to continue operations and programs during the clarification process. 

 

 

  

100



Item E.9 Attachment 2

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



Municipal Service Review 

ADOPTED 
January 2009 

Prepared by:  

For the District Sphere of Influence Report 

Item E.9 Attachment 3

108



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 Page 
 

Local Agency Formation Commission Authority ........................................................... ..1 

Agency Profile .............................................................................................................. ..3 

Growth and Population ................................................................................................. ..5 

Services ........................................................................................................................ ..5 

Budget .......................................................................................................................... 12 

Municipal Service Review Determinations .................................................................... 14 

References…….. .......................................................................................................... 16 

List of Figures and Tables 

Figure 1: District Map………………… .......................................................................... ..2 

Table 1: Agency Profile……. ........................................................................................ ..3 

Table 2: Board of Directors…………… ......................................................................... ..4 

Figure 2: District Organization Chart ............................................................................ ..4 

Table 3: Budget Summary…….. ................................................................................... 12 

Table 4: Service Rates…………. .................................................................................. 13 

 

 

109



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION AUTHORITY 

Latent Powers, Enabling Legislation and Empowered Services 

The fundamental role of the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is to implement the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act (The Act) consistent with local conditions and circumstances.  The 
Act guides LAFCo’s decisions.  The major goals of LAFCo as established by The Act are to: 

 Encourage orderly growth and development; 
 Promote orderly development; 
 Discourage urban sprawl; 
 Preserve open-space and prime agricultural lands by guiding minimizing resource loss; 
 Exercise its authority to ensure that affected populations receive efficient services; 
 Promote logical formation and boundary modifications that direct the burdens and benefits 

of additional growth to those local agencies that are best suited to provide services; 
 Make studies and obtain and furnish information which will contribute to the logical and 

reasonable development of local agencies to provide for present and future needs; 
 Establish priorities by assessing and balancing community service needs with financial 

resources available to secure and provide community services and to encourage 
government structures that reflect local circumstances, conditions and financial resources; 

 Determine whether new or existing agencies can feasibly provide needed services in a 
more efficient or accountable manner and, where deemed necessary, 

As set fourth in § 56425 (g) of The Act, on or before January 1, 2008, and every five years 
thereafter, Humboldt LAFCo shall review and update each Sphere of Influence (SOI).  
Additionally, an MSR shall be conducted with, or in conjunction with the action to establish or 
to update a SOI pursuant to The Act.  Together, the SOI and MSR documents analyze the 
District’s ability to serve existing and future residents.  
 
In order to prepare and to update Spheres of Influence in accordance with § 56425, Humboldt 
LAFCo shall conduct a service review of the municipal services provided in the McKinleyville 
Community Services District (CSD).  The commission shall include in the designated for service 
review area any other geographic area as is appropriate for an analysis of the services to be 
reviewed, and shall prepare a written statement of determinations with respect to the following:  

(1) Growth and population projections for the affected area; 
(2) Present and planned capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services, 

including infrastructure needs or deficiencies; 
(3) Financial ability of agencies to provide services; 
(4) Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities; 
(5) Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and 

operational efficiencies; and  
(6) Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by 

commission policy. 

110



Figure 1.  McKinleyville CSD Boundary and Sphere of Influence 

  

111



AGENCY PROFILE 

The McKinleyville Community Services District (CSD) extends north from the Mad River to 
Patrick Creek and east from the Pacific Ocean to the foothills bordering the community of 
Fieldbrook.  The district is located along Highway 101 approximately 12 miles north of the City 
of Eureka and 5 miles south of the City of Trinidad.  Figure 1 (on page 2) shows the district 
Boundary and Sphere of Influence (SOI). 
 
The McKinleyville CSD is the largest district of its type in Humboldt County, covering 12,480 
acres, or approximately 19.5 square miles.  The district provides the following services to its 
residents: 

1) Water Service, 
2) Wastewater Collection and Treatment, 
3) Parks and Recreation Services, and 
4) Street Lighting. 

 

Table 1: McKinleyville CSD Profile 
Agency Name Date of Formation Enabling Legislation 

McKinleyville Community 
Services District 

April 21, 1970 California Government Code 
section 61000 

Contact Person Contact Title Email/Website 
Tom Marking General Manager mcsdgm@mckinleyvillecsd.com

www.mckinleyvillecsd.com 

Mailing Address Physical Address Phone 
P.O. Box 3251, 

McKinleyville, CA 95519 
District Office 

1656 Sutter Road, 
McKinleyville, CA 95519 

 
Phone: (707) 839–3251 

 
Formation 
The McKinleyville CSD was formed on April 21, 1970 after a special election was held within 
the area proposed for district formation.  The district was formed as an independent multi-
purpose district organized pursuant to section 61000 et seq. of the California Government Code.  
Although the district now provides several services, it was originally formed to provide a 
community water supply system only.  The district’s mission statement is as follows: “To 
respond with excellence to McKinleyville’s needs for those services within our jurisdiction and 
to provide the highest quality, timely services in the most cost effective manner.” 

 
Governance 
The McKinleyville CSD is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected in odd 
numbered years to serve four-year rotating terms.  The Board of Directors holds public meetings 
on the third Wednesday of every month at Azalea Hall (1620 Pickett Road in McKinleyville).  
Public notification is given six days prior to the meeting.  The meeting agenda and materials are 
posted on the district web site at www.mckinleyvillecsd.com.  Table 2, on page 4, shows the 
existing Board composition. 

112

mailto:mcsdgm@mckinleyvillecsd.com
http://www.mckinleyvillecsd.com/
http://www.mckinleyvillecsd.com/


Table 2: McKinleyville CSD Board of Directors. 

Board Member Title Term Expiration 
John Corbett President December 2011 

Bill Wennerholm Vice President December 2009 
Jeff Dunk Director December 2009 

Helen Edwards Director December 2011 
Dennis Mayo Director December 2009 

 
The McKinleyville CSD employs a General Manager who is responsible for administering and 
implementing policies set by the Board.  The district’s staff consists of 24 full-time and 42 part-
time employees, and 10 volunteers.  Figure 2 (on page 4) shows the McKinleyville CSD 
Organizational Chart. 
 
 Figure 2 McKinleyville CSD Organization Chart 

 

Custome

Service Rep.

(3

MCS

Secretary

(1

Huma

Resources Mgr.

(1

Financ

Directo

(1

Lead Person

(1

Utility Worker 2

(3

Utility Worker 1

(3

Utility Maint.

Worker

(3

Seasonal

Worker

(2 part-time)

Operations

Directo

(1

Maintenance

Worker

(3

Kids Camp

Directo

(1 part-time)

Progra

Coordinator

(12 part-time)

Recreation

Leader 2

(15 part-time)

Recreation

Leader 1

(12 part-time)

Recreation

Supervisor

(2

Parks & Rec.

Dept. Director

(1

General Manager

(1

Board of Directors

113



 
GROWTH AND POPULATION 
 
County Population and Growth 
According to the State of California Department of Finance, Humboldt County has an estimated 
2008 population of 132,821.  The County grew at an overall rate of 0.6 percent during 2007[1].  
Assuming this growth continues, the population of Humboldt County will reach approximately 
147,000 by the year 2025. 
 
District Population and Housing Projections 
The McKinleyville CSD serves approximately 14,000 people.  The average population growth 
rate for unincorporated areas of the County is 0.8 percent [1].  At this growth rate, 
McKinleyville’s population would reach approximately 16,000 by the year 2025. 
 
A Community Infrastructure and Services (CIS) Report was prepared as part of the Humboldt 
County General Plan Update [2].  The report identified Urban Study Areas (USA) and Water 
Study Areas (WSA) within special districts in order to develop land use planning scenarios and 
to focus the analysis for timing and location of new facilities. 
 
The report identified both a USA and a WSA for McKinleyville; the two areas combined have 
essentially the same boundary as the McKinleyville CSD.  In 2000, the McKinleyville USA and 
WSA combined had 6,371 dwelling units and 2,874 vacant or underdeveloped acres.  The CIS 
report estimates an additional 2,347 to 4,249 housing units for the McKinleyville USA and WSA 
combined, by the year 2025 [2]. 
 
The McKinleyville area has been identified as one of three major development areas within the 
County [2].  The District’s proximity to the City of Arcata, which has limited developable 
acreage, makes it a primary target for future development within the County. 
 
SERVICES 
 
The McKinleyville CSD currently provides water service to 6,300 connections and wastewater 
service to 5,700 connections.  The district has a Parks and Recreation Department that maintains 
and operates indoor and outdoor facilities for community members’ use.  Street Lighting is 
provided by the district within its boundary.  The McKinleyville CSD also provides water 
service for the Patrick’s Creek Water District on Clam Beach Road east of Highway 101. 
 
Water 
 
Water Source and Demand 
The McKinleyville CSD purchases potable water from the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water 
District (HBMWD).  The HBMWD treats water from the Mad River and reports there is an 
ample water supply to meet the future needs of their customers.  The McKinleyville CSD has an 
average daily use of 2.2 million gallons per day (MGD) in the summer and a peak daily use of 

114



2.7 MGD.  The existing water system exceeds demand, as it is designed to serve 10,000 homes 
and currently serves 6,300. 
 
Infrastructure 
Approximately 5,900 of the District’s 6,300 existing connections are residential.  The water 
system consists of 70 miles of water mains, a pump station, and four storage tank sites. 
The system’s existing storage capacity is 5.25 million gallons (MG).  This exceeds the District’s 
peak daily use of 2.7 MGD.   
 
There are six existing storage tanks in three locations: McCluski Hill (100,000 gal & 150,000 
gal), Cochran Road (1 MG & 1.5 MG), and Norton Road (1 MG & 1.5 MG).  A fourth storage 
tank site, located east of Beau Pre Golf Course on Murray Road, has been purchased for future 
development. 
 
The district’s water is diverted from a HBMWD facility on Essex Hill under the Mad River to 
the North Bank Pump Station at North Bank and Azalea Roads.  From there the water is pumped 
to McKinleyville CSD’s six storage tanks and gravity fed throughout the distribution system to 
customers and fire hydrants.  The district installs and maintains fire hydrants in accordance with 
the California Fire Code. 
 
Infrastructure Needs and Deficiencies 
The district’s water system is in good condition and there are no existing deficiencies.  The 
District’s planned water system upgrades are designed to meet the future needs of the growing 
community. 
 
Maintenance Schedule 
Water meters are continually replaced so that no meter is used for more than 15 years.  Storage 
tanks are scheduled for recoating in the fiscal year (FY) 10/11, FY 13/14 and FY 16/17 [4]. 
 
Planned Upgrades 
The North Bank Pump Station is currently being engineered for an upgrade that will increase its 
pumping capacity to 4.5 MGD for future growth.  The estimated cost of this project is $950,000. 
 
A storage tank project on Murray Road is scheduled to begin after the North Bank Pump Station 
upgrade is complete.  This will increase the District's storage capacity, enhance fire flows, and 
allow for new growth, especially in northern McKinleyville.  The district ultimately plans to add 
6 MG of storage capacity at the site.  They are currently investigating the feasibility of building 
one in ground 6 MG tank or two above ground 3 MG tanks.  The District expects these details to 
be finalized within one year.  Current project estimates include design costs of $75,000 and 
construction costs of approximately 3.2 million [3]. 
 
The older fire hydrants in commercial areas are being upgraded to four inch steamer nozzles on 
an ongoing basis. 
 
The district is considering the development of emergency backup infrastructure for a situation in 
which the main transmission line under the Mad River is broken (i.e. seismic activity).  Projects 

115



being considered include the development of a well and the inclusion of supply pipes in the Mad 
River/Highway 101 Bridge scheduled for completion in 2010 [3]. 
 
Wastewater 
 

Infrastructure 
The McKinleyville CSD’s wastewater system consists of a collection system, a wastewater 
management facility (WMF), and a discharge system.  The collection system consists of four 
sewer lift stations and 48 miles of sewer mains that collect wastewater from 5,700 customers.  
The sewer mains converge at the Fischer Road Pump Station where raw sewage is pumped to the 
WMF.  The Pump Station has a capacity of 2,100 gallons per minute with both 100 horsepower 
pumps running. 
 
The WMF is located at Hiller Park on a 68 acre parcel.  The facilities cover 34 acres of this area 
with an 18 acre wooded buffer and a 16 acre open parcel to the south.  In 2005, the 
McKinleyville CSD completed a wetland project to enhance their WMF as part of a compliance 
project through the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB).  The WMF now includes 
two primary oxidation ponds, two secondary oxidation ponds, two treatment wetlands, a chlorine 
disinfection facility, and an effluent pumping station.  The ponds have twelve 5-horsepower 
aerators to provide additional oxygen in the warmer months. 
 
The current flows range between 0.95 MGD (during dry weather) and 1.1 MGD (during wet 
weather).  The system’s treatment capacity is 1.61 MGD.  The hydraulic capacity of the 
disinfection facilities is 3.3 MGD.  The district has some of the lowest inflow and infiltration 
rates in the County [2]. 
 
The system discharges effluent into the Mad River during the wet months and applies treated 
wastewater for agricultural irrigation at the Fischer Irrigation Site and Hiller Park during the dry 
months. 
 

Infrastructure Needs and Deficiencies 
McKinleyville CSD’s wastewater system is currently operating at approximately 76% of its 
designed capacity and is capable of providing service to approximately 1,500 additional 
connections [2].  The collection system will require piping upgrades in response to future 
community development. 
 
During dry months, the district relies solely on land application for wastewater discharge.  As 
population growth continues, the District may need additional irrigation area for effluent 
discharge.  SHN Consulting Engineers & Geologists is currently performing a two year study of 
the district’s WMF that will result in a twenty year plan for keeping the district in compliance 
with all applicable standards. 
 
Some of the district’s main lines are nearing capacity and some are also being considered for 
bursting.  The district is currently investigating the proper approach for increasing main lines 
capacity [3]. 

116



 
Maintenance Schedule 
The district conducts smoke testing and manhole inspections every winter [4].   
 
Planned Upgrades 

The McKinleyville CSD meets the discharge standards currently in effect.  A new discharge 
permit issued by the RWQCB on August 1, 2008 requires increased monitoring and performance 
studies of the disposal process and irrigation methods.  Additionally, the California Toxics Rule, 
which goes into effect on May 18, 2010, will require substantial changes in public awareness 
regarding disposal of pollutants and compliance with effluent limitations.  The McKinleyville 
CSD anticipates substantial modification to their WMF to maintain future compliance with these 
new regulatory requirements. 
 
As stated previously, the district upgraded their treatment facilities in 2005; the two wetlands 
that were constructed as part of this project were expected to mature in 2008.  Staff is currently 
evaluating the treatment wetlands’ performance with regard to treatment capacity and 
effectiveness.  Engineering studies will determine the extent of sewer system upgrades that will 
be necessary to meet the new RWQCB standards.  The district is tentatively planning a  
2-5 million upgrade project that will put their WMF in compliance with the new RWQCB 
standards.  The specifics of this project will be based upon the results of the studies performed 
and may be initiated in FY 09/10 [3]. 
 
The district is currently investigating another project that will increase the capacity of their 
wastewater collection system to accommodate expected growth and development.   The project 
will increase the capacity of the main trunk lines either by adding parallel lines or removing and 
replacing the existing lines.  
 
The area immediately north of the Norton and Airport Road intersection, is an area of eventual 
expansion for wastewater service. This would include a wastewater collection system between 
Central Avenue and Dows Prairie Road that extends north to Grange Road. 
 
Parks and Recreation 

 
Governance and Operations 
The McKinleyville CSD’s Department of Parks and Recreation has three divisions: Parks, 
Recreation, and Administration.  Their mission statement is “to create community and increase 
quality of life through people, recreation programs, public utilities, and parks”.  The Department 
offers a variety of programs and facilities to meet community needs. 
 
In 1975, the State adopted the Quimby Act which is designed to ensure adequate open space 
acreage (3–5 acres per 1,000 residents) in jurisdictions adopting Quimby Act standards.  The 
McKinleyville CSD has adopted these standards and receives 70 percent of Parkland fees 
collected pursuant to California Government Code Section 66477 to be used for land acquisition 
and park development. 
 

117



The McKinleyville Parks and Recreation Department employs six full time and forty part time 
and seasonal workers.  Figure 2 (on page 4) shows the Department’s management structure.  The 
Department is governed by a seven-member Recreation Advisory Committee that is appointed 
by the district Board of Directors.  Committee Member terms of service range from one to four 
years.  The Committee holds quarterly meetings (on the fourth Tuesday of January, April, July, 
and October) that are open to the public.  All meetings are noticed in compliance with state and 
federal law. 
 
The district maintains and operates four parks:  

1) Pierson Park, 
2) Hiller Park, 
3) Larissa Park, and 
4) Hewitt Park. 

 
The district also has three indoor recreation facilities:  

1) McKinleyville Activity Center, 
2) Azalea Hall, and  
3) The McKinleyville Library.   

 
The Department of Parks and Recreation is also responsible for maintaining open space zones 
throughout the McKinleyville CSD. 
 
Infrastructure [5] 

• Hiller Park/Sports Complex: Hiller Park is the district’s largest recreation facility, 
covering approximately 58 acres.  It is located adjacent to the 68 acre wastewater 
management facility.  Hiller Park consists of baseball and soccer fields, trails, and 
playgrounds.  This facility was completed in 2004 in collaboration with local sports 
groups. 

 
• Larissa Park: Larissa Park is a small park located on Larissa Circle.  It features a 

playground and picnic tables. 
 

• Pierson Park:  Pierson Park is located at 1608 Pickett Road and provides facilities for 
outdoor gatherings.  The park features a covered picnic area, picnic tables, barbeque pits, 
full service restrooms, a playground, and horseshoe grounds. 

 
• Hewitt Ranch:  This 14.5 acre parcel of land was donated to the District in 1998 and is 

an undeveloped recreation area at this time.   
 

• Trails: The district has walking trails at Hiller Park with informational kiosks.  The 
School Road and Mid-Town trails accommodate bikers and walkers. 

 
• Azalea Hall: Azalea Hall is a special event facility located at 1620 Pickett Road.  The 

building has two rooms overlooking Pierson Park and accommodates up to 300 people 
for meetings and special events. 
 

118



• McKinleyville Activity Center: This 10,000 square foot facility is capable of hosting 
sporting events, skate parties, and large special events.  Located at 1705 Gwin Road, this 
facility features a full-size gymnasium, bleachers, a spacious lobby, a sound system, and 
a variety of indoor sporting equipment. 

 
• McKinleyville Library: This is a branch of the Humboldt County Library and is located 

at 1606 Pickett Road. 
 

• Law Enforcement Facility: The District has a facility in Pierson Park that is leased to 
the Sheriff’s Department as a sub-station.  The building was constructed by the Rotary 
Club and donated to the district in 1998 to be used for this purpose. 

 

Demand and Capacity 
In 1975, the State adopted the Quimby Act which is designed to ensure adequate open space 
acreage (3–5 acres per 1,000 residents) in jurisdictions adopting Quimby Act standards.  
McKinleyville has 50 acres of community parkland and a population of 14,000 (an average of 
3.6 acres per 1,000 residents).  The Quimby Act standard of 3–5 acres per 1,000 residents is 
currently being met by the McKinleyville CSD and plans are underway for an additional park 
facility at Hewitt Ranch that will add 14.5 acres of parkland.  This will allow the district to 
remain in compliance with Quimby Act standards with future population growth. 
 

Infrastructure Needs and Deficiencies 
The McKinleyville Activity Center is in need of additional storage space for contractors 
providing programs through the Center.  Recreation staff is currently investigating possible 
solutions for this deficiency. 
 
The full-time Parks and Recreation staff shares the McKinleyville CSD office, utilizing what 
was formerly a conference room for the district.  As a result, the district is in need of a 
conference room.  The district plans to build an addition to the office to provide a conference 
room and additional storage space.  The inclusion of solar panels is also being investigated for 
this    project [3]. 
 
Planned Upgrades 
The Parks and Recreation Department is completing the last soccer field at the Hiller Sports 
Complex.   As mentioned previously, an addition to the district office is being planned to provide 
room for conferences and classes.  There are also small trail, park, and signage upgrades 
planned, including the continued development of the Hiller Park Trails. 
 
The Hewitt Property was donated to the district in FY 98/99.  Following public meetings held in 
2007, the Board identified a range of developable projects for the property.  The district has 
chosen to develop trails and a playground at the site.  The preliminary budget for this project is 
$25,000, which will be reimbursed by Quimby funds. 
 
McKinleyville’s 2009 Capital Improvement Program discusses a variety of other upgrades that 
are being considered by the Parks and Recreation Department.  The McKinleyville Senior Center 
has indicated an interest in a building addition to Azalea Hall to accommodate additional senior 

119



programs.  The Senior Center is currently working on a design plan and funding sources to 
present to the Board of Directors.  The Friends of the McKinleyville Library has expressed an 
interest in a library expansion.  The organization is working to secure funding from the County 
and State for this project [3]. 
 
Open Space and Stormwater Detention Basins 
 
The District considers acceptance of open space areas and storm water detention basin 
dedications from developers.  Currently, the District has accepted eight detention basins that 
have been required by the County as a condition of development to meet storm water 
regulations. Some of these may have a recreational component with trials or recreation, other do 
not.  The District also constructed a five acre storm water marsh and detention basin area at 
Hiller Park.  Developers may purchase capacity from this detention basin in lieu of constructing 
detention basins within their development.  The County determines whether the developer must 
construct a basin within their development or if they may purchase capacity from this existing 
basin. 

 
Street Lighting 

The McKinleyville CSD provides street lighting within its boundary.  Street lights are funded by 
direct charges on monthly utility bills and through the district’s general fund.   
 
Other Service Providers 
The district is within the Arcata Fire Protection District (AFPD) SOI and part of the district also 
falls within the State Responsibility Area protected by the California Department of Forestry and 
Fire Protection (CAL FIRE).  Potable water is provided by the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water 
District (HBMWD). 
 
The County of Humboldt provides general governmental services and law enforcement services 
throughout the McKinleyville CSD boundary.  The County also provides road maintenance and 
storm drainage services for the district. 

120



Budget 
The McKinleyville CSD’s primary sources of revenue include: water user fees (32%), sewer user 
fees (28%), and parks and general revenue (12%).  The District’s primary expenditures include: 
employee wages and benefits (46%), purchased water (10%), and utilities (5%).  Table 3, on 
page 12,  shows a comparison of the District’s budget to actual spending [6]. 
 
Table 3. McKinleyville CSD Budget. 

Budget Summary  FY 07-08 (Actual) FY 08-09 (Budget)  
Total Operating Revenue  $4,193,668 $4,242,283  
Total Operating Expenses  (3,359,036) (3,787,985) 
Operating Budget Surplus  $834,632 $454,298  
Total Non-Operating Revenue  210,277 204,000 
Total Long Term Debt Payment (487,872) (542,241)  
Total Capital Outlay  (277,595) (338,241) 
Net Income 557,037 116,057 
Plus Depreciation Expense 621,027 655,000 
Total Debt Service and Fixed Assets (302,072) (774,018) 
Total Cash Flow to Reserves 875,991 7,1032 

 
The McKinleyville CSD’s total outstanding debt, at the close of fiscal year 2008 was 
$5,439,795.  The district expects an increase in the general fund of $34,534 for the fiscal year 
2008-2009 [6]. 
 
SERVICE RATES 
 
On October 15, 2008, the McKinleyville CSD Board approved sewer and water rate increases 
which will go into effect on January 1, 2009.  The operating expenses have increased by 10% in 
sewer and 3% in water since the last rate increase in July 2007.  The water rate increase is an 
increase over the past year for fuel, materials increase, and cost of living adjustment.  The sewer 
budget has been impacted by the new permit ordered by the RWQCB, which requires extensive 
testing and monitoring.  Table 4, on page 13, shows the updated sewer and water rates. 

121



Table 4: Service Rates 

Sewer Service Rates  
User Classification Monthly Charge 
Single Family Residence 
 

$16.56 + $0.22 ccf up to 12 ccf 

Apartment or Multiple Living Units 
(each) 

$16.56 + $0.22 ccf up to 12 ccf/provided that the $0.22/ccf 
consumption charge for multiple unit customers shall be calculated 
by summing the product of the average actual water consumed per 
unit multiplied by the above schedule for all units. 

Mobile Home 
  

$16.56 + $0.22 ccf up to 12 ccf 

Mobile Home Park (per space) $16.56 + $0.22 ccf up to 12 ccf provided that the $0.22ccf 
consumption charge for multiple unit customers shall be calculated 
by summing the product of the average actual water consumed per 
unit multiplied by above schedule for all units. 

Office Buildings and Post Office 
      (up to 2,000 sq. ft / 7 people) 

$17.60 

Church, Hall or Rectory $17.60 
Restaurant or Tavern $17.60 plus $2.86/100 cf of water over 440 cf 
Bakery 
 

$17.600 plus $2.61/100 cf of water over 440 cf 

Motel or Hotel $17.60 plus $2.61/100 cf of water over 759 cf 
Market $17.60 plus $3.34/100 cf of water over 440 cf 
Retail Store, Banks, Theater and all 
others 
 

$17.60 plus $2.48/100 cf of water over 769 cf 

Gas Station (No Market) $17.60 plus $2.13/100 cf of water over 786 cf 
Laundromat $17.60 plus $2.61/100 cf of water over 840 cf 
Fire Station or School 
 

$17.60 plus $1.33/100 cf of water over 769 cf 

Barber or Beauty Shop $17.60 plus $1.99/100 cf of water over 440 cf 
Coast Guard Station or Airport $17.60 plus $2.39/100 cf of water over 769 cf 
Car Washes 
 

$17.60 plus $2.65/100 cf of water over 769 cf 

Industrial To be Calculated based on flow & load 
Septage Delivered to Headworks $247 plus $182.18 per 100 cf over 133.67 cf per dump 
Customers Without MCSD Water 
Service 

$17.60 

Water Service Rates  
Type of Service  Minimum Monthly Charge 
Multiple living units $6.54 
5/8-1 inch meters $6.54 
1 ½-2 inch meters $33.84 
3 inch or larger meters $55.22 
Water Consumption Charge Per 100 cubic feet 
100-500 cubic feet $0.97 
Over 500 Cubic Feet $1.45 
 

122



MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW DETERMINATIONS 
 

Growth and population projections for the affected area 
The McKinleyville CSD serves approximately 14,000 people and has been identified as one of 
three major development areas within the County.  The average population growth rate for 
unincorporated areas of the County is 0.8%.  At this rate, McKinleyville’s population would 
reach approximately 16,000 by the year 2025. 
 

The district’s proximity to the City of Arcata, which has limited developable acreage within the 
City and Sphere of Influence, makes it a primary target for future development within the 
County.  The Humboldt County General Plan growth projections for McKinleyville indicate that 
the area will gain between 2,347 and 4,249 residential units by 2025. 
 
The McKinleyville Community Plan (MCP), adopted in 2002, is a long-range statement of public 
policy for public and private land use in the District.  The MCP uses the County’s Alternative 
Growth Projection which assumes a higher rate of population growth for McKinleyville than the county 
as a whole and estimates a total of 6,621 dwelling units for the planning area in the year 2020 [7]. 
 
Present and planned capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services, 

including infrastructure needs or deficiencies 
The district’s existing infrastructure adequately serves the residents of the community with some 
capacity for growth.  As noted above, future growth within the district is projected as part of the 
Humboldt County General Plan Update.  The MCP, adopted in 2002, is a long-range statement 
of public policy for public and private land use in the district.  This information should be 
periodically reviewed by the district to determine the type and extent of additional facilities, 
equipment, and personnel that will be necessary to accommodate growth. 
 
The district’s water system is currently operating at 63% capacity.  To meet the increasing water 
demand from future residential development, the district has planned upgrades to the water 
system.  The North Bank Pump Station is currently being upgraded to have a pumping capacity 
of 4.5 MGD.  The district is also planning a project that will add 3-6 million gallons of storage 
capacity to the system to meet increasing demands.  A project is also being investigated that 
would provide backup infrastructure to be used in emergency situations. 
 
The district’s Wastewater system is currently operating at 76% capacity.  The housing growth 
projections indicate that the district will need to expand its wastewater system to provide 
adequate services.  The district is considering an expansion of the collection system include 
those areas north to Grange Road (on Central Avenue) and east to Dows Prairie Road.  The 
district is currently testing and monitoring the wastewater treatment system to determine the 
need for system upgrades. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department meets the standards of the Quimby Act and is expanding 
park supply to meet future needs. 

123



Financing ability of agencies to provide services 
The McKinleyville CSD is currently operating on a cash balance of $7,032.  The Board has 
approved a 3% water rate increase going into effect January 1, 2009 in response to the increased 
cost of services.  Wastewater Service costs have increased by 10% since July 2007 due to the 
new permit ordered by the RWQCB, which requires costly testing and monitoring.  The Board 
approved a sewer rate increase which is also going into effect January 1, 2009 in response to this 
increased cost. 

 
The district takes measures that avoid unnecessary costs such as conserving water by regularly 
monitoring the system for leaks and providing users with information about water conservation 
practices.   
 
Status of and, opportunities for, shared facilities 
The district has a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Humboldt County Library. 
The MOU transfers all library equipment owned by the city to the county. The county is 
responsible for maintenance, supplies and property insurance and equipment, but the district 
owns the library building and pays for building repairs and maintenance.   
 
The district provides a facility at Pierson Park for use as a substation by the Humboldt County 
Sheriff’s Department.  An agreement is in place for maintenance and use of the building. 
 
The district provides water to the Patricks Creek County Water District.  The district’s roads and 
streets are maintained by the County.  The district shares authority with the County regarding 
parks and recreation. 
 
The district lies within the AFPD Boundary.  Prior to approval of any subdivision, the 
McKinleyville CSD works with the AFPD to identify hydrant locations, emergency access, and 
water mains that should be increased to provide adequate fire flows. 
 
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure 

and operational efficiencies 
The five-member Board of Directors is elected by district residents.  The Board holds regular 
meetings that are open to the public with notice and agenda posted in accordance with the Brown 
Act.  District staff can also be reached by phone, email, or in person at the district office during 
their regular business hours. 
 
Service, infrastructure, and budget decisions are made by CSD Staff and overseen by the Board 
of Directors.  Figure 2 (on page 4) shows the district’s tiered management structure.  The 
General Manager oversees all district business and operations.  Financial statements, annual 
budgets, and independent auditor reports are posted on the district website at 
www.mckinleyvillecsd.com for public review. 
 
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by 

commission policy 
There are no further matters to report regarding the McKinleyville CSD. 

124

http://www.mckinleyvillecsd.com/


 16  

REFERENCES 
 

1. State of California; Department of Finance.  2008.  Population Estimates with Annual 
Percentage Change.  www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-1_2006-
07/documents/E-1table.xls. 

2. Humboldt County General Plan Update: Community Infrastructure and Services 
Technical Report. July2008. 
http://co.humboldt.ca.us/planning/gp/PrelimHearingDraft/Group7c/Technical%20Report/
Comm_Inf_Serv_Tech_Report.pdf.  

3. McKinleyville Community Service District.  Adopted June 18, 2008.  Capital 
Improvement Program for FY 08/09.  

4. McKinleyville Community Service District.  Adopted June 18, 2008.  FY 08/09 MCSD 
Action Plan. 

5. McKinleyville Department of Parks and Recreation.  December 2008.  
http://mckinleyvillecsd.com/mcsdparks.html.  

6. McKinleyville Community Service District.  Adopted June 18, 2008.  MCSD FY 08/09 
Budget. 

7. McKinleyville Community Plan.  December 2002.  County of Humboldt, Community 
Development Services Department.  http://co.humboldt.ca.us/planning/complans.asp  

125

http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-1_2006-07/documents/E-1table.xls
http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-1_2006-07/documents/E-1table.xls
http://co.humboldt.ca.us/planning/gp/PrelimHearingDraft/Group7c/Technical%20Report/Comm_Inf_Serv_Tech_Report.pdf
http://co.humboldt.ca.us/planning/gp/PrelimHearingDraft/Group7c/Technical%20Report/Comm_Inf_Serv_Tech_Report.pdf
http://mckinleyvillecsd.com/mcsdparks.html
http://co.humboldt.ca.us/planning/complans.asp


McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020        TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  E.10 Consider the Audit Committee’s Proposal to Amend the Debt 

Management & Capital Financing Policy Manual to Include 

Language Outlining the Procedures for the District to Accept 

or Approve Grants 

PRESENTED BY:  Pat Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call Vote 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided, take public 
comment, and Direct Staff to Revise the Debt Management & Capital Financing 
Manual to add Section 7. Grant Procurement and Approval Policy statement.   

Discussion: 

The Audit Committee would like to create a policy that outlines the steps to be 
taken when the District either applies for and accepts a grant and/or when 
another Agency or Non-profit applies for a grant on behalf of the District.  The 
intent of the policy is to ensure that the Board is fully aware of the operational, 
legal, and financial impacts of any proposed grants when applying for and prior to 
acceptance of grants, including any long term operation and maintenance costs 
and obligations associated with completed grant projects.   

The policy update should consider that, immediately upon the commencement of 
the preparation of environmental documents under CEQA or permits of 
environmental statutes for any proposed project, the Board should receive a 
report with a proposed action of project approval by the board. In cases where 
the developmental nature of the project do not allow for entirely accurate budget 
projections, estimates should be made for preparation of the environmental 
documents. Given that District budget costs cannot be completed before the 
environmental review, rough estimates of the costs of the project and a list of 
revenue sources for the project should be identified.  

Staff would edit the Debt Management & Capital Financing Policy Manual to 
detail the steps to be taken to review grant applications and projects with the 
Board and Public prior to applying for a grant or having another agency apply for 
a grant on behalf of the District.  It would then detail the steps to be taken to 
review and approve the actual grant agreements prior to acceptance.  It would 
also layout the steps to be taken during the execution of the grant project.  The 
application and execution of a grant funded project is typically a multi-year 
process, and it would help ensure that the Board is fully aware of potential 
advantages, disadvantages, matching fund requirements, how the grant fits into 

126



the District’s Capital Improvement Plan, budgeting and Strategic Plans, future 
operation and maintenance obligations, etc. prior to applying for and accepting a 
grant.  This would help ensure the District is not saddled with funding and 
obligations that the Board and Rate Payers are not willing to accept. It is felt that 
having these Policies fully delineated would help to ensure that future Boards are 
aware of the information that past Boards have not had available to make 
decisions on pursuing and accepting grants and their decision process. Future 
Boards would then be privy to this information when they are voting on 
implementing a grant funded project, and if there are any changes that may 
subsequently change the Board’s actions. 

In cases where the General Manager has determined the time period is too short 
for Board approval, the Board Chair may approve. Such applications shall be 
fully explained at the next regular board meeting. All grants regardless of value 
amount must be approved and reported to the board.  

Staff would make draft revisions for review by the Audit Committee and then 
bring a Draft Policy back to the entire Board for review in November. 

Alternatives: 

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action 

Fiscal Analysis:  

No current fiscal impacts except for Staff time to revise Debt Management and 
Capital Financing Policy Manual. 

Environmental Requirements:  

Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – Debt Management and Capital Financing Policy Manual 

• Attachment 2 – Audit Committee Memo 

127



MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
DEBT MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL

FINANCING POLICY

Item E.10 Attachment 1

128



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Section 1. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................ 3 

Section 2. PUBLIC PURPOSE ............................................................................................................................. 3 

Section 3. CAPITAL FINANCING ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Section 4. DEBT MANAGEMENT ..................................................................................................................... 4 

Section 5. ACCOUNTING POLICY ..................................................................................................................... 4 

Section 6. INDEPENDENT DISCLOSURE COUNSEL .................................................................................. 5 

129



Section 1. INTRODUCTION
In order to comply with Senate Bill 1029, which provides for the adoption of a debt policy to 
oversee proposed debt service, and because McKinleyville Community Services District 
(MCSD or the District) may borrow money and incur or assume indebtedness, and issue 
bonds or other evidences of indebtedness, the District has determined that it is advisable to 
create a Debt Management and Capital Financing Policy. 

Section 2. PUBLIC PURPOSE 
There will be a clearly articulated public purpose for the issuance of long-term financings by 
the District, where the District states why this form of financing is preferred over other 
funding options. 

Public improvements help to achieve clearly identified community facility and infrastructure 
goals in accordance with the District’s adopted facility and infrastructure plans. These are 
set forth in key policy documents such as the Strategic Plan or Capital Improvement Plan. 
Such improvements include the study, design, construction and/or acquisition of: 

o Water supply, distribution, and treatment systems
o Waste collection and treatment systems
o Parks, trails, community centers, and other recreational facilities
o Other governmental facilities and improvements such as offices, information

technology systems, and telecommunication systems

Section 3. CAPITAL FINANCING 
The McKinleyville Community Services District will use debt-financing for capital 
improvement projects where project revenues or specific resources will be sufficient to 
service the long-term debt. 

Debt financing will NOT be considered for any recurring purpose such as current operating 
and maintenance expenditures. 

Capital Improvements will be financed primarily through user fees, services charges, 
assessments, or developer agreements when benefits can be specifically attributed to users 
of the asset. 

Criteria for Pay-go Financing: 
o Per the District’s current policy, capital projects less than $500,000.00 are to be

financed from regular revenue sources. 
o Outside funding sources are not available for the project.
o Current revenues and adequate fund balances are available.
o Paying for the project will not adversely affect the debt parity ratios required to be

maintained for current District indebtedness.

130



Criteria for Long-Term Financing: 
o Revenues available for debt-service are deemed sufficient and reliable, such that

long-term financings, if chosen, could be marketed with investment-grade credit 
ratings. 

o Other sources such as low-interest loans and/or grants are available for specific
projects. 

o Market conditions present favorable interest rates and demand for District
financings. 

o Project is mandated by state or federal requirements, and resources to fund those
mandates are insufficient or unavailable. 

o Project is immediately required to meet or relieve capacity needs, and current
resources are insufficient or unavailable. 

o The life of the project or asset to be financed is 10 years or longer.

Section 4. DEBT MANAGEMENT 
The District will avoid the General Fund to secure long-term financings except when 
marketability can be significantly enhanced. 

A feasibility analysis will be prepared for each long-term financing which analyzes the 
impact on current and future budgets for debt service and operations. 

The District will generally conduct financings on a competitive basis; however, negotiated 
financings may be used due to market volatility or the use of an unusual or complex financing 
or security structure. 

The District staff will monitor all forms of debt annually, coincident with the review process 
and preparation of the District’s Financial Statements. Concerns, if any, and recommended 
remedies to address those concerns, will be reported to the Board of Directors. 

The District will diligently monitor its compliance with bond covenants and loan conditions 
to ensure its adherence to federal arbitrage regulations. 

The District shall maintain rates, charges, and assessments sufficient to generate revenues 
in the amounts necessary to cover operation and maintenance costs, and shall ensure net 
revenues sufficient to meet or exceed 1.10 times the annual debt service in each fiscal year, 
except when an indebtedness requires a higher debt parity ratio. 

Section 5. ACCOUNTING POLICY 
The McKinleyville Community Services District will establish and maintain accounting 
systems according to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the standards of 
the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

An annual audit will be performed by an independent public accounting firm that will issue 
an opinion of the annual financial statements. Total indebtedness, including direct and 

131



overlapping debt will be analyzed in determining financial condition. All legally required full 
disclosures will be provided in the financial statements and bond representations. 

Target debt ratios will be calculated annually and reviewed for conformity with legal 
requirements, lender stipulations, and this policy. 

Financial systems will be maintained to monitor expenditures and revenues on a monthly 
basis, with thorough analysis and adjustments (if required). 

Section 6. INDEPENDENT DISCLOSURE COUNSEL 
The District will retain the services of a bond and/or disclosure counsel in conjunction with 
specific project financings under the following circumstances: 

o The financing will be negotiated, and the funding agency or underwriter has not
separately engaged an underwriter’s counsel for disclosure purposes. 

o The revenue source for repayment is not under the management or control of the
District. 

o The bonds will not be rated or insured.
o The funding agency, bond counsel, or underwriter requires the District retain an

independent disclosure counsel based on the circumstances of the financing.

132



            Item E.10 Attachment 2 

 

                                                                  Audit Committee 

 

The audit committee met through an e-mail exchange. 

Present:  Corbett, Barsanti, Kaspari 

Date:  9-22-20 

The committee reviewed agenda item E. 5 of the July 1, 2020 regular board meeting.  E.5 Discuss and 

Consider Adoption of Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration CEQA documents for the Mad River 

Flood Plan and Public Access Enhancement Project and response to comments.  The Board of Directors 

pulled the item for CEQA public notice provisions, failure to have a project to approve and to get better 

transparency of the project and the role of the parties.   

The committee reviewed agenda item E. 7 of the September 2, 2020 Discuss and Consider Approval of  

resolution  2020-22 Adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring and 

Reporting Program for the Mad River Flood Plan and Public Access Enhancement Project based on 

Approval of Final Conservation Funding.   This later action provided for Board project approval with 

conditions, allowed the finding of a Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

The goal of the Committee review was to determine whether additional regulation or Board Direction 

was desirable.   There were no other similar facts in the record.  The Committee determined that 

additional direction was needed anyway. 

     One:  The Committee notes that the role of non-profits has grown in our society and that the 

      role of non-profits participating in grant and outright funding of public agencies is 

      increasingly significant.  The non-profit role is expected to continue and increase. 

 

      Two: The District is successfully using grants, non-profits  and community groups to supplement the   

       funding of operations, capital improvements and to develop new projects and services for the 

       residents of McKinleyville. 

       Three: Traditionally Boards have been concerned with whether grants fit the governmental 

        purpose of the organization, don’t have hidden costs, and that maintenance requirements 

133



       are affordable for the District. 

       Four:  Nationally, similar trends are being discussed by federal, state, and auditing guidelines  

       that are attempting to add clarity and accountability of such transactions.  

       Similar to our situation, curren  practices can lead to confusion between  

      advisory and procurement contracts.  Thus standard  legislative bond  

      requirements can be delayed or changed. In the private sector 

      participating in both the adversary development and project design and construction oversight 

       have become increasingly separated to maintain accountability. 

        The committee therefore recommends: 

The Board review the information provided, take public comment and Direct staff: 

To Revise the Debt Management & Capital Financing Manual to add Section 7. Grant Procurement and 

Approval Policy. 

The audit committee recommends that the Board review the provided information,  

take public comment, and direct Staff to provide a monthly listing of current Grants.  The listing  

to include Grants Awarded to MCSD and those awarded to Non-Profits for the benefits of MCSD 

within the jurisdiction of the District.            

       

Triggers for review would be requests for temporary or permanent right of ways, soils, and permission 

to make measurements of District Policy. 

General Manager waivers of this policy require the concurrence of the Acting Board Chairman. 

134



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020             TYPE OF ITEM:  Action 

ITEM:  E.11 Consider Audit Committee’s Proposal to Increase 

Transparency with a Monthly Listing of Both Types of Current 

MCSD Grants Awarded:  

1) MCSD Grants, Where the District Receives and Administers 

the Monies and Contract 

2) Nonprofit Grants Where a Nonprofit Applies for the Grant, 

Receives, and Manages the Monies for an MCSD Project 

PRESENTED BY: Audit Committee 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Staff Direction 

Recommendation: 

The audit committee recommends that the Board review the provided 
information, take public comment, and direct Staff to provide a monthly listing of 
current grants. The listing to include grants awarded to MCSD and those 
awarded to Non-Profits for the benefit of MCSD.  

Discussion: 

With the goal being to increase transparency, board and public knowledge of 
grants awarded for the benefit of MCSD; the audit committee would like to have a 
listing of the existing grants currently awarded to the District or to nonprofits for 
District benefit. This would be included as an attachment to the monthly 
Treasurer’s report.  

The audit committee would like the listing separated into two lists: MCSD and 
nonprofits. The listing will generally define the differences between the two types 
of grants and list the approximate amount of the grant and related MCSD grant 
project.  

Please review the following sample of a listing. (Attachment 1)   

Alternatives: 

Take No Action  

Fiscal Analysis:  

No current fiscal impacts except for Staff time to prepare and update each month 
for the treasurer’s report.  

Environmental Requirements:  

135



Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – Sample Listing 

136



Item E. 11 Attachment 1

MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT (MCSD)

CURRENT GRANTS BY RECEIPIENT TYPE

Date of Treasuer's Report here

Note about this sample report:

Grant, Approx Amount and MCSD Projects are made up. The nonprofit entites exist

but (except for California Trout) do not have current grants for the benefit of MCSD. 

The nonprofits are here to show that  many nonprofits have a name that sounds 

like a government agency, but are nonprofits. The nonprofit entities here are

examples of real nonprofits that obtain grants for the benefit of government agencies. 

1) MCSD Grants where the District receives and administers the monies and contract. 

Grant money goes through the MCSD's books. 

Approx. 

Grant Amount MCSD Project 

MCSD - HCF (ongoing) $ 14,000                 Mad River Project

MCSD in kind 8,000                   Mad River Project

RCAA 45,000                 Mad River Project

Total money going directly to MCSD $ 67,000                 

2) Grants where MCSD does not apply, receive or manage the monies and contract. A nonprofit

applies, receives the monies and administers the contract. No grant money goes through the MCSD books. 

Approx. Receiving all the Grant MCSD Project 

Grant Amount Money to manage receiving benefit

NOAA Community Based Restoration $ 490,167               The nonprofit " California Trout" Mad River Project

WCB Public Access 384,797               The nonprofit " California Trout" Mad River Project

USFWS NCWC 376,754               The nonprofit " California Trout" Mad River Project

SCC 276,184               The nonprofit " California Trout" Mad River Project

Racial Equity Training 25,000                 

 The nonprofit "Government Alliance 

for Racial Equity" Staff Training

California Prop. 1 grant program 1,500,000            

 The nonprofit "California Rural Water 

Association" Sewer Project

Total money going directly to nonprofits $ 3,052,902            

(Note to Staff): Grants should be spelled out not abbreviated for the public and board. 

137



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020             TYPE OF ITEM: Action 

ITEM:  E.12 Consider Approval of a Proposal and Rental Agreement 

with Justin and April Sousa for the Rental, Repair, and 

Caretaker Position for the Pialorsi House and Property 

and Budgeting for Necessary Repairs 

PRESENTED BY:  Pat Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call Vote 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review the provided information, take public 
comment, and authorize the General Manager to negotiate the final rental 
agreement for the rental, repair, and caretaker position for the Pialorsi house and 
property. Staff further recommends the Board authorizes an expenditure of up to 
$50,000 in repair costs for roofing and miscellaneous repairs of the Pialorsi 
house and property for Fiscal Year 2020/21. Financing to come from a portion of 
the remaining loan procured for the purchase of the Pialorsi property. 

Discussion: 

At the June 3, 2020 meeting, the Board approved Resolution 2020-12 authorizing 
the acceptance and recordation of a grant deed to the Pialorsi Property.  The 
lower areas of the property will be utilized for reclamation, and recycled water will 
be utilized to grow hay and other fodder crops.  The existing property also 
contains a hay barn that has been offered for use to the Haying Lessee. Upon 
final selection of the Lessee, it will be determined if they will intend to use the 
barn for their operations.  If they chose to, the District would likely have to 
perform some repairs to stabilize the barn.   

That leaves the other structures on the property including the house, garage, a 
shop and a couple of other storage sheds.  The existing house is the biggest 
remaining asset; however, it is in no condition for occupancy.  The roof is missing 
several shingles, one corner of the foundation has settled and requires 
stabilization, and the inside is in general disrepair.  Staff has considered three 
options. 

1. Do not fix up the dwelling unit, allow it to deteriorate, and tear it down in time. 

2. Professionally fix the dwelling unit up. It would likely cost in excess of 
$100,000 to have a contractor come in and refurbish the house to allow it to be a 
rental once repair are complete. 

138



3. Hire a Staff member to live in the house and serve as the Caretaker of the 
property, similar to the District’s Fischer Ranch house and Hiller Park Caretaker 
positions. As with Fischer Ranch this would also allow the Staff member to invest 
time and energy to complete the repairs, as approved by the District, and credit 
this work towards their rent.  Considerable work needs to be invested prior to the 
house becoming livable, but this work would also be credited toward future 
rental.  The District would oversee the repairs and purchasing materials for 
repairs. Caretaker duties would consist mainly of daily oversight of the property 
and reporting on any issues observed. 

It should be noted that, although District Staff currently regularly inspects the 
property, it has become more and more prevalent that people are using and 
dumping things on the property, and if a Caretaker is not present on the property, 
these activities and vandalism will likely increase. 

To gauge Staff interest, the General Manager asked all Staff if anyone was 
interested in the Caretaker position including the rental and repair of the house 
and property. One proposal was received from Board Secretary April Sousa and 
her husband, Justin. Their proposal is included as Attachment 1.  It should be 
noted that negotiations have not begun with the Sousas on their proposal; 
however, there are items that would be discussed. It is felt their schedule is likely 
too ambitious, and we would adjust it and establish discrete milestones to be met 
with agreed upon dates.   

It is also felt that it is getting too late in the year to start a roofing project for just 
the Sousas, so the District would hire a roofer to install the roof. District Staff 
would do the work to tear off the roof and put down plywood to reduce the cost 
by $10,000.  The roofing cost would then be $13,265 (see Attachment 2, A&I 
Roofing cost estimate).  District Staff would also likely utilize the dumpster for the 
roofing materials to also dispose of other garbage and debris around the property 
and would likely assist the Sousas to do an initial cleanup of the house.  The 
Sousa’s estimate, minus roofing costs is for another $9,500 in material costs 
through the end of this fiscal year.  Total costs estimate for house repairs are 
then $13,265+$9,500=$22,765 through the end of the current Fiscal Year (See 
Table under Fiscal Analysis). 

There are some other items that were not included in the Fiscal Year 2020/21 
budget but are required and would come out of the loan procured for the property 
purchase.  These include installing a fence between the remaining Pialorsi 
property and District property as detailed in the purchase agreement; performing 
the remediation for the Milk Barn approved by the Board in September; removing 
the dilapidated and unsafe manufactured home off the property; and costs in 
excess of the amount budgeted for the survey of the property.  There are other 
unbudgeted repairs needed at the property including stabilizing the existing barn, 
as well as putting additional doors on the storage sheds and making them 
secure.  Some of these detailed costs are detailed in the Table below.  It is 
requested that an additional $50,000 be authorized to cover additional cost for 
the repairs to the house, barn and the other outbuildings on the Property, and 
authorize the General Manager to review and approve of these expenditures. 

139



Alternatives: 

Take No Action  

Fiscal Analysis:  

The following table details the original loan amount for the Pialorsi Property, the 
purchase price, budgeted items related to the property purchase, and the 
unbudgeted items required to finalize the property purchase and rehabilitation. 

FY 2020/21 Budgeted Items  
Survey $35,000.00 

House/Barn/Outbuildings Rehab $5,000.00 

Irrigation Piping $50,000.00 

  

Item Value/Cost 

Pialorsi Property Loan Amount $1,450,000.00 

Purchase Price $1,275,666.04 

Loan Balance Subtotal $174,333.96 

Unbudgeted Items  
Fencing detailed in purchase agreement $15,020.22 

PCB Remediation (includes contingency) $65,286.00 

Demo/removal of Trailer (estimate) $5,000.00 

Additional Survey Costs beyond what was 
budgeted $8,500.00 

Requested Additional Rehab Costs $50,000.00 

Unbudgeted Subtotal $143,806.22 

Loan balance minus Unbudgeted Total $30,527.74 

  

  

Environmental Requirements:  

Minor repairs to an existing structure are exempt from CEQA requirements.  It is 
not anticipated that any alterations to the structure would take place that would 
trigger the requirement for a County building permit. 

Exhibits/Attachments:  

• Attachment 1 – Sousa Proposal 

• Attachment 2 – A&I Roofing Proposal 

140



The following proposal created on September 7, 2020 is hereby presented to McKinleyville Community 

Services District by April & Justin Sousa for the purposes of obtaining a residential lease of a portion of 

MCSD’s recently acquired property known as the Pialorsi Ranch. April Sousa is currently the Board 

Secretary for MCSD and answered in the affirmative when the General Manager inquired about possible 

interest by employees of MCSD in leasing the residence and providing security/caretaker responsibilities 

at the ranch. 

It is our understanding that MCSD is interested both in preserving the value of the single-family 

residence and associated residential accessory structures currently developed on the home site, and 

also in supervisorial and caretaking activities over the entire ranch in order to provide security from 

trespassing and any other matters that would interfere with MCSD’s intended use of the fields, generally 

limited to treated wastewater reclamation and leased hay production. A map of these areas is included 

with this proposal. 

In order to effectively preserve the value of the residence and have on-site caretaking occur, common 

repairs and renovation of a 1954 ranch house will be necessary. We propose to provide all labor for 

these tasks at an agreed upon rate, to be paid in the form of rent credits, employee pay, or otherwise, 

whichever method suits the needs of MCSD. A brief summary list of work anticipated to be performed 

along with estimated material costs is included with this proposal. We propose that the materials for the 

approved repairs and renovation are to be paid for by MCSD and estimate the cost of these materials to 

fall in the range of $15,000 to $25,000, much of which is for the roofing, windows, flooring, paint, 

heating system, electrical system, kitchen, and bathrooms. The list of repairs and renovations included 

with this proposal is preliminary and subject to revisions with the approval of the MCSD General 

Manager. 

From our conversations with MCSD to date, the concept that has been conveyed to us is that the 

residential lease area will move through distinct phases of rental value for MCSD during the repair and 

renovation process. We propose the phasing, valuation, and timeframe to be as follows: 

Phase 1 – Current condition ($0 rental value), Proposal acceptance through December 31, 2020 

Phase 2 – Habitable condition ($600 rental value), January 1, 2021 through June 31, 2021 

Phase 3 – Minimum rentable condition ($1,200), July 1, 2021 through Dec. 31, 2021 

Average rentable condition ($1,800), Jan. 1, 2022 and on (*unless further phases negotiated) 

We propose to end our improvements and rental value increases after Phase 3 is completed and the 

residence, accessory structures, and yard are all in average rentable condition. At this point the 

investment in the house is protected for the long term and at average rentable condition we would feel 

comfortable sustaining the condition of the lease area and the security/caretaking duties of the ranch. 

Should MCSD wish to further improve the house beyond Phase 3, we would appreciate the opportunity 

to negotiate with 1-year notice in writing from MCSD. 

Security/Caretaking responsibilities will be like those at MCSD’s Fischer Ranch site. April and Justin Sousa 

will provide surveillance for the residence and accessory structures, the on-site ranch structures, and the 

four Pialorsi Ranch parcels on a daily basis, checking for broken fences/gates, trespassers, reporting any 

damage or illegal dumping by trespassers to the district, as well as any safety concerns observed as a 

Item E.12 Attachment 1

141



result of these inspections. This may include having to report to the proper authority, such as law 

enforcement personnel, any misuse of district property. It is proposed that these security services 

possess a valuation of $250/month and will be taken off the rental price once Phase 1 Habitable 

condition of the residence is achieved. 

Upon acceptance of this proposal, MSCD will have the utilities turned on as soon as possible so that 

Phase 1 repairs can begin immediately, and the roof replacement can be completed before the rainy 

season sets in. MCSD will cover the utility expenses until April and Justin occupy the residence at the 

end of Phase 1. This includes Gas & Electricity from PG&E and water service from MCSD. 

Regarding animals, among our motivations for this proposal is the opportunity to have our horse and 

possibly one more future horse on the property with us, along with various standard pets, small pet 

farm animals, and vegetable gardening space. On the included site map showing the residential lease 

area closely, the east half of the lease area shown is of ample size to support all of these endeavors 

simultaneously. We would keep the activities within these areas with the sole exception being horse 

riding on the perimeter of the ranch for fence checking/property monitoring and also utilizing the access 

trail west to Fischer road for Hammond trail riding. Accepting this proposal will grant express permission 

for these activities to occur. 

142



508-091-37

508-031-01
506-341-17

508-081-34

ANDERSON AVE.

FISCHER AVE.

HIGHWAY 101

PIALORSI RANCH
PARCELS FOR

CARETAKING/SECURITY

PROPOSED
RESIDENTIAL

LEASE
AREA

143



PROPOSED
RESIDENTIAL
LEASE AREA

MILKING
PARLOR

HOUSE
GARAGE SHOP

HAY BARN

MCSD STORAGE

TANK
ROOM SILO

SILO

BIRD
SHED

SHED 3

SHED 2

GATE

GATE

FRONT
YARD

BACK
YARD

SHED1

GATE

ANDERSON AVE.

PPPP

GATE

144



Pialorsi R
anch H

ouse R
estoration Estim

ates

Labor hours
M

aterials (+10%
 

contingency)
680

$19,855

Foundation inspection
$100

Joe S
trang, contractor

W
ater, P

ow
er, G

as service
$150

M
C

S
D

Phase 1 - C
urrent C

ondition
D

um
pster for house contents

$100
C

lear house of all contents
32

C
lean and disinfect

24
$100

cleaning supplies
E

lectrical review
, grounded outlets, system

 m
ap

4
Floor stripping and sealing

40
$200

odor elim
inating paint

Functioning bathroom
 &

 sink
16

$50
S

trip roof, stack shingles in shed 3
24

R
oof replacem

ent
40

$6,000
dim

ensional shingles, caps, felt, flashing, nails
G

utter repair
8

$100
B

roken w
indow

 repair
8

Living room
 southeast, M

ain bathroom
D

oor repair
8

$100
G

arage south, shore up north garage door
E

lectric w
iring updates

16
$300

3-w
ire, receptacles, ground w

ire, gfci circuit
Fence repair, high traffic spots, signage

8
$200

Phase 2 - H
abitable

W
indow

 repairs
40

$2,000
m

ultiple failed w
indow

s, just fix the em
ergencies

S
iding repairs/w

eatherproofing
40

$500
just em

ergency spots
D

ryw
all repair and paint prep

16
$200

P
aint Interior

40
$1,000

odor resistent paint/prim
er

Flooring &
 trim

80
$4,000

lam
inate, carpet, vinyl tile

2nd bathroom
 functional

32
$200

Fence repair
16

$200
D

rivew
ay cleanup

8
asphalt health, w

eed kill, drainage
Y

ard cleanup
80

vegetation rem
oval, pruning, debris rem

oval

Phase 3 - M
inim

um
 R

ental Value
K

itchen update/oven/range/gas plum
bing

8
$1,000

M
ain bathroom

 update
40

$500
C

him
ney inspection/cleaning

8
S

iding repairs
16

$100
P

aint E
xterior

24
$1,000

S
hop cleaning and w

iring updates if needed
24

$200
S

hed restoration (2 sheds in drivew
ay)

40
$200

A
verage R

ental Value

145



JOB # 

DATE: 

REF: 

TO: 

McKinleyville, CA 95519

TC091120EW

9/16/2020

of the damage will be determined, and an estimate for repairs will be given.

•New plumbing and vent flashings.

McKinleyville, CA 95519

Contractor State License # 678789

J
O

B
 #

 4
1

6
4

5
ADDRESS: 4935-B Boyd Rd. Arcata, CA 95521
PHONE: (707) 826-2653 / FAX: (707) 826-2699 

Email: office@aandiroofing.com

A & I ROOFING, INC.   

30 YEAR, CERTAINTEED LANDMARK, DIMENSIONAL SHINGLE SPECIFICATION

•If damage is found in the roof decking or wood structure after the existing roofing is removed, the extent

CONTRACT PRICE: $23,265.00

41645

and local codes for the sum(s)as specified above. Balance is due upon completion of work and upon receipt of invoice. 

MCSD

P.O. Box 2037

1300 Anderson Ave.

During roof removal, dirt and debris will filter into your attic or other areas. We will attempt to do everything possible to eliminate this, and ask that 

WE PROPOSE:

•10 year workmanship warranty.

JOB LOCATION: 

ATTN: James Henry

(707) 496-2295

WE PROPOSE TO FURNISH ALL MATERIALS AND PERFORM ALL LABOR NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING

NOTES:

•Your roof should have yearly checks and routine maintenance when needed to maintain the guaranteed.

jhenry@mckinleyvillecsd.com

Apply 30 year, algae resistant, dimensional, fiberglass, class A, fire rated, composition shingles

•Complete clean up of all roof related debris.

•The above price does not include any carpentry other than specified.

HOUSE AND ATTACHED GARAGE ONLY

AREA TO BE ROOFED: 

•Remove and dispose of existing roofing.

•New metal at perimeter.

OPTIONS:

•1/2" CDX plywood over skip sheathing.

•For Malarkey Highlander NEX, 40 year, algae resistant, composition, shingle specification, ADD: $600.00

•15# underlayment of felt.

•Metal roof to wall step flashings.
•Chimney flashings.

•9 attic vents.

SELECT OPTION: YES__________NO__________
•For owner to tear off and 1/2"  CDX plywood are done, DEDUCT: $10,000.00
SELECT OPTION: YES__________NO__________

Respectfully submitted for A & I ROOFING, INC. By: Thomas Christian, RMO

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE WE ACCEPT VISA AND MASTERCARD

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL:

increases, this proposal is good for 30 days; prices could increase or decrease after this time period. Please call for an updated proposal if necessary. 

•Clean existing decking.

A & I Roofing is hereby authorized to furnish all materials and labor required to complete the work mentioned in the above proposal,

CONTRACT PRICE WHICHEVER IS LESS. DEPOSIT AMOUNT REQUIRED: $1,000.00

extra cost of material or labor will only be executed upon authorization by owner. All work to be substantially completed within 45 days from start of work.

A downpayment is required upon acceptance of contract. THE DOWNPAYMENT MAY NOT EXCEED $1,000.00 OR 10 PERCENT OF THE

*FINANCE CHARGES will incur monthly on the unpaid balance at the rate of 18% per annum. Any change from the above specifications involving

We declare, under penalty or perjury, that the above information contained in this bid is a true representation made therein. Due to petroleum product 

you do the same. We will not be held responsible for any loss that may occur. All jobs are completed with quality workmanship and according to state

at one time or an additional cost will be incurred.
•If owner does own tear-off the deck must be clean, prepped, and ready to accept load & application

for which I, the undersigned, agree to pay the amount mentioned in said proposal, according to the terms thereof.

ABOVE PRICE INCLUDES:

ACCEPTED:_________________________________________________________________ Date_______________________, 2020

Item E.12 Attachment 2

146

mailto:jhenry@mckinleyvillecsd.com
mailto:jhenry@mckinleyvillecsd.com
mailto:jhenry@mckinleyvillecsd.com
mailto:jhenry@mckinleyvillecsd.com
mailto:jhenry@mckinleyvillecsd.com
mailto:jhenry@mckinleyvillecsd.com
http://www.aandiroofing.com/


• Site preparation and/or construction has been completed in it's entirety.

                       Cost Estimate Contract Terms
4935-B Boyd Rd. Arcata, CA 95521  ∴  P.O. Box 6512 Eureka, CA 95502  ∴  office@aandiroofing.com  ∴  707-826-2653  ∴  707-826-2699 Fax

FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE FOLLOWING TERMS: •A & I ROOFING, INC., WILL BE REFERRED TO AS "CONTRACTOR"

                                                                          •HOMEOWNER/RESPONSIBLE PARTY WILL BE REFERRED TO AS "OWNER" 

THIS contract may be withdrawn by "Contractor" if not accepted within 30 days, or if "Contractor" is not authorized by "Owner" to 
commence work within 30 days. Should material costs increase over 5% prior to commencement of work, that price shall be added to 
the contract price. 

WORK under this agreement shall be commenced upon written notice to proceed at first available date for "Contractor", unless
specific dates are agreed to, and the satisfaction of the following conditions are met:  

"Owner” agrees to pay for all costs associated with extra work. Acceptance of this proposal without provisions for such corrections shall 

• The materials as specified are available to "Contractor", Once work commences, "Contractor" agrees to proceed until completed or,
within a reasonable time, subject to delays allowed under this agreement.

UNLESS otherwise noted in this agreement, the scope of work and the price quoted does not include in any manner whatsoever
replacing or removing fascia, trim, dry-rot, sheathing, rafters, structural members, siding, masonry, vents, caulking, sheet metal, 
flashing, mechanical units, gas lines, conduit, solar or correcting deficiencies in draining, also any painting other than the roof 
penetration flashings. If during the course of construction new or unforeseen items become necessary, these items will be classed
"extra work". Every effort will be made to contact homeowner prior to extra work being started. Such extra work deemed necessary by 
"Contractor" is unconditionally authorized by "Owner" if total of extra work is 10% or less of the total contract price. Should extra work 
deemed necessary by "Contractor" exceed 10% of total contract price, upon authorization by "Owner", "Contractor" will perform said 
extra work and will furnish the labor and materials as may be required for the proper completion of the whole work contemplated. 

walking, running, pounding, loading or storage of roofing material, or the placement or removing of equipment not including the sole 

constitute acceptance of these conditions by "Owner" and shall release "Contractor" of any and all liability in connection with same. 

"CONTRACTOR" Is not responsible for correcting any collection or ponding of water. "Contractor is not responsible for any existing 
structural defects or irregularities that contribute to ponding of water. This contract is for the new roofing materials and roofing system 
that will contour to the existing structure and it's irregularities. Any attempt to decrease the amount of ponding is only an "Attempt", not 
a guaranty. An attempt to decrease ponding will always be included in the scope of work and will always be at an additional charge.

"CONTRACTOR" Is not responsible for damage or delay caused by "Owner" or "Owners" agents, acts of God, earthquakes, fire, 
vandalism or other causes beyond the control of the "Contractor" to include pipes or wiring not seen in attics or roof sheathing and all 
vaulted areas where the interior ceiling is fastened to the same rafters as the roofing and all work performed by others not provided by 
"Contractor". Contractor is not liable for damage to the building or driveway due to normal roofing activity including but not limited to 

skylights, skylights sealed internally or externally, weathered skylights and aged skylights. Contractor will not be responsible for breaks or

negligence of "Contractor". All homes built to U.B.C. requirements should not have problems with industry standard re-roofing process.

"OWNER" Agrees to remove or protect all personal or real property which could be damaged by the "Contractor" in the performance of 
this agreement, to include but not be limited to: landscaping, carpets, furniture, lighting fixtures, hanging items, vehicles and any other 
work that might produce significant amounts of dust, debris and noise. "Owner" specifically acknowledges that dust, dirt, and debris may 
filter through open spaces such as tongue and groove ceilings, attic spaces, garages, and cracks or holes and settle upon the 
unprotected contents. By signing this agreement, "Owner" accepts absolute responsibility for any and all personal property in, around 
and near all structures to be roofed, and does hereby release "Contractor" from all liability of the conditions described above, but not
including the sole negligence of "Contractor". 

"CONTRACTOR" Will take all reasonable precautions while removing and replacing existing skylights in the case of homemade 

event of the work stoppage for any reason, "Owner" shall provide protection of and be responsible for any damage to building or loss of 

or leakage, as well as any interior damage caused by removing or replacing skylights. Skylights do have a life expectancy and become 
fragile when aged. Replacement of aged skylights is normal maintenance. 

NO warranty is implied or given on repairs unless specified.

IT is an industry standard that all roofs have regular maintenance, about every 2 to 4 years to maintain our workmanship warranty, if
applicable. Contractor agrees to make every reasonable effort to match existing colors, but does not guarantee color matches and will 
take all reasonable precautions, but is not liable or responsible for the staining of exterior surfaces to include new or existing gutters. 

IF the work shall be stopped by the "Owner" for a period of ten days or if contract is cancelled by "Owner", then "Contractor" has the 
option to demand and receive payment for all work executed and materials ordered or supplied and any other loss sustained. In the 

SHOULD litigation or arbitration be commenced for any reason by the parties to and arising from this agreement, the terms of this 
contract shall be controlling. Reasonable attorney's fees and costs will be awarded to the prevailing party whether in court or through 
arbitration. 

materials on premises. 

OUR workmanship warranty does not extend to damage occasioned by fire, extreme wind, lightning, settling or moving of infrastructure 
or defects in the roof framing or decking, roof flashings, or injury or damage occasioned by others. "Owner" agrees to take reasonable  
steps to prevent damage and to ascertain the cause of any defect or leak prior to notifying "Contractor". "Owner" agrees to pay  
"Contractor" for all inspection and repair required which is noticed under this guarantee but not covered under same. 

147



148



McKinleyville Community Services District 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
October 7, 2020  TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATION 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
ITEM:  F.3.A Support Services – Aug-Sept 2020 Report 

PRESENTED BY:  Colleen M. R. Trask, Finance Director 

TYPE OF ACTION:  None  

 
FINANCIAL, AUDIT, & BUDGET INFORMATION 
 
The District has $1,093,173.22 to date in the Trust Account for the next Biosolids 
Disposal project.  
 
Customer adjustments at August month-end total $1543.83, which represents 7.0% of 
the annual $22,000 budget for this sub-item. (GL# 501-62120) 
 
Total Board Travel as of Aug 31, 2020 remains at $350.00 which is 2.0% of the 
approved $17,500 budget for this item.  (GL# 001/005/501/551 62090/62155-888) 
 
Audit/Budget Update:  
 
The final on-site visit for the FY2019-20 audit will be done remotely on Oct 7-8. All 
additional documentation requested so far has been provided. Any documentation 
requests that come from the final on-site work will be supplied promptly for timely 
completion of the audited financials.  
 
Treasurer's Report Highlights:  
 
Water Fund capacity fees collected in August totaled $3,713. Wastewater Fund capacity 
fees of $19,401 were collected through the end of August. No capital contributions have 
been received yet in FY2020-21. Capital Contributions and Capacity fees are included 
in the income vs. expenses graphs of the Treasurer’s Report, but they are called out 
separately on the Budget to Actuals report. 
 
Activity Summary 
 
The Activity Summaries by Fund provides information on revenues and expenses or 
expenditures for each Fund, both current month and year-to-date. There is also a 
column showing the year-to-date budget and amounts and percent over or under. Lines 
that deviate from the calculated budget by more than 10% have an explanatory note. 
Often, this is no more than a reminder that, while the budget is divided evenly across 
twelve months, actual expenses often do not follow the same pattern. Other time, there 

149



are specific reasons for a deviation, such as contributed construction or the collection of 
unexpected capacity fees.  
 
The Water and Wastewater Funds are listed first, followed by the graphs showing 
revenue versus expenses versus budgets. Parks, Measure B, and Streetlights 
information is given next, with accompanying graphs for each. 
 
 
OTHER UPDATES 
  
The governor’s order to suspend non-payment lock policies remains in effect, and we 
are now starting to see more impact, even with staff’s continued, concerted attempts to 
keep people at least reasonably current on their water bills. The current lock list is 
somewhat longer than normal, and we are starting to see higher total balances as 
monthly water bills accumulate with higher summer/ fall water use. If the governor does 
not rescind the order, we are likely to face higher bad debt for the FY20-21 fiscal year.  
 
The County has posted tax allocation funds for 30 June. The interest apportionment 
continues to be delayed and has not been applied to the Quimby Funds held by the 
County on the District’s behalf. The interest apportionment will therefore be estimated to 
prevent any further delay in the completion of the finalized trial balance for the auditors.    
 
The revised Reserve policy is expected to be brought to the Board for action during the 
regularly scheduled public meeting in November 2020. Discussions on the 
implementation of IRS Section 115 Trusts for the pension and OPEB reserves and on 
District investment policy will follow.    
 
 
 
 

150



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020                          TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATION 

ITEM:  F.3.B   Operations Department – August 2020 Report 

PRESENTED BY:  James Henry, Operations Director 

TYPE OF ACTION:  None 

Water Department: 

Water Statistics: 
The district pumped 54.4 million gallons of water in August. 
Six water quality complaints were investigated and rectified. 
Daily, weekly and monthly inspections of all water facilities were conducted.  
 
Double Check Valve Testing:  
Annual routine testing was conducted on Route 15 along with a minimal number of 
retests. Customers with failed DCV’s were notified to make repairs and call the office to 
schedule a retest.  
 
Average and Maximum Water Usage: 
The maximum water usage day was 2.5 million gallons and the average usage per day 
was 1.7 million gallons. 
     
Water Distribution Maintenance: 
Weekly Bacteria Samples were collected on Schedules 1, 2, 3, 5 and 6 which represent 
different locations in the water distribution system. The schedules are made up of a 
sample taken in each pressure zone. Several water service installation and repair 
trenches were prepped and paved. The 3” and Larger meters were calibrated by an 
external contractor. Two of the meters came in reading low, which were repaired on the 
spot and the rest came in reading good. A new water service was installed on 
Anderson.   
 
Water Station Maintenance: 
Monthly inspections and daily routines were conducted at the water stations. Any minor 
issues found are repaired during inspections but if they require parts or extensive labor, 
the issue is documented on the monthly sheet which will then generate a work order for 
repairs. Norton Tank has been getting pressure washed by staff and was completed in 
August. Staff located a few bad spots in the Norton tank roof when pressure washing 
and installed patches along with paint. Hedge trimming and mowing also took place at 
the Norton site. Pressure washing and painting was completed at the North Bank pump 
station.   
 

151



As of July 2014, the District is required to submit a Public Water Monthly Monitoring 
Report to compare water usage to last year’s usage in the same month. I will keep the 
Board updated each month using the Table below.  
 

 2013 2019/20 % Reduction R-GPCD 

August 55.908 50.871 10 74 

September 45.702 44.361 3 75 

October 39.439 38.625 2 61 

November 34.879 37.462 (-7) 53 

December 35.203 36.588 (-4) 52 

January  38.241 36.457 5 50 

February 33.751 34.130 (-1) 49 

March 36.244 37.145 (-2) 49 

April 39.755 38.065 4 53 

May 49.407 40.355 19 58 

June 51.337 44.200 14 58 

July 54.757 54.111 2 70 

August 55.908 54.366 3 78 

 
R-GPCD = Residential Gallons Per Capita Day 

 
 
 
 

0
20
40
60
80

100

Water Usage

2013 MG 2019/20 MG % Reduction R-GPCD /gallons

152



New Construction Inspections:  
Bo Day Subdivision; Manhole has been installed. Water main and services are installed. 
Tie-in is completed. Testing was completed and corrections were made. St. light 
installation pending. Imeson Court, Avalar plans have been reviewed and commented. 
Engineer sent corrected plans back to staff for review and approval. Valedao Lime. 
Water and sewer services and sewer main have been installed and tested. Streetlights 
were installed and paving is completed. Punch list items were corrected. Asbuilts were 
reviewed by staff and commented. Corrections were made and delivered to staff. This 
project is completed.  
 
Sewer Department: 
 

WasteWater Statistics: 
26.0 million gallons of wastewater were collected and pumped to the WWMF. 20.6 
million gallons of wastewater were treated and discharged to land disposal or 
reclamation in August.   
 
Sewer Station Maintenance: 
Monthly inspections and daily routines were conducted on all sewer stations. Staff  
shimmed pumps, washed the wetwell and lubed at Fischer as part of the quarterly 
maintenance. Fischer had several issues last month that staff repaired including 
replacing an hour meter on one of the pumps, replaced the check valve on pump three, 
replacing vibration sensor mount, replacing bearings in pump 1 motor, replaced the 
bearing water valves and replacing the conduit and wire to the grinder. Hedge trimming 
and mowing was completed at the Kelly lift station. Pressure washing and painting took 
place at the B Street lift station. The air reliefs at Kelly were removed, serviced and put 
back into operation due to not functioning properly. Staff installed a new Davit Crane 
mount for pump removal for the Hiller Station upgrade. 
 
Sewer Collection System: 
Grease traps were inspected at required facilities. Customers that are out of compliance 
were notified to have their traps pumped and possibly shorten their pumping schedule.  
A new sewer service was installed on Anderson Avenue. Quarterly hydro-cleaning was 
completed on 13,000 feet of sewer main using the vac-con and 3000 psi of water 
through a spinning nozzle. This is done to remove grit and grease from the mains and 
help prevent sewer spills. Customers were notified in advance. Clearing was completed 
at the sewer easement to accommodate surveying for the Highway 101 Crossing 
project.  
 
Wastewater Management Facility: 
Daily and weekly maintenance continues at the treatment plant to perform required 
service on the equipment. Staff installed the Biosolids pump and are waiting on wiring to 
show up to complete the project. Hedge trimming was completed. Dosage room doors 
were prepped and painted. The chemical dosage vacuum switches were calibrated to 
accommodate the new equipment install.  
 
 
 

153



Daily Irrigation and Observation of Reclamation Sites: 
Discharge has been going to the Land since April 28th. Irrigation pipe has been moved 
daily along with observations and reporting. String trimming took place at the Hiller site.  
     
Street Light Department:  
No streetlights issues were reported.   
  
Promote Staff Training and Advancement:   
Weekly tailgate meetings and training associated with job requirements. Staff received 
training on Hoist Safety, Lock-out Tag-out, Driving Distractions and Bloodborne 
Pathogens. Several staff members also attended First Aid and CPR refresher.  
 
Special Notes: 
Monthly river samples were completed. 
Monthly Self-Monitoring Reports (DMR/SMR) were submitted. 
Public Water Monthly Monitoring report was submitted. 
Monthly Water Quality report was sent to the Dept. of Health. 
Tesla Surveyors came out to conduct site visits for proposed battery sites. 
Staff attended meetings regarding the Hiller Sewer Lift Station upgrade. 
Staff received the Local Limits Study and is in review process. 
Staff received the Ammonia Study report, reviewed, made comments and submitted 
Staff is still separated into teams to avoid possible COVID spread within the staff. 
Staff received proposals for the Ranch hay lease and reviewed for best candidate. 
Attended webinar covering the new water monitoring reporting tool. 
Staff attended a Micro-grid progress update meeting. 
 

GIS: 
Plans and Programs   

• Begin 5-Year review of Urban Water Management Plan  

o Attended guidance book release webinar to discuss the new sections and 

requirements added to the 2020 plan  

o Reviewed previous seismic studies to see if they cover new seismic 

requirements.  

• Completed annual review of the lock out tag out procedures and standard 

requirements.  

• Updated the Spill Prevention and Control Countermeasures (SPCC) change in 

management.   

 

Maps Completed/General GIS  

• Maintained the Operations I Pad to be used for facility inspections and USA’s  

• Maintained and update ArcGIS online maps for I Pad use. 

• Added new streetlights layer 

• Created new parks map showing responsibility and ownership 

• Updated Operations map and published as a web service      

• GPS’d and updated new water/sewer services. 

• Generated maps and visual aids as requested 

154



• Mapped sewer lateral on Kelly Ave. with easement.  

• Fisher and Pialorsi Ranches Farmable land map  

• Reviewed Valadao Lime Ave Sub AutoCAD data for completeness.  

 

Misc. Work Completed 

Created spread sheet summarizing meter repairs 
Inspected Pialorsi Ranch and Mullen Trailer weekly 
Installed WaterCAD on GM computer  
Service Orders  
USA’s  

 

155



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020               TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATION 

ITEM: F.3.C Parks & Recreation Director’s Report for September 2020 

PRESENTED BY:  Lesley Frisbee, Recreation Director 

TYPE OF ACTION:  None  

 
TEEN & COMMUNITY CENTER-BOYS & GIRLS CLUB PARTNERSHIP: 
The Boys & Girls Club has hired a new Teen Club Director. She starts on October 5th. For 
the month of September, the Teen Club ran programming on Tuesday and Thursday 
afternoons.  BGCR is working to develop an advisory committee specifically for the 
McKinleyville Club to increase engagement and participation at the Club.  

Staff continues to meet with BGCR staff regularly.  

 
RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE: 
The Recreation Advisory Committee meeting on September 17, 2020 was held over Zoom 
due to COVID-19. The notes from the meeting can be reviewed in Attachment 1.  
 
RECREATION PROGRAM UPDATES: 
We began a Recreational Afternoon Program this month serving elementary school children 
in the afternoon.  Program activities are focused on social and emotional skills, art, and 
physical movement. Staff continue planning for alternative youth sports activities to be 
offered this winter and spring.   

New Heart Community Church intends to resume use of the Activity Center for Sunday 
services beginning October 4th.  The McKinleyville Senior Center Executive Director, Rene 
Quintana, reached out to inquire about what is needed to reopen the Senior Center at 
Azalea Hall.  Staff provided the Mr. Quintana the contact information for the County’s Public 
Health Business Compliance branch. 

Staff is working to update the cost estimates for the Pierson Park Expansion and 
Renovation project for the Statewide Park Development and Revitalization Grant application 
due in December.    

As of the writing of these notes the County Public Health Dept. did not have an estimated 
date or timeline for re-opening picnic areas, playgrounds and community centers.    

 
PARKS & FACILITY MAINTENANCE: 
Several open space zones received mowing, hedging and weeding maintenance as part of 
the Open Space Maintenance Zone agreements. The Parks crew and NHES continue the 
routine schedule for maintenance on Central Ave. landscaping.  Staff continues to keep up 
with daily/weekly routine facility maintenance. Monthly inspections were conducted on all 
facilities and Open Spaces.  
 

156



Replacement of the flooring in the Activity Center Lobby has been delayed due to delivery 
delays of the flooring material.  Once the flooring is received by the installers the 
replacement will be scheduled within that same month.  
 
 
OTHER UPDATES: 

• Staff is planning and preparing for the acquisition of a Community Forest. 

• Staff continues to work with the community members interested in developing a BMX 
track at the Washington Ave.-School Rd. property. Staff is working with the BMX 
community to draft a possible operating agreement to guide the partnership between 
the Humboldt Skatepark Collective’s BMX committee and MCSD and the 
responsibilities of each entity in the operation and maintenance of a BMX Track and 
Park should the project be approved by the MCSD Board.. 

• Staff has facilitated and participated in a series of communication skills workshops for 
all District staff. These are monthly workshops conducted in small groups.  

• Staff is currently seeking volunteers willing facilitate the drop-in Pickleball program.  
Once volunteers are secured staff will begin advertising the program.   

• Staff is currently working with the State of California to receive a childcare license 
waiver so that full day programming can be offered during the times that schools are 
offering distance/online learning.  Once the licensing requirement is waived, Staff will 
open enrollment for full day childcare programming which will include support for 
students doing online-distance learning as well as other enrichment activities. 

• Staff continues to provide administrative support to the Support Services Dept.  

• Staff is participating in the planning and preparation of MCSD’s 50-year anniversary 
events/publications.  

• Staff is reviewing and updating cost estimates for the Prop 68-Statewide Park 
Development and Community Revitalization Grant application to be submitted for the 
Pierson Park Expansion and Renovation Project.  

157



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 7, 2020             TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATION 

ITEM: F.3.D General Manager’s Report for October 2020 Meeting 

PRESENTED BY:  Patrick Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Information Only  

A summary of activity for the month of September 2020 
 
Cost Savings Related to District Activities – The following is a review of some of the 

recent cost savings opportunities District staff identified for the month: 

• Use of NHE Services =         $3,796 

• Use of SWAP program =         $3.570 

• Fischer Pump 2 Control Repair =         $300 

• Repair Rust Holes in Tank 2A top =         $920 

• Chemical Dosage Upgrade WWMF =      $3,200 

• Fischer Pump 1 Repair =          $360 

• Clear behind Knox Cove for Tree Felling =        $360 

• Install Davit Crane Mount at Hiller =         $280 

TOTAL COST SAVINGS FOR AUG    $12,786 

 

The cumulative cost savings for the District to date from July 1, 2020 is $91,808 

 

District staff are recognized and commended for their continued efforts in looking for cost 

savings, the use of internal labor, and grant opportunities that result in real savings for the 

District, ratepayers, and the community. 

 

COVID- 19 – We received a bit of good news in the form of a letter from the Governor’s 

Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) stating that our request for Public Assistance for 

the State and Federally declared disaster FEMA-4482-DR-CA-COVID-19 Pandemic has 

been approved.  We now have 60-days from the Sept. 1st date on the letter to submit 

damages. We have continued to track costs related to the COVID response and will 

continue to keep records and submit for disaster reimbursement for expenses and lost 

revenue. As of August 31, $44,850 has been tracked in staff time and expenses directly 

attributed to COVID-19.  This includes all the Personal Protective Equipment, disinfection 

and cleaning supplies, and Staff time directly related to COVID-19 response. The additional 

computer equipment required to allow staff to work socially distanced from home if required, 

and well as Board computer equipment to allow for socially distanced Board Meetings have 

not hit the books yet.  We will submit all these claims and continue to track COVID related 

expenses to potential claim additional expenses. 

 

158



Community Forest – Still no word on whether the grant for the funding of the purchase of 

the Community Forest was successful.  Trust for Public Lands (TPL) submitted the 

additional information requested by the California Natural Resource Agency before the 

September 25th due date.  Part of the requested information was a Tribal Outreach Plan, 

which Staff and the Community Forest Committee crafted together.  The Commitment Letter 

from the District to accept the land that the Board approved at the October Board Meeting 

was also submitted.  

 

Parks & Rec Director Frisbee, Operations Director Henry, Recreational Coordinator, Jens 

Andersen and I did a tour of potential access points.  There are two access points off of 

Murry Road, which will need improvement, but can be fairly readily developed into trailheads 

with parking.  We looked at access points off of Hunts Drive, East Cochran, Sutter Road, 2nd 

Road, D Avenue, and Babler Road.  None of these alternative access points will be 

straightforward in the least.  The most promising are probably East Cochran and 2nd, but we 

will have to discuss with Green Diamond about trail easements and potentially parking lot 

easement on their property to accommodate them.  

 

We have also talked to Green Diamond about obtaining copies of their GIS data for roads, 

elevations, trees, etc. and are setting up a meeting to discuss.  We likely will also have to 

sign a Non-Disclosure Agreement for obtaining the data.  

 

Discussions were also held with the RAC about their participation on the Ad Hoc Community 

Forest Committee.  We hope to hear back on the grant soon, and Staff will continue to work 

with the Forest Committee to plan next steps. 

 

4.5 Gallon Water Tank Project – The District continues work on this Project with Kennedy 

Jenks (KJ) and their subcontractors.  KJ submitted a Draft and Final Technical Memo, 

“Design Criteria & Alternative Evaluation”. This memo established the design criteria and 

also evaluated two options for the reservoir, a welded steel tank and a prestressed concrete 

tank. The memo recommended the installation of a prestressed concrete tank for several 

reasons including: Lower overall life cycle costs, $4,795,000 vs. $7,187,600 for the welded 

steel tank; height of the tank approximately 4-feet shorter than welded steel; the tank can be 

partially buried, reducing the cut slopes; smaller range of water temperatures; no active 

corrosion protection system required; minimal maintenance requirements.  District Staff 

agreed with the recommendation and KJ is moving forward with the prestressed concrete 

tank design.  

 

KJ continues to work on assessing other design components including the overflow line 

alternatives, the operations alternatives, and environmental documents including a wetlands 

delineation and viewshed analysis, which will be forthcoming before the end of the year.  I 

have also asked KJ to do a presentation to the Board, sometime in the first quarter of 2021. 

 

An appraisal of the property was also conducted by Frank Mileham as the previous 

appraisal had expired.  The new appraisal was completed the end of August.  The price for 

the entire property has gone up by $85,000 or by $6,300/acre since the 2012 Appraisal by 

159



Brooks.  If the District purchases 4.72 acres of the entire 13.1 acres at $34,300/acre that is 

$161,896. We forwarded the appraisal to Doug Shaw of American Hospital Group with a 

request to finalize negotiations on the property purchase. 

 

Funding for this project is with a Hazard Mitigation Grant through Cal OES and FEMA and 

will be a 75% grant/ 25% cost match by MCSD.  Estimated total project cost will exceed 

$6,000,000.   

 

Water and Sewer Mainline Master Plan Phase 3c – Phase 3b of the Master Planning 

effort is complete, and Staff received the Final Phase 3b Report detailing the outcome of the 

water and sewer piping testing. The scope of work for Phase 3c from GHD was approved by 

the Board at the September Board Meeting and they are working on setting up a Kick-off 

Meeting.  Phase 3c will consist of updating the replacement schedule and plan for which 

pipes to replace when, as well as further assessing the costs associated with the District 

replacing pipes as compared to going out to bid for a Contractor to replace pipes.  We 

anticipate with receipt of the Phase 3c Report, we will be able to move into the actual pipe 

replacement phase, likely in 2022. 

 

SRF Energy Efficiency WWMF Micro-grid Project – The High-Level Location Analysis 

Report, which included a high-level review of six separate locations around the Wastewater 

Management Facility (WWMF) for the location of the solar array, went to the Board in 

September.  Ameresco is currently moving forward on the design of the Solar Array for the 

Pond 5 area and has commenced the geotechnical and environmental studies and 

permitting required for this area. 

 

The original Design/Build Contract amount with Ameresco is for $2,065,520 with a $206,552 

contingency.  Given the greater cost for constructing the system in the Pond 5 area, a 

contract change order will likely be required. We discussed this with Ameresco and agreed 

to move forward until a final, firm cost of the construction is obtained, and then we would 

negotiate this change order. This project is funded by a $2.5M grant/$2.5M loan from the 

State Water Resources Control Board.  

 

Hiller Lift Station Pump Upgrade – Work on the station upgrade continued in September. 

The new system is almost complete and has been connected into the existing sewer 

system.  The main remaining item is the control panel required to talk to the District’s 

SCADA system.  This panel is supposed to be delivered and installed mid-November.  

Meanwhile, the pumps and pump panel has been installed and tested by Flygt, the 

manufacturer.  District staff obtained training on pumps the last week in September.  If 

needed, the District could operate the station before the SCADA panel is installed, but we 

do not intend to unless required.   

 

The original construction contract amount is for $508,500 with a $50,850 contingency.  So 

far there has been two change orders, Change Order #1, which is a deductive change order 

for the cost of the wet well coating in the amount of minus $2,695.  Change Order #2 was 

for the addition of disconnect switches to the SCADA panel for an additional amount of 

160



$4,033.5. Total contract amount is now $509,838.50. This project is funded by a $2.5M 

grant/$2.5M loan from the State Water Resources Control Board. 

 

TESLA Batteries – As the Board approved at the August Board Meeting, Tesla has 

submitted grant applications on the District’s behalf to PG&E for their Self Generation 

Incentive Program (SGIP). Applications were submitted for the Ramey Pump Station, the 

Fischer Lift Station, and the Wastewater Management Facility.  We have not yet received 

confirmation that the grants will be funded but have received confirmation that they are in 

review.  Meanwhile, Tesla has started on the design process and their technicians were 

here in September collecting data from each station and surveying in each of the battery 

locations.  We will of course let the Board know when we receive confirmation on the grant. 

 

Local Limits – Sampling was completed for this project, and we received a Draft Report 

from Freshwater Environmental Services. The Local Limits Study will compare the sewage 

as it travels through the collection system, through the treatment process, to effluent 

disposal to calculate the load and removal of constituents.  This information will be used to 

then establish how much of various constituents can be discharged by individual, generally 

commercial, users. The Report will be review and finalized and the results and conclusions 

brought to the Board for review and discussion. 

 

Sewer Undercrossing Project – GHD is moving forward on the design and environmental 

permitting work of the sewer undercrossing project.  A preliminary layout for each of the 

sites was submitted by GHD and reviewed with their staff.  All three of the sites have also 

been surveyed, and we are waiting on the CalTrans encroachment permit to finalize the 

highway surveying.  The environmental work is scheduled to begin in early October. It is 

estimated that Phase 1 of the Project would be completed in December 2020, the Phase 2 

design completed in early 2022, and the Project construction completed in August 2023. 

This is a Hazard Mitigation Grant through Cal OES and FEMA and will be a 75% grant/25% 

cost share by MCSD.  Estimated total project cost is $3.5M. 

 

Cell Towers on District Property – We have not heard anything from the Cell Tower 

Broker on the Cochran Tank site and continue to not know if that site even remains in 

consideration.  We will report to the Board and public if this changes.   

 

Reporting by Sheriff’s office, County Public Work, County DHHS – During the July 

Board Meeting, President Burke and the rest of the Board expressed interest in reviving 2x2 

(the GM and one Board Member) meetings with County Staff. A regular meeting has been 

scheduled with President Burke, GM Kaspari, Supervisor Madrone, and Maya Conrad, the 

current President of the McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee, to occur on the last 

Monday of every month to discuss various topics of concern to all three organizations and 

the community.  During the September meeting, President Burke and I updated them on the 

Latent Powers discussion we were going to have with the MCSD Board, as well as the 

status of the Community Forest and we discussed the turnaround at the end of School by 

Verwer.  Supervisor Madrone talked about homeless encampments again, and the fact the 

District already spends money on cleaning up after them, and perhaps we could rent land to 

161



the County or some other non-profit to run a permanent camp on our land.  We said we 

would see what the Latent Powers Committee came up with.  He also brough up the idea of 

a Clam Beach Watershed Council again.  It should be noted that Clam Beach is outside the 

District boundaries.  
 

President Burke is working to set up meetings with Virgil Moorehead Senior and Junior of 

Big Lagoon Rancheria and owners of The Club, and with Ted Hernandez of the Wiyot. 

President Burke and GM Kaspari also have been talking with Humboldt County Staff on the 

changes to School Road parking and a potential turn-around.   
 

Director Mayo and GM Kaspari had a meeting scheduled with Sheriff Honsel on September 

8. We discussed our relationship in general and he is in favor of the 2x2 meetings.  We also 

discussed SWAP and he was going to check into whether we could get additional work from 

SWAP since we missed half of the year.  

 

Meetings –The General Manager attended various meetings in August including a MMAC 

meeting, RAC Meeting, a CSDA Chapter Meeting,  

 

Attachments: 

• Attachment 1 – WWMF Monthly Self-Monitoring Report 

162



163



164



165


	D.2 (Staff Report) Treasurer's Monthly Report 08-31-20.pdf
	ToC 
	Investment & Cash Flow Rpt
	Balance Sheet by Fund
	Budget2Actuals
	Selected Graphs
	CapitalProjs
	Debt
	2020-08cashdisbursementreport01

	E.2.1 (Attachment 1) Ranch Lease RFP, Map Combined.pdf
	RFP for Lease Fisher Pialorsi 08_2020
	Fischer and Pialorsi Ranches 2020 REVISED

	E.2.5 (Attachment 5) Fischer Ranch Lease Agreement Draft 2020_09.pdf
	LEASE AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 3.  USE OF PREMISES
	ARTICLE 4. TAXES AND UTILITIES
	ARTICLE 5. ALTERATIONS, REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
	ARTICLE 6. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE




	E.5.1 (Attachment 1) MCSDDraftRevisedBudgetFY2020-21Parks.pdf
	WrittenSummary
	MCSD Summary
	ParksSummary-PriorYr
	CIP-Pks

	E.9.3 (Attachment 3) LAFCO-MCSD-MSR-2009.pdf
	Municipal Service Review
	January 2009
	TABLE OF CONTENTS

	E.10.1 (Attachment 1) Debt Management & Capital Financing.pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	Section 2. PUBLIC PURPOSE
	Section 3. CAPITAL FINANCING
	Section 4. DEBT MANAGEMENT
	Section 5. ACCOUNTING POLICY
	Section 6. INDEPENDENT DISCLOSURE COUNSEL

	E.2.1 (Attachment 1) Ranch Lease RFP, Map Combined.pdf
	RFP for Lease Fisher Pialorsi 08_2020
	Fischer and Pialorsi Ranches 2020 REVISED




